
 

 

 

Boston Borough Council 
Chief Executive 
PHIL DRURY 

MCIAT, ACIOB 

Municipal Buildings 
Boston 
Lincolnshire 
PE21 8QR 
Tel: Tel 01205 314226 
Fax: 
 

 
My ref: PE/KR/Planning 
 

Please ask for: Janette Collier, Senior Democratic Services Officer (Tel 01205 314227) 
 
Friday, 12 July 2019 
 

 

NOTICE OF MEETING OF THE PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 
Dear Councillor  
 

You are invited to attend a meeting of the Planning Committee 
 

on Tuesday, 23 July 2019 at 10.00 am 
 

in the Committee Room, Municipal Buildings, West Street, Boston, PE21 8QR 

 
PHIL DRURY  
Chief Executive 
 
Chairman:  Councillor Tom Ashton 
Vice Chair:  Councillor Frank Pickett  
Councillors:  Alison Austin, Peter Bedford, Michael Cooper, Deborah Evans, Paul Goodale, 
Neill Hastie, Jonathan Noble, Brian Rush, Chelcei Sharman, Paul Skinner, Yvonne Stevens and 
Peter Watson 
 

 

 
Note(s) for Members of the Committee:  

In order to vote on a planning application committee Members must be present for the entire 
presentation and discussion on the item. 
 
When an official site visit is undertaken which forms part of the decision making at Committee, 
only Members who have attended the site visit and received full representation will be able to 
debate and decide the application. 
 
 

 

Members of the public are welcome to attend the committee meeting as observers 

except during the consideration of exempt or confidential items. 

 

 
 

Public Document Pack



 

 

 

AA  GG  EE  NN  DD  AA  
 

PART I - PRELIMINARIES 
 

 

A   APOLOGIES 
 
To receive apologies for absence and notification of substitutes (if any). 
 

 

B   MINUTES 
 
To sign and confirm the minutes of the last meeting, held on 28th May 2019. 

 

1 - 6 

C   DECLARATION OF INTERESTS 
 
To receive declarations of interests in respect of any item on the agenda. 

 

 

D   PUBLIC QUESTIONS 
 
To answer any written questions received from members of the public no 
later than 5 p.m. two clear working days prior to the meeting – for this 
meeting the deadline is 5 p.m. on Thursday 18th July 2019. 

 
 

 

PART II - AGENDA ITEMS 
 

 

1   PLANNING APPLICATION B/19/0242 
 
Installation of a customised navigation Buoy as a sculptural artwork 

 
Promontory Opposite Black Sluice, London Road PE21 7RB 
 
Luke Skerritt, Boston Borough Council 

 

7 - 14 

2   PLANNING APPLICATION B/19/0243 
 
Installation of a customised navigation Buoy as a sculptural artwork 

 
Coach Station Roundabout, St Georges Road, Boston 
 
Luke Skerritt, Boston Borough Council 

 

15 - 22 

3   PLANNING APPLICATION B/19/0244 
 
Installation of a customised navigation Buoy as a sculptural artwork 

 
Land adjacent to Haven Bridge, Buoy Yard Car Park, Boston 
 

Luke Skerritt, Boston Borough Council 

 

23 - 30 



 

 

4   PLANNING APPLICATION B/19/0245 
 
Installation of a customised navigation Buoy as a sculptural artwork 

 
Land adjacent to Haven Bridge, South Square, Boston 
 
Luke Skerritt, Boston Borough Council 

 

31 - 38 

5   PLANNING APPLICATION B/19/0246 
 
Installation of a customised navigation Buoy as a sculptural artwork 

 
Land adjacent to Art Deco Garden, Central Park, Boston 
 
Luke Skerritt, Boston Borough Council 

 

39 - 46 

6   PLANNING APPLICATION B/19/0168 
 
Erection of two storey dwelling 
 
Land Adjoining, Glebe Cottage, Main Road, Wrangle, Boston PE22 9HT 
 

Mr & Mrs S Priestley 
 

47 - 58 

7   S106 PLANNING OBLIGATION LEGISLATION UPDATE 
 
(A report by Mike Gildersleeves, Growth Manager) 

 

59 - 62 

8   RECEIPT OF APPEAL DECISIONS 
 
(A report by Mike Gildersleeves, Growth Manager) 

 

63 - 110 

9   RECEIPT OF APPEALS 15.04.19 TO 05.07.19 
 
(A report by Mike Gildersleeves, Growth Manager) 

 

111 - 112 

10   DELEGATED DECISION LIST 15.04.19 TO 05.07.19 
 
(A report by Mike Gildersleeves, Growth Manager) 

 
 
 

113 - 150 

 

Note: A planning decision comes into effect only when the decision notice 
and associated documents are despatched by the Local Planning Authority 
and not when the Committee makes its decision. 

 
 



 

 

 
 
Notes:  
 
The Human Rights Act 1998 
It is implicit in these reports that the recommendations to and the consideration by Committee will 
take into account the Council’s obligations arising out of the Human Rights Act and the rights 
conferred by Articles 6,8,14 and Article 1 of the First Protocol of the European Convention on 
Human Rights (ECHR).  These are the rights to a fair hearing, respect for family and private life, 
the prohibition against discrimination and the peaceful enjoyment of possessions, respectively.  
The ECHR allows many to be overridden if there is a sufficiently compelling public interest. 
 
In simple terms the Act requires a person’s interest be balanced against the interests of the 
community.  This is something that is part of the planning system and that balancing is a significant 
part of the consideration of issues identified to Committee by officer reports.  Provided that those 
issues are taken into account, the Convention will be satisfied. 
 
The person to contact about the agenda and documents for this meeting is Janette Collier, Senior 
Democratic Services Officer, Municipal Buildings, Boston, Lincolnshire, PE21 8QR, Tel 01205 
314227, e-mail: janette.collier@boston.gov.uk. 
 
Council Members who are not able to attend the meeting should notify Janette Collier, Senior 
Democratic Services Officer as soon as possible giving the name of the Council Member (if any) 
who will be attending the meeting as their substitute. 
 
Alternative Versions  
Should you wish to have the agenda or report in an alternative format such as larger text, Braille or 
a specific language, please contact Democratic Services on direct dial (01205) 314226 
 

 

Emergency Procedures 
 

In the event of a fire alarm sounding all attendees are asked to leave the building via 

the nearest emergency exit and make their way to the Fire Assembly Point located in 

the car park at the rear of the Municipal Buildings. 

 

 
 
 



PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 

28 MAY 2019 

Present: 
 

 

Chairman: Councillor Tom Ashton 

Vice-Chairman: 
 

Councillor Frank Pickett 

Councillors: Alison Austin, Peter Bedford, Michael Cooper, 
Deborah Evans, Paul Goodale, Neill Hastie, Jonathan Noble, 
Brian Rush, Chelcei Sharman and Peter Watson 
 

Officers: Growth Manager, Legal Officer Planning and Democratic 
Services Officer 
 

1   APOLOGIES 
 

Prior to notification of apologies it is recorded that the Chairman took the opportunity of 
welcoming both returning Councillors along with newly elected Councillors, onto the 
committee for the first meeting of the new term of office. 
 
Apologies for absence were tabled from Councillor Paul Skinner with Councillor 
Deborah Evans substituting, and also from Councillor Yvonne Stevens with no substitute 
member. 
 
2   MINUTES 

 
With the agreement of the returning members from the previous committee the 
Chairman signed the minutes of the meeting held on the 4 April 2019. 
 
3   DECLARATION OF INTERESTS 

 
Standing declarations of interest are noted for : 
Councillors Tom Ashton and Alison Austin in their respective roles as Members of 
Lincolnshire County Council. 
Councillor Michael Cooper in his role as a Member of the South East Lincolnshire Joint 
Strategic Planning Committee. 
Councillors Tom Ashton, Peter Bedford and Michael Cooper in their respective roles as 
representatives on the Internal Drainage Boards. 
 
Individual declarations of interest further recorded: 
 
Councillor Michal Cooper declared that as the ward member for planning application B 
19 0089 he had been in attendance at Sutterton Parish Council when the application 
had been deliberated.  He confirmed he had taken no part in any of the discussions held 
and the he had an open mind in determining the application. 
 
4   PUBLIC QUESTIONS 

 
No questions were tabled. 
 
 

Page 1

Agenda Item B



Planning Committee 
28 May 2019 
 

5   PLANNING APPLICATION B 19 0089 
 

The Growth Manager presented the report advising that there were no updates to the 
report tabled within the papers.  Committee were provided with a brief re-cap on the 
initial application for the benefit of the new members on the committee.  The Growth 
Manager advised that the application had initially been refused by the planning 
committee:  The applicant had then appealed the committee decision which was then 
submitted to the Planning Inspectorate for final determination, whereby it was 
overturned with the Inspector allowing the application.   
A second application was then tabled and again refused by the committee.  That one 
was also appealed by the applicant and again was overturned by the Inspector who 
allowed the appeal. 
  
Representation was received in objection to the application by Mr Hone which included 
the following: 
 

Stating he had spent 11 years as a Project Manager for Highways England Mr Hone 
advised that he had no issue with the proposal to development of the site, as long as it 
was in keeping with the surrounding area; that construction of the site met the proper 
criteria and that the neighbours were fully consulted and given consideration:  He did 
state however he had serious concerns with the reserved matters and the decision 
made in respect of access.  
He advised committee that he had written to the Planning Inspector citing his concern 
that the decision made had not taken into consideration the concerns raised in respect 
of the proposed access to the site and the issues of vehicles meeting cyclists and 
pedestrians. Mr Hone stated that when an alternative access to a site was available, it 
should be taken into consideration and that both the Inspector and Lincolnshire County 
Council should have undertaken a site visit to view the proposed site and alternative 
one. 
 

The Legal Officer provided a point of clarification for members following Mr Hones’ 
representation stating that there was nothing committee could do about the access to 
the site:  He referenced the decision of the Inspector in point 4 of Appeal A in that ‘The 
development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following 
approved plans: J1468-PL-01 Rev A03 (insofar as it delineates the access and site 
boundaries) and J1468-PL-02 Rev A01. 
 

It was moved by Councillor Jonathan Noble and seconded by Councillor Brian Rush that 
the application be refused contrary to Officer recommendation as it contravened Policy 2 
(development) and Policy 3 (design of new development) of the Local Plan. 
 
In Favour: 5.       Against 7.     Abstentions: 0 
 

The motion fell. 
 
It was moved by Councillor Michael Cooper and seconded by Councillor Tom Ashton 
that the application be granted in line with officer recommendation, subject to the 
conditions and reasons therein and subject to the addition of a further condition to 
restrict Permitted Development Rights on Plots 1 and 5 within the application relating to 
both dormer windows and roof lights. 
 
In Favour: 7.       Against 5.     Abstentions: 0 

Page 2



Planning Committee 
28 May 2019 

 

 
RESOLVED:   That committee grant the application in line with officer recommendation 
subject to the following conditions and reasons: 
 
1  The development hereby approved shall be carried out in accordance with the 

following approved plans: 
 

 Location  plan and block plan ref 19/01/HRH/pr-01 rev B 

 Proposed site plan ref- 19/HRH/Pr-02 rev C 

 Plot 1 -Proposed floor and roof plans ref 19/01/HRH/Pr-03 rev B 

 Plot 2 -Proposed floor and roof plans ref 19/01/HRH/Pr-06 rev A 

 Plot 3 –Proposed floor and roof plans ref 19/01/HRH/Pr-09 rev A 

 Plot 4 –Proposed floor and roof plans ref 19/01/HRH/Pr-11 rev A 

 Plot 5 – Proposed floor plan and roof plans ref 19/01/HRH/Pr -13 rev B 

 Plot 1 Proposed elevations ref 19/01/HRH/Pr-04 

 Plot 2 –Proposed elevations ref 19/HRH/Pr-07  

 Plot 3- Proposed elevations ref 19/01/HRH/Pr-10 

 Plot 4- Proposed elevations ref19/01/HRH/Pr-12 

 Plot 5- Proposed elevations ref 19/01/HRH/Pr-14 

 Plot 2-Proposed elevations and Proposed detached garage- plots 2 and 4 ref 
19/01/HRH/Pr-08 

 Proposed detached garage –plot 1 ref 19/01/HRH/Pr-05 
 

 Reason:  To ensure the development is undertaken in accordance with the approved 
details and to accord with Policies 2 and 3 of the South East Lincolnshire Local Plan 
(2011-2036). 

 
2   Notwithstanding the submitted details, before any development takes place above 

ground level, full details of hard and soft landscaping works shall have been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority.  The scheme 
shall include: 
 

a) boundary treatment 
b) hard surface materials 
c) minor structures 
d) planting schedules (species, sizes densities) 
e) existing trees to be retained/removed 

 

Reason:  In the interests of visual amenity and in accordance with Section 197 of the 
1990 Act which requires Local Planning Authorities to ensure, where appropriate, 
adequate provision is made for the preservation or planting of trees, and to ensure 
that the approved scheme is implemented satisfactorily.  The condition accords with 
Policies 2 and 3 of the South East Lincolnshire Local Plan (2011-2036). 
 

3 All landscape works shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details 
within 6 months of the date of the first occupation of any building or completion of 
development whichever is the sooner. Any trees, plants, grassed areas which within 
a period of 5 years from the date of planting die, are removed or become seriously 
damaged or diseased shall be replaced in the first available planting season with 
others of similar size species or quality. 

 

 Reason:  In the interests of visual amenity and in accordance with Section 197 of the 
1990 Act which requires Local Planning Authorities to ensure, where appropriate, 

Page 3



Planning Committee 
28 May 2019 
 

adequate provision is made for the preservation or planting of trees, and to ensure 
that the approved scheme is implemented satisfactorily. The condition accords with 
the objectives of policies 2 and 3 of the South East Lincolnshire Local Plan (2011-
2036). 
 

4  Before occupation of any of the dwellings hereby approved details of the external 
lighting including future maintenance and management to be provided along the 
private drive shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. The works shall be carried as approved before occupation of any dwelling 
house or in accordance with timescales to be agreed in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. 
 

Reason: In the interests of residential amenity, safety and crime prevention and to 
accord with the objectives of Policies 2 and 3 of the South East Lincolnshire Local 
Plan (2011-2036). 
 

5  Prior to the commencement of the development hereby approved, a construction 
management plan shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. The construction management plan shall prescribe how the 
construction of the site will be phased, where wheel wash facilities will be provided, 
hours of working, where accommodation and welfare facilities will be provided, where 
site vehicles and vehicles of site personnel will be parked and where materials will be 
stored and delivered on site. Construction of the permitted development will be 
undertaken in accordance with the approved construction management plan. 
 

Reason:  In the interests of amenity and the safety and highway safety and to accord 
with the objectives of policies 2, 3 and 30 of the South East Lincolnshire Local Plan 
(2011-2036). This is a pre-commencement condition due to the fact that the 
management of plant, site equipment etc needs to be agreed prior to the 
commencement of any development to ensure that neighbour’s amenity and safety 
are respected 
 

6    Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted 
Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any Order revoking or re-enacting that Order 
with or without modification), no development within Class B or Class C of Part 1 of 
Schedule 2 shall take place at Plots 1 and 5. 

 
           Reason:  (In the interests of the residential amenity of neighbouring residents in 

accordance with Policies 2 and 3 of the South East  Lincolnshire Local Plan 2011-
2036. 
   
 

Note to applicant: You should be aware that conditions 1-9 attached to outline permission 
ref B/17/0359 apply to this development. 
 

In determining this application the authority has taken account of the guidance in paragraph 
38 of the National Planning Policy Framework 2019 in order to seek to secure sustainable 
development that improves the economic, social and environmental conditions of the 
Borough. 
           
 

 
 

Page 4



Planning Committee 
28 May 2019 

 

6   APPEAL DECISION REPORT 
 

Committee noted the report 
 
7   PERMITTED DEVELOPMENT - UPDATE REPORT. 

 
Committee noted the report. 
 
8   5 YEAR HOUSING LAND SUPPLY 

 
Committee noted the report. 
 
9   DELEGATED DECISION LIST 

 
Committee noted the report 
 
10   PLANNING COMMITTEE REPORT YEAR 2018 - 2019. 

 
RESOLVED:  That committee agree to refer the report to Full Council for approval and 
publication on the Council’s website. 
 
 
 
 
 

The Meeting ended at 11.00 am 
 

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



PLANNING APPLICATION B/19/0242

Installation of a customised navigation Buoy as a
sculptural artwork

Promontory Opposite Black Sluice, London Road
PE21 7RB

Applicant:
Luke Skerritt, Boston Borough Council

Page 7

Agenda Item 1



P
age 8



BOSTON BOROUGH COUNCIL

Planning Committee – 23 July 2019

Reference No: B/19/0242

Expiry Date: 07-August-2019
Extension of Time: n/a

Application Type: Full Planning Permission(s)
Proposal: Installation of a customised navigation Buoy as a sculptural artwork

Site: Promontory Opposite Black Sluice, London Road PE21 7RB

Applicant: Luke Skerritt, Boston Borough Council
Agent: v/a

Ward: Skirbeck Parish: n/a

Case Officer: Myles Joyce Third Party Reps:

Link to Application: B/19/0242

Recommendation: GRANT

Page 9

https://www.mybostonuk.com/planning-application-search/B/19/0242


1.0 Reason for Report

1.1 This application is proposed by Boston Borough Council as part of a wider public
realm improvement project, as such the Growth Manager considers that it is of
sufficient public interest that it should be presented to the Planning Committee.

2.0 Application and site description

2.1 The application site is the promontory opposite Black Sluice. It lies within The Port
Estate Restricted Use Site as set out in the SE Lincs Local Plan. The site is not far
from Skirbeck Quarter a mixed Employment and residential area. A cycle route runs
on the opposite side of London Road.

2.2 It is proposed to erect an ornamental buoy 4.1 metres high with a diameter of 2.4
metres. With artwork the final dimensions will indicatively be 4.5m high by 4.5m in
diameter. The artwork will have an increased width dimension due to is design and
being placed at an angle. It is noted that the design is indicative only of the final
work and not a full rendition of the final design which will evolve throughout, and in
response to the delivery phases of the project. The buoy subject of this application
is part of a wider project of 5 buoys in various locations across the town to enhance
the public realm.

2.3 The bouys will be set in place by discrete reinforced concrete pads in most cases
with steel anchors. It is not envisaged that this will provide any meaninfgul additional
elevation rather to provide appropriate foundation and anchoring.

3.0 Relevant History

3.1 The application is one of five submitted for the installation of a customised
navigation Buoys as a sculptural artworks. The other applications are also before
you for determination as follows:

§ B/19/0243 Installation of a customised navigation Buoy as a sculptural
artwork Coach Station Roundabout, Rosegarth Street Boston
§ B/19/0244 Installation of a customised navigation Buoy as a sculptural
artwork Land adjacent to Haven Bridge, Buoy Yard Car Park, Boston
§ B/19/0245 Installation of a customised navigation Buoy as a sculptural
artwork Land adjacent to Haven Bridge, South Square, Boston
§ B/19/0246 Installation of a customised navigation Buoy as a sculptural
artwork, Adjacent to Art Deco Garden, Central Park, Boston

4.0 Relevant Policy

4.1 The Development Plan now consists of the South East Lincolnshire Local Plan
(2011-2036) (i.e. SELLP) which was adopted by the Boston Borough Council and
the South Holland District Council on the 8th March 2019. The relevant policies are
considered to be as follows:

4.2 Policy 7 Improving SE Lincs Employment Portfolio with regard to Restricted Use
Employment Sites states they are reserved for employment uses directly
associated with the Port Estate Boston a 29.8 hectare site where uses should be
B1, B2, B8 port related uses.

Page 10



4.3 Policy 2: Development Management requires development to be inter alia
sustainable development of a size, scale, layout and density which accords with the
surrounding area, pays attention to quality of design, maximises the use of
sustainable materials and resources and impacts and enhances areas of natural
habitats or historical buildings and heritage assets.

4.4 Policy 3: Design of New Development All development will create distinctive places
through the use of high quality and inclusive design and layout and, where
appropriate, make innovative use of local traditional styles and materials. Design
which is inappropriate to the local area, or which fails to maximise opportunities for
improving the character and quality of an area, will not be acceptable.

4.5 Development proposals will demonstrate how the following issues, where they are
relevant to the proposal, will be secured by creating a sense of place by
complementing and enhancing designated and non-designated heritage assets;
historic street patterns; respecting the density, scale, visual closure, landmarks,
views, massing of neighbouring buildings and the surrounding area and the
appropriate use or reuse of historic buildings.

4.6 Policy 4 : Approach to Flood Risk states that development proposed within an area
at risk of flooding (Flood Zones 2 and 3 of the Environment Agency’s flood map or
at risk during a breach or overtopping scenario as shown on the flood hazard and
depths maps in the Strategic Flood Risk Assessment) will be permitted, where it
can be demonstrated that there are no other sites available at a lower risk of
flooding and demonstrates that the proposal will not increase risk elsewhere and
ensures suitable access is safeguarded for the maintenance of water resources,
drainage and flood risk management infrastructure.

4.7 Policy 9: Promoting a Stronger Visitor Economy supports proposals for tourism and
visitor development which utilise and enrich the natural and built environment and
existing attractions of South East Lincolnshire to the benefit of the local economy,
visitors and local communities will be supported within the boundaries of
settlements identified in Policy 1 as well as other ancillary development slinked to
the above uses. Outside these settlements, small-scale development to support the
visitor economy, including farm diversification, equine development and fishing
lakes, will be supported provided that proposals do not conflict with neighbouring
land uses; are in keeping with the character of the locality; and demonstrate a
functional link with an existing rural attraction or farm enterprise.

4.8 Policy 25: Supporting the Vitality and Viability of Boston and Spalding Town Centres
Opportunities to support and extend the offer of the town centres as destinations
through enhancing existing sites and ensuring changes to premises have regard to
the significance of heritage assets and the special interests of the Conservation
Areas and their settings and enhancing the public realm through improvements to
public spaces, accessibility and signage and providing interpretation and
promotional information.

4.9 Policy 29: The Historic Environment seeks to preserve or enhance the historic
environment will be conserved and, where appropriate, enhanced. Development
proposals will conserve and enhance the character and appearance of designated
and non-designated heritage assets. Proposals that affect the setting of a Listed
Building will be supported where they preserve or better reveal the significance of
the Listed Building.

Page 11



4.10 Proposals within, affecting the setting of, or affecting views into or out of, a
Conservation Area should preserve (and enhance or reinforce, as appropriate)
features that contribute positively to the area’s character, appearance and setting.

4.11 Policy 32: Community, Health and Well-being states that development shall
contribute to: the creation of socially cohesive and inclusive communities; reducing
health inequalities; and improving the community’s health and well-being
encouraging inter alia community use.

4.12 National Planning Policy Framework (2019)

The NPPF is a material consideration in decision-taking. Relevant sections of the
NPPF that are relevant to this application are:

§ Section 2 : Achieving sustainable development
§ Section 8: Promoting healthy and safe communities
§ Section 12: Achieving well designed places
§ Section 14: Meeting climate change, flooding and coastal change
§ Section 16: Conserving and Enhancing the Historic Environment

5.0 Representations

5.1 No letters of representation have been received to date.

6.0 Consultations

6.1 County LLFA has not responded.

6.2 Black Sluice Internal Drainage Board has not responded.

6.3 Building Control has not responded.

7.0 Planning Issues and Discussions

7.1 The key planning issues in the determination of this application are:

§ The principle of development having regard to development plan policies.
§ Impact on residential amenity.
§ Impact on the character and appearance of the area
§ Supporting a visitor economy.
§ Flood risk and drainage.

The principle of development having regard to development plan policies

7.2 The application site lies within the Port Estate Boston a 29.8 hectare site where
uses should be B1, B2, B8 port related uses. However the proposed development
is a piece of ornamental art which should be judged against Policy 9: Promoting a
Stronger Visitor Economy as this supports proposals for tourism and visitor
development which utilise and enrich the natural and built environment and existing
attractions of South East Lincolnshire to the benefit of the local economy, visitors
and local communities. Whilst outside of the Boston Settlement Boundary small-
scale development to support the visitor economy will be supported provided that
proposals do not conflict with neighbouring land uses; are in keeping with the

Page 12



character of the locality; and demonstrate a functional link with an existing rural
attraction or farm enterprise.

7.3 Given the small-scale nature of the proposal and its location there would be no
detrimental impact upon the employment characteristics of the port. As an intended
visitor attraction it is considered that the proposal is acceptable in principle as it
accords with Policy 9 (of the SELLP and part 8 of the NPPF (2019).

Impact on residential amenity

7.4 The buoy will be located a considerable distance from the nearest residential
property and it is therefore considered not to have a material impact on the
residential amenity of their occupiers.

Impact on the character and appearance of the area

7.5 Each of the five buoys (and associated art) are unique but representative of their
original maritime environments. The sculptural structure surrounding the buoy will
incorporate laser cut steel and potentially some reused cabling associated with the
buoys.

7.6 It is considered that the location on the promontory overlooking the Haven, the Port
of Boston and toward the new barrier will reinforce the strong maritime connections
of the project and prompt curiosity in the cultural offer of the town.

7.7 The design concept is indicative only of the final work and not a full rendition of the
final design which will evolve throughout, and in response to the delivery phases of
the project. The concept will not change substantively.

7.8 Due to the location of this buoy it is anticipated that a reinforced concrete raft will
be necessary but should this be required it would be discrete and not change the
overall look of the installation.

7.9 Whilst the ornamental artwork is indicative, the essential dimensions of the buoy
and its means of being affixed to are the key components of the scheme with any
final artistic work being ancillary to the proposed development.

7.10 It is considered that the proposal would be a striking visual concept, which would
have a positive impact on the character and appearance of the area in accordance
with Policies 2 and 3 of the SELLP and Part 12 (Design) of the NPPF.

Flood risk and drainage

7.11 The site is within Flood Zone 3. Policy 4: Approach to Flood Risk states that
development proposed within an area at risk of flooding (Flood Zones 2 and 3 of
the Environment Agency’s flood map will be permitted, where it can be
demonstrated that there are no other sites available at a lower risk of flooding and
demonstrates that the proposal will not increase risk elsewhere and ensures
suitable access is safeguarded for the maintenance of water resources, drainage
and flood risk management infrastructure.

7.12 The proposal is for limited changes to the existing surface with minor works to
anchor the buoys in place. It is considered that the buoys would have a neutral

Page 13



impact on the flood risk to the site or surrounding area and as such is considered
to accord with Policy 4 and the NPPF.

8.0 Summary and Conclusion

8.1 The principle of development is accepted as a work of public art and a visitor
attraction and it is considered that it would enhance the visual appearance of the
surrounding area and provide an attraction which would have potential economic
benefit through local spend to the immediate surrounding area. The proposal also
forms part of a wider project to enhance the public realm. It is therefore considered
that the proposal will provide some social and economic benefits.

8.2 The impact on flood risk is considered to be neutral and therefore there is no
negative environmental impact. Therefore, the development demonstrates
sustainable development and as such accords with the core principle of the NPPF.

8.3 The benefits of the proposed development are set out above and the proposal
accords with Policies 2, 3, 4 and 9 of the SELLP and Parts 2,8,12 and 14 of the
revised NPPF.

9.0 Recommendation: GRANT

9.1 It is recommended that this application is approved subject to the conditions set out
below.

1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three
years from the date of this permission.

Reason: Required to be imposed pursuant to Section 51 of the Planning and
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

2. The development hereby approved shall be carried out in accordance with the
Approved specifications set out in the “Planning Design Statement Boston Quays
Scheme”

Reason: To ensure the development is undertaken in accordance with the
approved details and to accord with Policies 2 and 3 of the South East Lincolnshire
Local Plan (2011-2036).

Informative

In determining this application the authority has taken account of the guidance in
paragraph 38 of the National Planning Policy Framework 2019 in order to seek to secure
sustainable development that improves the economic, social and environmental conditions
of the Borough.

Mike Gildersleeves
Growth Manager

Page 14



PLANNING APPLICATION B/19/0243

Installation of a customised navigation Buoy as a
sculptural artwork

Coach Station Roundabout, St Georges Road,
Boston

Applicant:
Luke Skerritt, Boston Borough Council

Page 15

Agenda Item 2



P
age 16



BOSTON BOROUGH COUNCIL

Planning Committee – 23 July 2019

Reference No: B/19/0243

Expiry Date: 07-August-2019
Extension of Time: n/a

Application Type: Full Planning Permission(s)
Proposal: Installation of a customised navigation Buoy as a sculptural artwork

Site: Coach Station Roundabout, St Georges Road, Boston

Applicant: Luke Skerritt, Boston Borough Council
Agent: v/a

Ward: Station Parish: n/a

Case Officer: Myles Joyce Third Party Reps:

Link to Application: B/19/0243

Recommendation: GRANT

Page 17

https://www.mybostonuk.com/planning-application-search/B/19/0243


1.0 Reason for Report

1.1 This application is proposed by Boston Borough Council as part of a wider public
realm improvement project, as such the Growth Manager considers that it is of
sufficient public interest that it should be presented to the Planning Committee.

2.0 Application and site description

2.1 It is proposed to erect a buoy 4.2 metres high and 3 metres in diameter. With
artworks the final dimension are expected to be 5.0 metres high by 5.0 metres in
diameter.

2.2 The artwork will have an increased width dimension due to its design and being
placed at an angle.

2.3 It is a concept built on the uniqueness of each buoy and flotsam and jetsam
associated with their original maritime environments. The sculptural structure
surrounding the buoy will incorporate laser cut steel and potentially some reused
cabling associated with the buoys. The buoy subject of this application is part of a
wider project of 5 buoys in various locations across the town to enhance the public
realm.

2.4 It will be located on the roundabout adjacent to the Coach Station. Due to the
location of this buoy it is anticipated that a reinforced concrete raft will be necessary
but this will be discrete and not change the overall look of the installation.

2.5 The site lies within Boston Conservation Area.

3.0 Relevant History

3.1 The application is one of five submitted for the installation of a customised
navigation Buoys as a sculptural artworks. The other applications are also before
you for determination as follows:

§ B/19/0242 Installation of a customised navigation Buoy as a sculptural
artwork Promontory Opposite Black Sluice, Boston
§ B/19/0244 Installation of a customised navigation Buoy as a sculptural
artwork Land adjacent to Haven Bridge, Buoy Yard Car Park, Boston
§ B/19/0245 Installation of a customised navigation Buoy as a sculptural
artwork Land adjacent to Haven Bridge, South Square, Boston
§ B/19/0246 Installation of a customised navigation Buoy as a sculptural
artwork, Adjacent to Art Deco Garden, Central Park, Boston

4.0 Relevant Policy

4.1 The Development Plan now consists of the South East Lincolnshire Local Plan
(2011-2036) (i.e. SELLP) which was adopted by the Boston Borough Council and
the South Holland District Council on the 8th March 2019.

4.2 Policy 2: Development Management requires development to be inter alia
sustainable development of a size, scale, layout and density which accords with the
surrounding area, pays attention to quality of design, maximises the use of

Page 18



sustainable materials and resources and impacts and enhances areas of natural
habitats or historical buildings and heritage assets.

4.3 Policy 3: Design of New Development All development will create distinctive places
through the use of high quality and inclusive design and layout and, where
appropriate, make innovative use of local traditional styles and materials. Design
which is inappropriate to the local area, or which fails to maximise opportunities for
improving the character and quality of an area, will not be acceptable.

4.4 Development proposals will demonstrate how the following issues, where they are
relevant to the proposal, will be secured by creating a sense of place by
complementing and enhancing designated and non-designated heritage assets;
historic street patterns; respecting the density, scale, visual closure, landmarks,
views, massing of neighbouring buildings and the surrounding area and the
appropriate use or reuse of historic buildings.

4.5 Policy 4 : Approach to Flood Risk states that development proposed within an area
at risk of flooding (Flood Zones 2 and 3 of the Environment Agency’s flood map or
at risk during a breach or overtopping scenario as shown on the flood hazard and
depths maps in the Strategic Flood Risk Assessment) will be permitted, where it
can be demonstrated that there are no other sites available at a lower risk of
flooding and demonstrates that the proposal will not increase risk elsewhere and
ensures suitable access is safeguarded for the maintenance of water resources,
drainage and flood risk management infrastructure.

4.6 Policy 9: Promoting a Stronger Visitor Economy supports proposals for tourism and
visitor development which utilise and enrich the natural and built environment and
existing attractions of South East Lincolnshire to the benefit of the local economy,
visitors and local communities will be supported within the boundaries of
settlements identified in Policy 1 as well as other ancillary development slinked to
the above uses. Outside these settlements, small-scale development to support the
visitor economy, including farm diversification, equine development and fishing
lakes, will be supported provided that proposals do not conflict with neighbouring
land uses; are in keeping with the character of the locality; and demonstrate a
functional link with an existing rural attraction or farm enterprise.

4.7 Policy 25: Supporting the Vitality and Viability of Boston and Spalding Town Centres
Opportunities to support and extend the offer of the town centres as destinations
through enhancing existing sites and ensuring changes to premises have regard to
the significance of heritage assets and the special interests of the Conservation
Areas and their settings and enhancing the public realm through improvements to
public spaces, accessibility and signage and providing interpretation and
promotional information.

4.8 Policy 29: The Historic Environment seeks to preserve or enhance the historic
environment will be conserved and, where appropriate, enhanced. Development
proposals will conserve and enhance the character and appearance of designated
and non-designated heritage assets. Proposals that affect the setting of a Listed
Building will be supported where they preserve or better reveal the significance of
the Listed Building.

4.9 Proposals within, affecting the setting of, or affecting views into or out of, a
Conservation Area should preserve (and enhance or reinforce, as appropriate)
features that contribute positively to the area’s character, appearance and setting.

Page 19



4.10 Policy 32: Community, Health and Well-being states that development shall
contribute to: the creation of socially-cohesive and inclusive communities; reducing
health inequalities; and improving the community’s health and well-being
encouraging inter alia community use.

4.11 National Planning Policy Framework (2019)

The NPPF is a material consideration in decision-taking. Relevant sections of the
NPPF that are relevant to this application are:

§ Section 2 : Achieving sustainable development
§ Section 8: Promoting healthy and safe communities
§ Section 12: Achieving well designed places
§ Section 14: Meeting climate change, flooding and coastal change
§ Section 16: Conserving and Enhancing the Historic Environment

4.12 Town & Country Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990

S72 of the 'Act' sets out the Local Planning Authority has a general duty to give
special attention to the desirability of preserving or enhancing the character or
appearance of Conservation areas.

5.0 Representations

5.1 No letters of representation have been received

6.0 Consultations

6.1 County LLFA have not responded

6.2 Black Sluice Internal Drainage Board no objections

6.3 Building Control have not responded

7.0 Planning Issues and Discussions

7.1 The key planning issues in the determination of this application are:

§ The principle of development having regard to development plan policies.
§ Impact on residential amenity.
§ Impact on the character and appearance of the Conservation Area.
§ Supporting a visitor economy.
§ Flood risk and drainage.

The principle of development having regard to development plan policies

7.2 The application site lies within the Boston Conservation Area and the town centre
boundary. Developments should support and extend the office of the town centre
as a visitor destination and have regard to heritage assets and special interests of
conservation areas. As a piece of ornamental public art it is considered that the
development provides a statement of the town and its heritage and a visitor
attraction and is considered acceptable in principle.

Page 20



7.3 The proposal would be an attractive piece of public art which would enhance the
visitor experience to Boston in accordance with Policies 9 and 32 of the SELLP and
part 8 of the revised NPPF.

Impact on residential amenity

7.4 The site lies within the Boston Bus Station and is a significant distance from nearby
residences. As such any impact on any residential amenity is not considered to be
material.

Impact on the character and appearance of the Conservation Area

7.5 The design concept is indicative only of the final work and not a full rendition of the
final design which will evolve throughout, and in response to the delivery phases of
the project. The concept will not change substantively.

7.6 Due to the location of this buoy it is anticipated that a reinforced concrete raft will
be necessary but should this be required it would be discrete and not change the
overall look of the installation.

7.7 Whilst the ornamental artwork is indicative, the essential dimensions of the buoy
and its means of being affixed to are the key components of the scheme with any
final artistic work being ancillary to the proposed development.

7.8 It is considered that the proposal as a piece of public art would enhance the
character and appearance of the Boston Conservation Area and as such is
considered to be in accordance with Policies 2 and 29 (The Historic Environment)
of the SELLP and Parts 12 and 16 of the Revised NPPF, as well as meeting the
requirements set out in S72 of the Town & Country Planning (Listed Buildings and
Conservation Areas) Act 1990 .

Flood risk and drainage

7.9 The site is within Flood Zone 3. Policy 4: Approach to Flood Risk states that
development proposed within an area at risk of flooding (Flood Zones 2 and 3 of
the Environment Agency’s flood map will be permitted, where it can be
demonstrated that there are no other sites available at a lower risk of flooding and
demonstrates that the proposal will not increase risk elsewhere and ensures
suitable access is safeguarded for the maintenance of water resources, drainage
and flood risk management infrastructure.

7.10 The proposal is for limited changes to the existing surface with minor works to
anchor the buoys in place. It is considered that the buoys would have a neutral
impact on the flood risk to the site or surrounding area and as such is considered
to accord with Policy 4 and Part 14 of the NPPF.

8.0 Summary and Conclusion

8.1 The principle of development is accepted as a work of public art and a visitor
attraction and it is considered that it would enhance the visual appearance of the
surrounding area and provide an attraction which would have potential economic
benefit through local spend to the immediate surrounding area. The proposal also
forms part of a wider project to enhance the public realm. It is therefore considered
that the proposal will provide some social and economic benefits.

Page 21



8.2 The impact on flood risk is considered to be neutral and therefore there is no
negative environmental impact. Therefore, the development demonstrates
sustainable development and as such accords with the core principle of the NPPF.

8.3 The impact on the character and appearance of the Conservation Area and the
Town Centre is considered to be beneficial, providing a point of interest, and
enhancing a visitor experience thus a further modest benefit.

8.4 The benefits of the proposed development are set out above and the proposal
accords with Policies 2, 3, 4, 9, 25 and 32 of the SELLP and Parts 2,8,12, 14 and
16 of the NPPF.

9.0 Recommendation: GRANT

9.1 It is recommended that this application is approved subject to the conditions set out
below.

1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three
years from the date of this permission.

Reason: Required to be imposed pursuant to Section 51 of the Planning and
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

2. The development hereby approved shall be carried out in accordance with the
Approved specifications set out in the “Planning Design Statement Boston Quays
Scheme”

Reason: To ensure the development is undertaken in accordance with the
approved details and to accord with Policies 2 and 3 of the South East Lincolnshire
Local Plan (2011-2036).

Informative

In determining this application the authority has taken account of the guidance in
paragraph 38 of the National Planning Policy Framework 2019 in order to seek to secure
sustainable development that improves the economic, social and environmental conditions
of the Borough.

Mike Gildersleeves
Growth Manager

Page 22



PLANNING APPLICATION B/19/0244

Installation of a customised navigation Buoy as a
sculptural artwork

Land adjacent to Haven Bridge, Buoy Yard Car
Park, Boston

Applicant:
Luke Skerritt, Boston Borough Council

Page 23

Agenda Item 3



P
age 24



BOSTON BOROUGH COUNCIL

Planning Committee – 23 July 2019

Reference No: B/19/0244

Expiry Date: 07-August-2019
Extension of Time: n/a

Application Type: Full Planning Permission(s)
Proposal: Installation of a customised navigation Buoy as a sculptural artwork

Site: Land adjacent to Haven Bridge, Buoy Yard Car Park, Boston

Applicant: Luke Skerritt, Boston Borough Council
Agent: v/a

Ward: Skirbeck Parish: n/a

Case Officer: Myles Joyce Third Party Reps:

Link to Application: B/19/0244

Recommendation: GRANT

Page 25

https://www.mybostonuk.com/planning-application-search/B/19/0244


1.0 Reason for Report

1.1 This application is proposed by Boston Borough Council as part of a wider public
realm improvement project, as such the Growth Manager considers that it is of
sufficient public interest that it should be presented to the Planning Committee.

2.0 Application and site description

2.1 It is proposed to erect an ornamental Buoy some 3.6 metres high by 3.0 metres
wide. With artwork it is anticipated that its final dimensions will be 5.5 metres high
by 4.5 metres in diameter.

2.2 The artwork will have an increased height dimension due to its design being
truncated, inverted, secured to a reinforced concrete footing and then with metallic
floral design applied to the upper surface, please note that the design is indicative
only of the final work and not a full rendition of the final design which will evolve
throughout, and in response to the delivery phases of the project. The buoy subject
of this application is part of a wider project of 5 buoys in various locations across
the town to enhance the public realm.

2.3 This rendition uses the flower graphics from the original submission superimposed
on the selected buoy.

2.4 The site is located south of Haven Bridge adjacent to Buoy Car Park, and the Town
Centre boundary lies on the opposite side of the road. The site falls within the
Conservation Area.

3.0 Relevant History

3.1 The application is one of five submitted for the installation of a customised
navigation Buoys as a sculptural artworks. The other applications are also before
you for determination as follows:

· B/19/0242 Installation of a customised navigation Buoy as a sculptural artwork
Promontory Opposite Black Sluice, Boston

· B/19/0243 Installation of a customised navigation Buoy as a sculptural artwork
Land at Bus Station Roundabout St Georges Road Boston

· B/19/0245 Installation of a customised navigation Buoy as a sculptural artwork
Land adjacent to Haven Bridge, South Square, Boston

· B/19/0246 Installation of a customised navigation Buoy as a sculptural artwork,
Adjacent to Art Deco Garden, Central Park, Boston

4.0 Relevant Policy

4.1 The Development Plan now consists of the South East Lincolnshire Local Plan
(2011-2036) (i.e. SELLP) which was adopted by the Boston Borough Council and
the South Holland District Council on the 8th March 2019.

4.2 Policy 2: Development Management requires development to be inter alia
sustainable development of a size, scale, layout and density, which accords with
the surrounding area, pays attention to quality of design, maximises the use of

Page 26



sustainable materials and resources and impacts and enhances areas of natural
habitats or historical buildings and heritage assets.

4.3 Policy 3: Design of New Development All development will create distinctive places
through the use of high quality and inclusive design and layout and, where
appropriate, make innovative use of local traditional styles and materials. Design
which is inappropriate to the local area, or which fails to maximise opportunities for
improving the character and quality of an area, will not be acceptable.

4.4 Development proposals will demonstrate how the following issues, where they are
relevant to the proposal, will be secured by creating a sense of place by
complementing and enhancing designated and non-designated heritage assets;
historic street patterns; respecting the density, scale, visual closure, landmarks,
views, massing of neighbouring buildings and the surrounding area and the
appropriate use or reuse of historic buildings.

4.5 Policy 4 : Approach to Flood Risk states that development proposed within an area
at risk of flooding (Flood Zones 2 and 3 of the Environment Agency’s flood map or
at risk during a breach or overtopping scenario as shown on the flood hazard and
depths maps in the Strategic Flood Risk Assessment) will be permitted, where it
can be demonstrated that there are no other sites available at a lower risk of
flooding and demonstrates that the proposal will not increase risk elsewhere and
ensures suitable access is safeguarded for the maintenance of water resources,
drainage and flood risk management infrastructure.

4.6 Policy 9: Promoting a Stronger Visitor Economy supports proposals for tourism and
visitor development which utilise and enrich the natural and built environment and
existing attractions of South East Lincolnshire to the benefit of the local economy,
visitors and local communities will be supported within the boundaries of
settlements identified in Policy 1 as well as other ancillary development slinked to
the above uses. Outside these settlements, small-scale development to support the
visitor economy, including farm diversification, equine development and fishing
lakes, will be supported provided that proposals do not conflict with neighbouring
land uses; are in keeping with the character of the locality; and demonstrate a
functional link with an existing rural attraction or farm enterprise.

4.7 Policy 25: Supporting the Vitality and Viability of Boston and Spalding Town Centres
Opportunities to support and extend the offer of the town centres as destinations
through enhancing existing sites and ensuring changes to premises have regard to
the significance of heritage assets and the special interests of the Conservation
Areas and their settings and enhancing the public realm through improvements to
public spaces, accessibility and signage and providing interpretation and
promotional information.

4.8 Policy 29: The Historic Environment seeks to preserve or enhance the historic
environment will be conserved and, where appropriate, enhanced. Development
proposals will conserve and enhance the character and appearance of designated
and non-designated heritage assets. Proposals that affect the setting of a Listed
Building will be supported where they preserve or better reveal the significance of
the Listed Building.

4.9 Proposals within, affecting the setting of, or affecting views into or out of, a
Conservation Area should preserve (and enhance or reinforce, as appropriate)
features that contribute positively to the area’s character, appearance and setting.

Page 27



4.10 Policy 32: Community, Health and Well-being states that development shall
contribute to: the creation of socially-cohesive and inclusive communities; reducing
health inequalities; and improving the community’s health and well-being
encouraging inter alia community use.

4.11 National Planning Policy Framework (2019)

The NPPF is a material consideration in decision-taking. Relevant sections of the
NPPF that are relevant to this application are:

§ Section 2 : Achieving sustainable development
§ Section 8: Promoting healthy and safe communities
§ Section 12: Achieving well designed places
§ Section 14: Meeting climate change, flooding and coastal change
§ Section 16: Conserving and Enhancing the Historic Environment

4.12 Town & Country Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990

S72 of the 'Act' sets out the Local Planning Authority has a general duty to give
special attention to the desirability of preserving or enhancing the character or
appearance of Conservation areas.

5.0 Representations

5.1 No letters of representation have been received

6.0 Consultations

6.1 County LLFA have not responded

6.2 Black Sluice Internal Drainage Board no objections

6.3 Building Control have not responded.

7.0 Planning Issues and Discussions

7.1 The key planning issues in the determination of this application are:

§ The principle of development having regard to development plan policies.
§ Impact on residential amenity.
§ Impact on the character and appearance of the area
§ Supporting a visitor economy.
§ Flood risk and drainage.

The principle of development having regard to development plan policies

7.2 The application site lies within the Boston Conservation Area and just outside of the
town centre boundary. Developments should support and extend the office of the
town centre as a visitor destination and have regard to heritage assets and special
interests of conservation areas. As a piece of ornamental public art, it is considered
that the development provides a statement of the town and its heritage and a visitor
attraction and is considered acceptable in principle.

Page 28



7.3 The proposal would be an attractive piece of public art which would enhance the
visitor experience to Boston in accordance with Policies 9 and 32 of the SELLP and
part 8 of the revised NPPF.

Impact on residential amenity

7.4 The site lies a considerable distance from nearby residences. As such any impact
on any residential amenity is not considered to be material.

Impact on the character and appearance of the Conservation Area

7.5 The design concept is indicative only of the final work and not a full rendition of the
final design, which will evolve throughout, and in response to the delivery phases
of the project. The concept will not change substantively.

7.6 Due to the location of this buoy it is anticipated that a reinforced concrete raft will
be necessary but should this be required it would be discrete and not change the
overall look of the installation.

7.7 Whilst the ornamental artwork is indicative, the essential dimensions of the buoy
and its means of being affixed to are the key components of the scheme with any
final artistic work being ancillary to the proposed development.

7.8 It is considered that the proposal as a piece of public art would enhance the
character and appearance of the Boston Conservation Area and as such is
considered to be in accordance with Policies 2 and 29 (The Historic Environment)
of the SELLP and Parts 12 and 16 of the Revised NPPF, as well as meeting the
requirements set out in S72 of the Town & Country Planning (Listed Buildings and
Conservation Areas) Act 1990.

Flood risk and drainage

7.9 The site is within Flood Zone 3. Policy 4: Approach to Flood Risk states that
development proposed within an area at risk of flooding (Flood Zones 2 and 3 of
the Environment Agency’s flood map will be permitted, where it can be
demonstrated that there are no other sites available at a lower risk of flooding and
demonstrates that the proposal will not increase risk elsewhere and ensures
suitable access is safeguarded for the maintenance of water resources, drainage
and flood risk management infrastructure.

7.10 The proposal is for limited changes to the existing surface with minor works to
anchor the buoys in place. It is considered that the buoys would have a neutral
impact on the flood risk to the site or surrounding area and as such is considered
to accord with Policy 4 and Part 14 of the NPPF.

8.0 Summary and Conclusion

8.1 The principle of development is accepted as a work of public art and a visitor
attraction and it is considered that it would enhance the visual appearance of the
surrounding area and provide an attraction which would have potential economic
benefit through local spend to the immediate surrounding area. The proposal also
forms part of a wider project to enhance the public realm. It is therefore considered
that the proposal will provide some social and economic benefits.

Page 29



8.2 The impact on flood risk is considered to be neutral and therefore there is no
negative environmental impact. Therefore, the development demonstrates
sustainable development and as such accords with the core principle of the NPPF.

8.3 The impact on the character and appearance of the Conservation Area and the
Town Centre is considered to be beneficial, providing a point of interest, and
enhancing a visitor experience thus a further modest benefit.

8.4 The benefits of the proposed development are set out above and the proposal
accords with Policies 2, 3, 4, 9, 25 and 32 of the SELLP and Parts 2,8,12, 14 and
16 of the NPPF.

9.0 Recommendation: GRANT

9.1 It is recommended that this application is approved subject to the conditions set out
below.

1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three
years from the date of this permission.

Reason: Required to be imposed pursuant to Section 51 of the Planning and
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

2. The development hereby approved shall be carried out in accordance with the
Approved specifications set out in the “Planning Design Statement Boston Quays
Scheme”

Reason: To ensure the development is undertaken in accordance with the
approved details and to accord with Policies 2 and 3 of the South East Lincolnshire
Local Plan (2011-2036).

Informative

In determining this application the authority has taken account of the guidance in
paragraph 38 of the National Planning Policy Framework 2019 in order to seek to secure
sustainable development that improves the economic, social and environmental conditions
of the Borough.

Mike Gildersleeves
Growth Manager

Page 30



PLANNING APPLICATION B/19/0245

Installation of a customised navigation Buoy as a
sculptural artwork

Land adjacent to Haven Bridge, South Square,
Boston

Applicant:
Luke Skerritt, Boston Borough Council

Page 31

Agenda Item 4



P
age 32



BOSTON BOROUGH COUNCIL

Planning Committee – 23 July 2019

Reference No: B/19/0245

Expiry Date: 07-August-2019
Extension of Time: n/a

Application Type: Full Planning Permission(s)
Proposal: Installation of a customised navigation Buoy as a sculptural artwork

Site: Land adjacent to Haven Bridge, South Square, Boston

Applicant: Luke Skerritt, Boston Borough Council
Agent: v/a

Ward: Skirbeck Parish: n/a

Case Officer: Myles Joyce Third Party Reps:

Link to Application: B/19/0245

Recommendation: GRANT

Page 33

https://www.mybostonuk.com/planning-application-search/B/19/0245


1.0 Reason for Report

1.1 This application is proposed by Boston Borough Council as part of a wider public
realm improvement project, as such the Growth Manager considers that it is of
sufficient public interest that it should be presented to the Planning Committee.

2.0 Application and site description

2.1 It is proposed to erect an ornamental buoy B4 4.6 metres high by 3.0 metres wide.
Its final dimensions will indicatively be 5.5 metres high by 4.5 metres in diameter.

2.2 The artwork will have an increased height dimension due to its design being
truncated, inverted, secured to a reinforced concrete footing and then with metallic
floral design applied to the upper surface, please note that the design is indicative
only of the final work and not a full rendition of the final design which will evolve
throughout, and in response to the delivery phases of the project. The buoy subject
of this application is part of a wider project of 5 buoys in various locations across
the town to enhance the public realm.

2.3 This rendition uses the flower graphics from the original submission superimposed
on the selected buoy.

2.4 The site is located to the north of Haven Bridge and lies within the Town Centre
boundary and the Boston Conservation Area.

3.0 Relevant History

3.1 The application is one of five submitted for the installation of a customised
navigation Buoys as a sculptural artworks. The other applications are also before
you for determination as follows:

§ B/19/0242 Installation of a customised navigation Buoy as a sculptural
artwork Promontory Opposite Black Sluice, Boston
§ B/19/0243 Installation of a customised navigation Buoy as a sculptural
artwork Land at Bus Station Roundabout St Georges Road Boston
§ B/19/0244 Installation of a customised navigation Buoy as a sculptural
artwork Land adjacent to Haven Bridge, Buoy,Yard Car Park, Boston
§ B/19/0246 Installation of a customised navigation Buoy as a sculptural
artwork, Adjacent to Art Deco Garden, Central Park, Boston

4.0 Relevant Policy

4.1 The Development Plan now consists of the South East Lincolnshire Local Plan
(2011-2036) (i.e. SELLP) which was adopted by the Boston Borough Council and
the South Holland District Council on the 8th March 2019.

4.2 Policy 2: Development Management requires development to be inter alia
sustainable development of a size, scale, layout and density, which accords with
the surrounding area, pays attention to quality of design, maximises the use of
sustainable materials and resources and impacts and enhances areas of natural
habitats or historical buildings and heritage assets.

Page 34



4.3 Policy 3: Design of New Development All development will create distinctive places
through the use of high quality and inclusive design and layout and, where
appropriate, make innovative use of local traditional styles and materials. Design
which is inappropriate to the local area, or which fails to maximise opportunities for
improving the character and quality of an area, will not be acceptable.

4.4 Development proposals will demonstrate how the following issues, where they are
relevant to the proposal, will be secured by creating a sense of place by
complementing and enhancing designated and non-designated heritage assets;
historic street patterns; respecting the density, scale, visual closure, landmarks,
views, massing of neighbouring buildings and the surrounding area and the
appropriate use or reuse of historic buildings.

4.5 Policy 4 : Approach to Flood Risk states that development proposed within an area
at risk of flooding (Flood Zones 2 and 3 of the Environment Agency’s flood map or
at risk during a breach or overtopping scenario as shown on the flood hazard and
depths maps in the Strategic Flood Risk Assessment) will be permitted, where it
can be demonstrated that there are no other sites available at a lower risk of
flooding and demonstrates that the proposal will not increase risk elsewhere and
ensures suitable access is safeguarded for the maintenance of water resources,
drainage and flood risk management infrastructure.

4.6 Policy 9: Promoting a Stronger Visitor Economy supports proposals for tourism and
visitor development which utilise and enrich the natural and built environment and
existing attractions of South East Lincolnshire to the benefit of the local economy,
visitors and local communities will be supported within the boundaries of
settlements identified in Policy 1 as well as other ancillary development slinked to
the above uses. Outside these settlements, small-scale development to support the
visitor economy, including farm diversification, equine development and fishing
lakes, will be supported provided that proposals do not conflict with neighbouring
land uses; are in keeping with the character of the locality; and demonstrate a
functional link with an existing rural attraction or farm enterprise.

4.7 Policy 25: Supporting the Vitality and Viability of Boston and Spalding Town Centres
Opportunities to support and extend the offer of the town centres as destinations
through enhancing existing sites and ensuring changes to premises have regard to
the significance of heritage assets and the special interests of the Conservation
Areas and their settings and enhancing the public realm through improvements to
public spaces, accessibility and signage and providing interpretation and
promotional information.

4.8 Policy 29: The Historic Environment seeks to preserve or enhance the historic
environment will be conserved and, where appropriate, enhanced. Development
proposals will conserve and enhance the character and appearance of designated
and non-designated heritage assets. Proposals that affect the setting of a Listed
Building will be supported where they preserve or better reveal the significance of
the Listed Building.

4.9 Proposals within, affecting the setting of, or affecting views into or out of, a
Conservation Area should preserve (and enhance or reinforce, as appropriate)
features that contribute positively to the area’s character, appearance and setting.

4.10 Policy 32: Community, Health and Well-being states that development shall
contribute to: the creation of socially-cohesive and inclusive communities; reducing

Page 35



health inequalities; and improving the community’s health and well-being
encouraging inter alia community use.

4.11 National Planning Policy Framework (2019)

Relevant sections of the NPPF that are relevant to this application are:

§ Section 2 : Achieving sustainable development
§ Section 8: Promoting healthy and safe communities
§ Section 12: Achieving well designed places
§ Section 14: Meeting climate change, flooding and coastal change
§ Section 16: Conserving and Enhancing the Historic Environment

4.12 Town & Country Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990

S72 of the 'Act' sets out the Local Planning Authority has a general duty to give
special attention to the desirability of preserving or enhancing the character or
appearance of Conservation areas.

5.0 Representations

5.1 No letters of representation have been received

6.0 Consultations

6.1 County LLFA have not responded.

6.2 Black Sluice Internal Drainage Board no objections

6.3 Building Control have not responded

7.0 Planning Issues and Discussions

7.1 The key planning issues in the determination of this application are:

§ The principle of development having regard to development plan policies.
§ Impact on residential amenity.
§ Impact on the character and appearance of the area
§ Supporting a visitor economy.
§ Flood risk and drainage.

The principle of development having regard to development plan policies

7.2 The application site lies within the Boston Conservation Area and the town centre
boundary. Developments should support and extend the office of the town centre
as a visitor destination and have regard to heritage assets and special interests of
conservation areas. As a piece of ornamental public art it is considered that the
development provides a statement of the town and its heritage and a visitor
attraction and is considered acceptable in principle.

7.3 The proposal would be an attractive piece of public art which would enhance the
visitor experience to Boston in accordance with Policies 9 and 32 of the SELLP and
part 8 of the revised NPPF.

Page 36



Impact on residential amenity

7.4 The site lies a considerable distance from nearby residences. As such any impact
on any residential amenity is not considered to be material.

Impact on the character and appearance of the Conservation Area

7.5 The design concept is indicative only of the final work and not a full rendition of the
final design, which will evolve throughout, and in response to the delivery phases
of the project. The concept will not change substantively.

7.6 Due to the location of this buoy it is anticipated that a reinforced concrete raft will
be necessary but should this be required it would be discrete and not change the
overall look of the installation.

7.7 Whilst the ornamental artwork is indicative, the essential dimensions of the buoy
and its means of being affixed to are the key components of the scheme with any
final artistic work being ancillary to the proposed development.

7.8 It is considered that the proposal as a piece of public art would enhance the
character and appearance of the Boston Conservation Area and as such is
considered to be in accordance with Policies 2 and 29 (The Historic Environment)
of the SELLP and Parts 12 and 16 of the Revised NPPF, as well as meeting the
requirements set out in S72 of the Town & Country Planning (Listed Buildings and
Conservation Areas) Act 1990.

Flood risk and drainage

7.9 The site is within Flood Zone 3. Policy 4: Approach to Flood Risk states that
development proposed within an area at risk of flooding (Flood Zones 2 and 3 of
the Environment Agency’s flood map will be permitted, where it can be
demonstrated that there are no other sites available at a lower risk of flooding and
demonstrates that the proposal will not increase risk elsewhere and ensures
suitable access is safeguarded for the maintenance of water resources, drainage
and flood risk management infrastructure.

7.10 The proposal is for limited changes to the existing surface with minor works to
anchor the buoys in place. It is considered that the buoys would have a neutral
impact on the flood risk to the site or surrounding area and as such is considered
to accord with Policy 4 and Part 14 of the NPPF.

8.0 Summary and Conclusion

8.1 The principle of development is accepted as a work of public art and a visitor
attraction and it is considered that it would enhance the visual appearance of the
surrounding area and provide an attraction which would have potential economic
benefit through local spend to the immediate surrounding area. The proposal also
forms part of a wider project to enhance the public realm. It is therefore considered
that the proposal will provide some social and economic benefits.

8.2 The impact on flood risk is considered to be neutral and therefore there is no
negative environmental impact. Therefore, the development demonstrates
sustainable development and as such accords with the core principle of the NPPF.

Page 37



8.3 The impact on the character and appearance of the Conservation Area and the
Town Centre is considered to be beneficial, providing a point of interest, and
enhancing a visitor experience thus a further modest benefit.

8.4 The benefits of the proposed development are set out above and the proposal
accords with Policies 2, 3, 4, 9, 25 and 32 of the SELLP and Parts 2,8,12, 14 and
16 of the NPPF.

9.0 Recommendation: GRANT

9.1 It is recommended that this application is approved subject to the conditions set
out below.

1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three
years from the date of this permission.

Reason: Required to be imposed pursuant to Section 51 of the Planning and
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

2. The development hereby approved shall be carried out in accordance with the
Approved specifications set out in the “Planning Design Statement Boston Quays
Scheme”

Reason: To ensure the development is undertaken in accordance with the
approved details and to accord with Policies 2 and 3 of the South East Lincolnshire
Local Plan (2011-2036).

Informative

In determining this application the authority has taken account of the guidance in
paragraph 38 of the National Planning Policy Framework 2019 in order to seek to secure
sustainable development that improves the economic, social and environmental conditions
of the Borough.

Mike Gildersleeves
Growth Manager

Page 38



PLANNING APPLICATION B/19/0246

Installation of a customised navigation Buoy as a
sculptural artwork

Land adjacent to Art Deco Garden, Central Park,
Boston

Applicant:
Luke Skerritt, Boston Borough Council

Page 39

Agenda Item 5



P
age 40



BOSTON BOROUGH COUNCIL

Planning Committee – 23 July 2019

Reference No: B/19/0246

Expiry Date: 07-August-2019
Extension of Time: n/a

Application Type: Full Planning Permission(s)
Proposal: Installation of a customised navigation Buoy as a sculptural artwork

Site: Land adjacent to Art Deco Garden, Central Park, Boston

Applicant: Luke Skerritt, Boston Borough Council
Agent: v/a

Ward: Witham Parish: n/a

Case Officer: Myles Joyce Third Party Reps:

Link to Application: B/19/0246

Recommendation: GRANT

Page 41

https://www.mybostonuk.com/planning-application-search/B/19/0246


1.0 Reason for Report

1.1 This application is proposed by Boston Borough Council as part of a wider public
realm improvement project, as such the Growth Manager considers that it is of
sufficient public interest that it should be presented to the Planning Committee.

2.0 Application and site description

2.1 It is proposed to erect an ornamental buoy which is 3.7 metres high by 3.0 metres
in diameter. The Buoy will have a ceramic, mosaic frieze applied to part of the buoy.
This will have minimal effect on its external dimensions.

2.2 The site lies adjacent to the Art Deco Gardens in Central Park Boston. Boston Park
Conservation Area lies on the opposite side of the road to the east. The Town
Centre boundary lies immediately to the south of Central Park.

2.3 Its location in Central Park will enable recreational users to get up close to and
engage with historic and cultural themes whilst being enjoyed as a design scheme
from a distance as well.

2.4 The design concept is indicative only of the final work and not a full rendition of the
final design, which will evolve throughout, and in response to the delivery phases
of the project. The concept will not change substantively. The buoy subject of this
application is part of a wider project of 5 buoys in various locations across the town
to enhance the public realm.

2.5 Due to the location of this buoy it is not anticipated that a reinforced concrete raft
will be necessary but should this be required it would be discrete and not change
the overall look of the installation.

3.0 Relevant History

3.1 The application is one of five submitted for the installation of a customised
navigation Buoys as a sculptural artworks. The other applications are also before
you for determination as follows:

§ B/19/0242 Installation of a customised navigation Buoy as a sculptural
artwork Promontory Opposite Black Sluice, Boston
§ B/19/0243 Installation of a customised navigation Buoy as a sculptural
artwork Land at Bus Station Roundabout St Georges Road Boston
§ B/19/0244 Installation of a customised navigation Buoy as a sculptural
artwork Land adjacent to Haven Bridge, Buoy Yard Car Park, Boston
§ B/19/0245 Installation of a customised navigation Buoy as a sculptural
artwork, Land Adjacent to Haven Bridge, South Square, Central Park, Boston

4.0 Relevant Policy

4.1 The Development Plan now consists of the South East Lincolnshire Local Plan
(2011-2036) (i.e. SELLP) which was adopted by the Boston Borough Council and
the South Holland District Council on the 8th March 2019.

Page 42



4.2 Policy 2: Development Management requires development to be inter alia
sustainable development of a size, scale, layout and density, which accords with
the surrounding area, pays attention to quality of design, maximises the use of
sustainable materials and resources and impacts and enhances areas of natural
habitats or historical buildings and heritage assets.

4.3 Policy 3: Design of New Development All development will create distinctive places
through the use of high quality and inclusive design and layout and, where
appropriate, make innovative use of local traditional styles and materials. Design
which is inappropriate to the local area, or which fails to maximise opportunities for
improving the character and quality of an area, will not be acceptable.

4.4 Development proposals will demonstrate how the following issues, where they are
relevant to the proposal, will be secured by creating a sense of place by
complementing and enhancing designated and non-designated heritage assets;
historic street patterns; respecting the density, scale, visual closure, landmarks,
views, massing of neighbouring buildings and the surrounding area and the
appropriate use or reuse of historic buildings.

4.5 Policy 4 : Approach to Flood Risk states that development proposed within an area
at risk of flooding (Flood Zones 2 and 3 of the Environment Agency’s flood map or
at risk during a breach or overtopping scenario as shown on the flood hazard and
depths maps in the Strategic Flood Risk Assessment) will be permitted, where it
can be demonstrated that there are no other sites available at a lower risk of
flooding and demonstrates that the proposal will not increase risk elsewhere and
ensures suitable access is safeguarded for the maintenance of water resources,
drainage and flood risk management infrastructure.

4.6 Policy 9: Promoting a Stronger Visitor Economy supports proposals for tourism and
visitor development which utilise and enrich the natural and built environment and
existing attractions of South East Lincolnshire to the benefit of the local economy,
visitors and local communities will be supported within the boundaries of
settlements identified in Policy 1 as well as other ancillary development slinked to
the above uses. Outside these settlements, small-scale development to support the
visitor economy, including farm diversification, equine development and fishing
lakes, will be supported provided that proposals do not conflict with neighbouring
land uses; are in keeping with the character of the locality; and demonstrate a
functional link with an existing rural attraction or farm enterprise.

4.7 Policy 25: Supporting the Vitality and Viability of Boston and Spalding Town Centres
Opportunities to support and extend the offer of the town centres as destinations
through enhancing existing sites and ensuring changes to premises have regard to
the significance of heritage assets and the special interests of the Conservation
Areas and their settings and enhancing the public realm through improvements to
public spaces, accessibility and signage and providing interpretation and
promotional information.

4.8 Policy 29: The Historic Environment seeks to preserve or enhance the historic
environment will be conserved and, where appropriate, enhanced. Development
proposals will conserve and enhance the character and appearance of designated
and non-designated heritage assets. Proposals that affect the setting of a Listed
Building will be supported where they preserve or better reveal the significance of
the Listed Building.

Page 43



4.9 Proposals within, affecting the setting of, or affecting views into or out of, a
Conservation Area should preserve (and enhance or reinforce, as appropriate)
features that contribute positively to the area’s character, appearance and setting.

4.10 Policy 32: Community, Health and Well-being states that development shall
contribute to: the creation of socially-cohesive and inclusive communities; reducing
health inequalities; and improving the community’s health and well-being
encouraging inter alia community use.

4.11 National Planning Policy Framework (2019)

Relevant sections of the NPPF that are relevant to this application are:

§ Section 2 : Achieving sustainable development
§ Section 8: Promoting healthy and safe communities
§ Section 12: Achieving well designed places
§ Section 14: Meeting climate change, flooding and coastal change
§ Section 16: Conserving and Enhancing the Historic Environment

4.12 Town & Country Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990

S72 of the 'Act' sets out the Local Planning Authority has a general duty to give
special attention to the desirability of preserving or enhancing the character or
appearance of Conservation areas.

5.0 Representations

5.1 No letters of representation have been received

6.0 Consultations

6.1 County LLFA have not responded

6.2 . Black Sluice Internal Drainage Board no objections

6.3 Building Control have not responded

7.0 Planning Issues and Discussions

7.1 The key planning issues in the determination of this application are:

§ The principle of development having regard to development plan policies.
§ Impact on residential amenity.
§ Impact on the character and appearance of the area
§ Supporting a visitor economy.
§ Flood risk and drainage.

The principle of development having regard to development plan policies

7.2 The application site lies just outside the Boston Conservation Area and just outside
of the town centre boundary. Developments should support and extend the office
of the town centre as a visitor destination and have regard to heritage assets and
special interests of conservation areas. As a piece of ornamental public art it is

Page 44



considered that the development provides a statement of the town and its heritage
and a visitor attraction and is considered acceptable in principle.

7.3 The proposal would be an attractive piece of public art which would enhance the
visitor experience to Boston in accordance with Policies 9 and 32 of the SELLP and
part 8 of the revised NPPF.

Impact on residential amenity

7.4 The site lies a considerable distance from nearby residences. As such any impact
on any residential amenity is not considered to be material.

Impact on the character and appearance of the Conservation Area

7.5 The design concept is indicative only of the final work and not a full rendition of the
final design, which will evolve throughout, and in response to the delivery phases
of the project. The concept will not change substantively.

7.6 Due to the location of this buoy it is anticipated that a reinforced concrete raft will
be necessary but should this be required it would be discrete and not change the
overall look of the installation.

7.7 Whilst the ornamental artwork is indicative, the essential dimensions of the buoy
and its means of being affixed to are the key components of the scheme with any
final artistic work being ancillary to the proposed development.

7.8 It is considered that the proposal as a piece of public art would enhance the
character and appearance of the Boston Conservation Area and as such is
considered to be in accordance with Policies 2 and 29 (The Historic Environment)
of the SELLP and Parts 12 and 16 of the Revised NPPF, as well as meeting the
requirements set out in S72 of the Town & Country Planning (Listed Buildings and
Conservation Areas) Act 1990.

Flood risk and drainage

7.9 The site is within Flood Zone 3. Policy 4: Approach to Flood Risk states that
development proposed within an area at risk of flooding (Flood Zones 2 and 3 of
the Environment Agency’s flood map will be permitted, where it can be
demonstrated that there are no other sites available at a lower risk of flooding and
demonstrates that the proposal will not increase risk elsewhere and ensures
suitable access is safeguarded for the maintenance of water resources, drainage
and flood risk management infrastructure.

7.10 The proposal is for limited changes to the existing surface with minor works to
anchor the buoys in place. It is considered that the buoys would have a neutral
impact on the flood risk to the site or surrounding area and as such is considered
to accord with Policy 4 and Part 14 of the NPPF.

8.0 Summary and Conclusion

8.1 The principle of development is accepted as a work of public art and a visitor
attraction and it is considered that it would enhance the visual appearance of the
surrounding area and provide an attraction which would have potential economic
benefit through local spend to the immediate surrounding area. The proposal also

Page 45



forms part of a wider project to enhance the public realm. It is therefore considered
that the proposal will provide some social and economic benefits.

8.2 The impact on flood risk is considered to be neutral and therefore there is no
negative environmental impact. Therefore, the development demonstrates
sustainable development and as such accords with the core principle of the NPPF.

8.3 The impact on the character and appearance of the Conservation Area and the
Town Centre is considered to be beneficial, providing a point of interest, and
enhancing a visitor experience thus a further modest benefit.

8.4 The benefits of the proposed development are set out above and the proposal
accords with Policies 2, 3, 4, 9, 25 and 32 of the SELLP and Parts 2,8,12, 14 and
16 of the revised NPPF.

9.0 Recommendation: GRANT

9.1 It is recommended that this application is approved subject to the conditions set
out below.

1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three
years from the date of this permission.

Reason: Required to be imposed pursuant to Section 51 of the Planning and
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

2. The development hereby approved shall be carried out in accordance with the
Approved specifications set out in the “Planning Design Statement Boston Quays
Scheme”

Reason: To ensure the development is undertaken in accordance with the
approved details and to accord with Policies 2 and 3 of the South East Lincolnshire
Local Plan (2011-2036).

Informative

In determining this application the authority has taken account of the guidance in
paragraph 38 of the National Planning Policy Framework 2019 in order to seek to secure
sustainable development that improves the economic, social and environmental conditions
of the Borough.

Mike Gildersleeves
Growth Manager

Page 46



PLANNING APPLICATION B/19/0168

Erection of two storey dwelling

Land Adjoining, Glebe Cottage, Main Road,
Wrangle, Boston PE22 9HT

Applicant:
Mr & Mrs S Priestley

Page 47

Agenda Item 6



P
age 48



BOSTON BOROUGH COUNCIL

Planning Committee - 23 July 2019

Reference No: B/19/0168

Expiry Date: 08-Jul-2019
Extension of Time:

Application Type: Full Planning Permission
Proposal: Erection of two storey dwelling

Site: Land Adjoining, Glebe Cottage, Main Road, Wrangle, Boston
PE22 9HT

Applicant: Mr & Mrs S Priestley
Agent: Mr Andrew Allison

Ward: Old Leake and Wrangle

Parish: Wrangle Parish Council

Case Officer: Myles Joyce

Link to Application: B/19/0168

Third Party Reps: None received.

Recommendation: Grant Planning Permission subject to Conditions

Page 49

https://www.mybostonuk.com/planning-application-search/?ref=B/19/0168


1.0 Reason for Report

1.1 The report has been called in to Planning Committee by Councillor Ashton,
given local and Parish Council concerns with regard to the proposed
development which relate to the development being out of character.

2.0 Application Site and Proposal

2.1 The site lies on the south side of Main Road and is currently undeveloped. It
is under the same ownership as the adjoining site to the west which contains
a detached house and garage. The site is situated within the development
boundary of Wrangle Village, a designated minor service centre.

2.2 The site is roughly rectangular in shape and is a stated 280 square metres in
area. There site lies within Flood Zone 3.

2.3 It is proposed to erect a two storey detached dwelling with an associated
vehicular access and two off street car parking spaces.

2.4 The detached house will be c5.2 metres deep and c.9.1 metres deep with an
internal floor area of c92 square metres.

3.0 Relevant History

3.1 None

4.0 Relevant Policy

Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires
that determination must be made in accordance with the plan unless
material considerations indicate otherwise.

South East Lincolnshire Local Plan

4.1 The South East Lincolnshire Local Plan (2011-2036) (i.e. SELLP) which was
adopted by the Boston Borough Council and the South Holland District
Council on the 8th March 2019.

4.2 Policy 1. Spatial Strategy: Within the settlement boundaries of the Minor
Service Centres (as shown on the Inset Maps) development will be permitted
that supports their role as a service centre for the settlement itself, helps
sustain existing facilities or helps meet the service needs of other local
communities. Development will normally be limited to Allocated and
Committed sites and infill.

4.3 Policy 2: Development Management requires development to be inter alia
sustainable development of a size, scale, layout and density which accords
with the surrounding area, pays attention to quality of design, maximises the
use of sustainable materials and resources and impacts and enhances areas
of natural habitats or historical buildings and heritage assets.

Page 50



4.4 Policy 3: Design of New Development All development will create distinctive
places through the use of high quality and inclusive design and layout and,
where appropriate, make innovative use of local traditional styles and
materials. Design which is inappropriate to the local area, or which fails to
maximise opportunities for improving the character and quality of an area,
will not be acceptable.

4.5 Policy 4 : Approach to Flood Risk states that development proposed within
an area at risk of flooding (Flood Zones 2 and 3 of the Environment Agency’s
flood map or at risk during a breach or overtopping scenario as shown on the
flood hazard and depths maps in the Strategic Flood Risk Assessment) will
be permitted, where it can be demonstrated that there are no other sites
available at a lower risk of flooding and demonstrates that the proposal will
not increase risk elsewhere and  ensures suitable access is safeguarded for
the maintenance of water resources, drainage and flood risk management
infrastructure.

4.6 Policy 10: Meeting Assessed Housing Requirements Provision will be made
for a net increase of at least 19,425 dwellings in South East Lincolnshire. By
Local Authority area over the Local Plan period (20112036) this is: Boston
Borough: 7,744 at 310 per annum South Holland:  11,681 at 467 per annum.

4.7 Policy 11: Distribution of New Housing New housing site allocations will be
made in the identified settlements - approximately 100 for Wrangle.

4.8 Policy 17: Providing a Mix of Housing: The provision of new houses will seek
to meet the long term needs of the Plan area in order to maintain and
provide mixed, inclusive and sustainable communities. Family homes of two
or three bedrooms are in highest demand for both the market and affordable
housing sectors and one bedroom homes are also required to meet
affordable needs.

4.9 Policy 30: Pollution: Development proposals will not be permitted where,
taking account of any proposed mitigation measures, they would lead to
unacceptable adverse impacts upon, health and safety, the amenities of the
area or the natural, historic and built environment. Planning applications
must include an assessment of:

§ impact on the proposed development from poor air quality from identified
sources;
§ impact on air quality from the proposed development; and
§ impact on amenity from existing uses.

Suitable mitigation measures will be provided, if required. Proposals will be
refused if impacts cannot be suitably mitigated or avoided.

National Planning Policy Framework

4.10 National Planning Policy Framework 2019 sets out national planning policy
guidance with a presumption in favour of sustainable development.
Paragraph 8 explains there are three dimensions to sustainable
development: economic, social and environmental. Paragraph 11 advises
that at the heart of the NPPF is a presumption in favour of sustainable

Page 51



development. For decision making this means approving development
proposals that accord with the development plan without delay.

4.11 The relevant parts of the NPPF to assess this application are:

5. Delivering a sufficient supply of homes
9. Promoting sustainable transport

11. Making effective use of land
12. Achieving well-designed places
14. Meeting the challenge of climate change, flooding and coastal change

5.0 Representations

5.1 None received

6.0 Consultations

6.1 Parish Council has objected as it considers it out of keeping with area

6.2 IDB comments that Board's consent is required to discharge surface water to
a watercourse (open or piped), the boards’ consent is required to discharge
treated water to a watercourse (open or piped) and if there is any change to
the surface water or treated water disposal arrangements stated in the
application, please contact the Board.

6.3 LCC as Highway Authority and Lead Local Flood Authority (LLFA) has no
objections

6.4 Environment Agency has no objections subject to a condition requiring that
development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved Flood
Risk Assessment and further mitigation measures

7.0 Planning Issues and Discussions

7.1 The key planning issues in the determination of this application are:

§ The principle of development – including the provision of housing, location
and mix
§ The impact on the character and appearance of the area
§ Living conditions of future occupiers of the proposed development
§ Impact on the amenities of the area
§ Access and car parking
§ Managing flood risk

Principle of Development

7.2 The site is located within the development boundary of Wrangle where new
housing development is encouraged subject to caveats. The site is small
scale which could be considered as infill. It is not isolated and is in the
proximity of other residential development. It is therefore acceptable in
principle in line with policy 1 of the SELLP.

Housing supply location and mix

Page 52



7.3 The site provides one family sized house within the development boundary
and thus provides a suitable albeit modest addition to the housing supply for
Wrangle and the Borough as a whole. Although the Council currently has a
5-Year Supply of Housing Land, windfall developments such as the one
proposed do make a valuable contribution to ensuring that this can be
maintained in future. Further, in view of the national position in relation to
boosting housing supply as set out in the NPPF, the site would represent a
small-scale site which could positively contribute towards housing growth.
The proposal is therefore in line with Local and National policy on such
issues.

Impact on the character and appearance of the area

7.4 It is proposed to erect a detached house along Main Road which is of a
narrower footprint than the existing housing development in the immediate
surrounding area. Furthermore, the development would adopt a two-storey
approach albeit with a semi-contemporary appearance. The dwelling would
be finished in render under a slate roof, with dark grey cladding to break up
the front and rear elevations. The aim being to create a dwelling which is
reflective of current styles, as opposed to a more pastiche approach.

7.5 Concerns have been expressed that the development would be out of
character with the area. Within the immediate context, there is a mixture of
different ages and styles. Although marginally smaller in terms of plot size, it
is considered that the resultant dwelling would fit in with the general pattern
of linear development and would integrate acceptably, and any negative
impact should be balanced with the positive benefits from the delivery of
housing. Clearly the scheme would result in visual change within the street
scene, however there are examples of more recent development within the
area and it is considered that the presence of a dwelling on this site could be
argued as having a modest beneficial visual impact. It is therefore
considered that subject to conditions relating to materials, and landscaping,
the development would be acceptable in design terms and the character and
acceptance of the surrounding area.

7.6 It is therefore considered that the proposals would be in compliance with
policies 2 & 3 of the SELLP, and section 12 (Design) of the NPPF.

Living conditions for future occupiers of proposed development

7.7 The proposed three bedroom five person house has an internal floor area
calculated at approximately 92sqm which more of less accords with the
93sqm set out within the Nationally Described Space Standards for two
storey houses of this size – it should be noted however that these standards
are only referenced as guidance.

7.8 The proposal layout would provide good amounts of internal space and
circulation, access to natural light natural ventilation and storage space. A
generous amount of private amenity space would be provided through
provision of a rear garden.

7.9 In summation, the proposed development would provide a high quality of
residential accommodation for future occupiers.

Page 53



Impact on the amenities of neighbouring occupiers

7.10 The proposed dwelling would have a building line and layout which would
result in some overlooking of the rear garden of the adjoining property (which
is within the ownership of the applicant). However this relationship is
considered acceptable. Equally, it is considered that the proposed
development will not cause any unacceptable impacts in terms of
overshadowing.

7.11 The detached dwelling is separated from the road by existing vegetation and
would be of sufficient distance from the adjoining property for there to be no
materially adverse impacts with regard to noise above what may be
expected form a dwelling-house.

Access and car parking

7.12 The proposed development seeks to provide an access of Main Street and
two off street car parking spaces. The removal of the hedge to facilitate this
access will be part re-instated once the access and sufficient visibility splays
have been provided. It is noted that LCC as Highway Authority raise no
objections on safety grounds and as such it is considered that the access
arrangements are acceptable. The scheme includes sufficient off-street
parking for a dwelling of this size, and it is considered prudent to impose
conditions requiring details of the visibility splays and hard surfacing
associated with the access and car parking to be submitted for approval
before above ground works commence and implemented prior to the first
occupation of the property.

Flood Risk and management

7.13 A Flood Risk Assessment and Drainage Statement has been prepared in
support of a this planning application and considers the risk of flooding from
fluvial and tidal sources in accordance with National Planning Policy
Framework (NPPF). It also considers the risks of localised flooding due to
inadequate Foul and Surface Water Sewers, Failure of Reservoirs, Water
Main pipe bursts, Sewer Blockages, Pump Failures or High Ground Water
Table etc

7.14 The Environment Agency has viewed the FRA and has no objections subject
to a condition being improved requiring the development permitted to be
carried out in accordance with the approved FRA with mitigation measures
including the setting of finished floor area no lower than 2.8m above
Ordnance Datum (equivalent to 500mm above ground level), the provision of
flood resistance measures as described and the full implementation of
maintenance measures prior to occupation. Subject to the imposition of a
condition to meet these objectives the proposal would be in compliance with
policy 4 of the SELLP

Other matters

7.15 It is considered expedient to impose a condition requiring the submission of
details for approval with regard to refuse and recycling and cycle parking
provision. The approved details to be implemented prior to first occupation of
the property.

Page 54



7.16 On air quality matters, the application identifies that an electrical vehicle
charging point on the dwelling and a gas boiler, which meets the standard
requirement of 40mg NOx/kilowatt hours. Given the small-scale nature of the
development, it is unlikely that there would be a significant impact on air
quality, and thus the objectives of policy 30 would be met in this instance.

8.0 Summary and Conclusion

8.1 The proposed development lies within the development boundary and is
acceptable in principle. It provides a family sized house within the village of
Wrangle and thus provides a modest contribution to the hosing supply of the
Borough.

8.2 The proposal would provide a good standard of residential accommodation
and it is not anticipated that it would adversely impact on the amenities of the
area nor those of the occupiers of the existing properties in the immediate
surrounding area. It would be in keeping with the character and appearance
of the area and would provide safe access and sufficient off street car
parking.

8.3 With regard to flood risk, despite the high flood risk of the area, the
Environment Agency believes that a suitably worded condition requiring
mitigation measures as well as accordance with the approved Flood Risk
assessment should be sufficient to manage any potential flood risk.

8.4 Appropriate conditions as recommended would further aid in mitigating the
impact of the development and make it acceptable in planning terms.

8.5 In conclusion the proposal would be in accordance with the Development
Plan when taken as a whole. The scheme provide for a small-scale housing
proposal that would contribute to meeting the Local and National need for,
and objective of boosting housing supply. It would provide modest economic,
environmental and social benefits which outweigh any potential harm and as
such demonstrates sustainable development.

9.0 Recommendation

9.1 It is recommended that Committee grant planning permission subject to the
following conditions and reasons:

1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the
expiration of three years from the date of this permission.

Reason:  Required to be imposed pursuant to Section 51 of the
Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in strict
accordance with the application received 30-Apr-2019 and in
accordance with the associated plans referenced:

§ 11453 01
§ 1145302
§ 1145303B

Page 55



§ 1145304D

Reason: To ensure the development is undertaken in accordance with
the approved details, in the interest of the character of the area and
residential amenity and in accordance with Policies 2 and 3 of the
South East Lincolnshire Local Plan 2011-2036.

3. No works above ground shall commence until details of all external
and facing materials are submitted for approval by the local planning
authority. The works are to be carried out in accordance with the
approved details.

Reason: In the interests of visual amenity and in accordance with
Section 197 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 and in
accordance with Policies 2 and 3 of the South East Lincolnshire Local
Plan 2011-2036.

.
4. No works above ground shall take place until full details of hard and

soft landscaping works have been submitted to and approved in writing
by the Local Planning Authority.  The approved works shall be carried
out in accordance with the approved details.  The scheme shall include

§ boundary treatment
§ hard surface materials
§ minor structures
§ planting schedules (species, sizes densities)

All landscape works shall be carried out in accordance with the
approved details within 6 months of the date of the first occupation of
any building or completion of development whichever is the sooner.
Any trees, plants, grassed areas, which within a period of 5 (five) years
from the date of planting die, are removed or become seriously
damaged or diseased shall be replaced in the first available planting
season with others of similar size species or quality.

Reason:  In the interests of visual amenity and in accordance with
Policies 2 and 3 of the South East Lincolnshire Local Plan 2011-2036.

.
5. Before the dwelling is occupied, the vehicular access, turning space

and car parking areas shall be completed in accordance with the
approved plans and retained for that use thereafter.

Reason:  To ensure safe access to the site and dwelling and allow
vehicles to enter and leave the highway in a forward gear in the
interests of residential amenity, convenience and highway safety in
accordance with Policy 2 of the South East Lincolnshire Local Plan
2011-2036.

6. No development above ground shall take place before the detailed
design of the arrangements for surface water drainage has been
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
No building shall be occupied before it is connected to the approved
drainage system.

Page 56



Reason:  To ensure that surface water run-off from the development
will not adversely affect, by reason of flooding, the safety and amenity
of the residents of this site and to accord with Policy 4 of the South
East Lincolnshire Local Plan 2011-2036 and the National Planning
Policy Framework 2018.

7. The development permitted by this planning permission shall be
carried out in accordance with the approved Flood Risk Assessment
(FRA) March 2019 version 1 completed by RM Associates and the
following mitigation measures detailed within the FRA:
§ Finished floor levels to be set no lower than 2.80m above Ordnance
Datum (AOD), equivalent to 500mm above existing ground level
§ The development to have at least two storeys
§ Flood resistance/resilience measures as described
§ The mitigation measures shall be fully implemented prior to
occupation and subsequently remain in place.

Reason: To prevent the increased risk of flooding in accordance with
Policies 2 and 4 of the South East Lincolnshire Plan 2011-2036.

8. If, during development, contamination not previously considered is
identified, then the Local Planning Authority shall be notified
immediately and no further work shall be carried out until a method
statement detailing a scheme for dealing with the suspect
contamination has been submitted to and agreed in writing with the
Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To ensure all contamination within the site is dealt with in
accordance with Policy 30 of the South East Lincolnshire Local Plan
2011-2036.

Informatives:

1. The applicant is advised that this planning permission is subject to
conditions requiring further details for approval prior to works carried out
above ground. Any work be carried above ground prior to the discharge of
these conditions, would be unauthorized and could be subject to formal
planning enforcement action.

2. In determining this application the authority has taken account of the
guidance in paragraph 38 of the National Planning Policy Framework 2019
in order to seek to secure sustainable development that improves the
economic, social and environmental conditions of the Borough.

3. The permitted development requires the formation of a new/amended
vehicular access. Applicants should note the provisions of Section 184 of
the Highways Act 1980. The works should be constructed to the satisfaction
of the Highway Authority in accordance with the Authority's specification that
is current at the time of construction. For further information, please
telephone 01522 782070.

4. Please contact the Lincolnshire County Council Streetworks and
Permitting Team on 01522 782070 to discuss any proposed statutory utility

Page 57



connections and any other works which will be required within the public
highway in association with the development permitted under this Consent.
This will enable Lincolnshire County Council to assist in the coordination and
timings of these works.

5. IDB comments that Board's consent is required to discharge
surface water to a watercourse (open or piped), the boards’ consent is
required to discharge treated water to a watercourse (open or piped) and if
there is any change to the surface water or treated water disposal
arrangements stated in the application, please contact the Board.

Mike Gildersleeves
Growth Manager

Page 58



 
 
 
 
 

REPORT TO: Planning Committee 

DATE: 23 July 2019 

SUBJECT: S106 Planning Obligation Legislation Update 

PORTFOLIO HOLDER: Councillor Michael Cooper 

REPORT AUTHOR: Growth Manager 

EXEMPT REPORT? No 

 
 

SUMMARY 
 
The Government has recently published its response to its consultation on reforming 
developer contributions.  This suggested a number of changes to the Community 
Infrastructure Levy (CIL) which the Council has not adopted, but also to section 106 
Planning Obligations. 
 
Following this, draft legislation has been published, due to come into force on 1st 
September 2019 which will have impact upon the negotiation and drafting of s106s as 
well as their monitoring. 
 

 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
That Members note the report. 
 

 
 

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
To ensure Members are up-to-date with impending legislative changes. 
 

 
 

ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED 
 
None. 
 

 
 

B   O   S   T   O   N 
  B O R O U G H  C O U N C I L  

 

 

 

Page 59

Agenda Item 7



 
REPORT 
 
1. Government’s Proposals 
 
1.1 The Government proposed a number of changes to developer contributions i.e. 

Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) and section 106 Planning Obligations.  
However as the Council has not adopted a CIL, only those changes that relate to 
s106 Planning Obligations are reported. 
 
Pooling Arrangements 
 

1.2 The consultation proposed removing the restriction which prevents local authorities 
using more than five section 106 obligations to fund a single infrastructure project 
(“pooling restrictions”).  The pooling restrictions were introduced a number of years 
ago with the aim of encouraging more local authorities to adopt CIL as the 
Government considered the CIL Regulations to be more transparent than s106 
obligations.  In simple terms, the CIL Regulations set out the liability a particular 
development will incur whereas a developer is able to negotiate on the value of a 
s106 Planning Obligation.  The former then gives greater certainty to developers at 
the outset as to the costs involved with undertaking a project.  However, the recent 
consultation reports that this can have “…distortionary effects, generate uncertainty 
and delay, and lead to otherwise acceptable planning applications being refused 
permission.”   

 
1.3 Removing the pooling arrangements was viewed by the respondents as enabling 

more flexible and faster infrastructure and housing delivery.  Pooling arrangements 
are therefore being withdrawn.  However, both financial and non-financial 
obligations will still need to be fairly and reasonably related to the development, but 
need not necessarily say within the obligation which specific project is to benefit. 

 
Infrastructure Funding Statements and Monitoring Fees 

 
1.4 To facilitate transparency in terms of monies received through CIL and S106, the 

Government recommended the publication of Infrastructure Funding Statements 
(IFS) annually on the 31st December.  This originally proposed reporting of both 
monies received as well as those forecast over the coming 2-3 years.   
 

1.5 The response has deferred the date for the first IFS to 31st December 2020 from 
2019.  It also clarifies who should prepare reports for 2-tier authorities, as is the 
case for Boston.  It will be the ‘contribution receiving authority’ i.e. the authority to 
whom a sum is required to be paid under a planning obligation or which will receive 
a non-monetary contribution under the obligation.  Therefore, Lincolnshire County 
Council will report on Highways and Education contributions, whilst Boston 
Borough Council (BBC) will report on NHS receipts.  However, it is likely that BBC 
will report on all aspects to provide a greater awareness of all projects that are 
benefitting.  The legislation defines what is required to be reported and includes (a) 
the total amount of money to be provided under any obligation entered into during 
the reported year; (b) the total amount of money received within the reported year; 
(c) the total amount of money received before the reported year which has not been 
allocated; (d) number of affordable housing units to be provided; (e) money 

Page 60



allocated but not spent in the reported year; (f) details of infrastructure that has 
been provided, and amount spent, during the reported year etc.   

 
1.6 To facilitate this additional work, the legislation supports the imposition of a 

monitoring fee.  Whilst 5% of all sums received is applicable to CIL contributions, 
for s106 the draft legislation states, “(a) the sum to be paid fairly and reasonably 
relates in scale and kind to the development, and (b) the sum to be paid… does not 
exceed the authority’s estimate of its cost of monitoring the development over the 
lifetime of the planning obligations …” 

 
1.7 The Council is reviewing figures to effect monitoring of obligations to enable the 

preparation of its IFS as well as securing all obligations from a development with a 
view to charging an appropriate fee in line with the draft regulations.  

 
CONCLUSION 
 
The response to the consultation and legislation will ensure that monies obtained through 
s106 Planning Obligations are reported in a timely manner following effective monitoring.  
This should give residents and businesses within the Borough greater confidence that 
developments that take place are adequately and appropriately mitigated for, in terms of 
their impact upon infrastructure.  It is also hoped that through the recent adoption of the 
South East Lincolnshire Local Plan 2011-2036, subject to viability, that additional 
infrastructure/monies can be sought for facilities such as cemeteries, playing fields etc. 
(Policy 32).  Parish Councils are likely to be key to highlighting infrastructure that is 
required and the IFS will hopefully be one way to draw attention to monies that can be 
sought for the benefit of their local area.   
 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
The removal of pooling arrangements is likely to assist in ensuring that infrastructure is 
sought for a greater number of developments.  The Infrastructure Funding Statement will 
add considerably to the work of the department, however, with the ability to charge an 
appropriate monitoring fee, it is anticipated that this requirement will be cost neutral to the 
Council, if implemented.   
 

 
 

LEGAL & EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS 
 
None 
 

 
 

ANY OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
None 
 

 
 
CONSULTATION 
 
No consultation undertaken. 

Page 61



 
 

APPENDICES 
 
None 
 

 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
Background papers used in the production of this report are listed below: - 
 

Document title Where the document can be viewed 
 

Government response to reforming 
developer contributions 

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/go
vernment/uploads/system/uploads/attachm
ent_data/file/806284/Developer_contributio
ns_government_response.pdf  
 

The Community Infrastructure Levy 
(Amendment) (England) (No. 2) 
Regulations 2019 

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukdsi/2019/97
80111187449  

 
 

CHRONOLOGICAL HISTORY OF THIS REPORT 
 

 
A report on this item has not been previously considered by a Council body. 
 

 

Page 62

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/806284/Developer_contributions_government_response.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/806284/Developer_contributions_government_response.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/806284/Developer_contributions_government_response.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/806284/Developer_contributions_government_response.pdf
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukdsi/2019/9780111187449
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukdsi/2019/9780111187449


 

 
 
 
 
 
 

REPORT TO: Planning Committee 

DATE: 23 July 2019 

SUBJECT: Receipt of Appeal Decisions 

PORTFOLIO HOLDER: Councillor Michael Cooper 

REPORT AUTHOR: Growth Manager 

EXEMPT REPORT? 

 

No 

 

 
SUMMARY 
 
The purpose of this report is to advise members of the receipt of appeal decisions in respect 
of: 
 

 Location:  6a Priory Road, Fishtoft, Boston, PE21 0RA 
 
Proposal:  Erection of 1 no. detached dwelling 
 
Planning  Reference:  B/18/0267 
 
Planning Decision:  Delegated 
 
Reason(s) for Refusal:  
 
The application site includes land which provides pedestrian and vehicular access 
and associated turning facilities which serves a garage and 2 car spaces.  The 
garage and car spaces lie outside of the application site and are used and accessed 
by neighbouring residents. It is intended that the existing access and turning facilities 
which serve the garage and car spaces will be shared in part with the proposed 
dwelling. Given the close proximity between the proposed dwelling and the shared 
access and turning facilities, it is considered that the associated comings and goings 
of vehicular and pedestrian traffic to and from the garage/car spaces, coupled with 
the potential noise disturbance, glare from vehicle lights, safety of residents and 
outlook from the lounge window of the proposed dwelling will collectively undermine 
the amenity of the future residents of this proposed dwelling. The proposed 
development will therefore contravene the objectives of Local Plan policies G1 and 
H3 of the Local Plan and the objectives of the NPPF. 

 
Appeal Decision: Allowed 
 
 

B   O   S   T   O   N 
  B O R O U G H  C O U N C I L  

 

 

 

Page 63

Agenda Item 8



 

 
 Location:  Blue Bungalow, Pode Lane, Old Leake, Boston, PE22 9NB 

 
Proposal:  Outline application with all matters (layout, scale, appearance, access 

and landscaping) reserved for the demolition of outbuildings and the 
construction of up to 6no. dwellings. 

 
Planning  Reference:  B/17/0533 
 

Planning Decision:  Committee 
 
Reason(s) for Refusal:  
 
The proposed development would comprise, by virtue of the potential number of 
dwellings, an overdevelopment of the site, resulting in a cramped appearance 
incompatible with the spacious and character of the locality.  The development 
would result in an incongruous addition to the edge of village location.  The 
proposal would be contrary to Policies G1, G2 and H3(2) (in relation to density) of 
the Boston Borough Local Plan 1999 and paragraphs 122 and 127 of the National 
Planning Policy Framework 2018. 

 
Appeal Decision: Dismissed 
 
 
 

 Location:  Land to rear of 29 Woodville Road, Boston, PE21 8AP 
 

Proposal:  Proposed erection of 1 no. two and a half storey dwelling, extended 
vehicular access and a new vehicular access 

 
Planning  Reference:  B/18/0323 

 
Planning Decision:  Committee 

 
Reason(s) for Refusal:  
 
The proposed dwelling, having regard to its position in relation to neighbouring 
dwellings and respective boundaries coupled with its height and design, will be out 
of character with the overall pattern of development in the area and will appear 
dominant, awkward and visually intrusive to the amenity of the neighbouring 
occupiers and will substantially harm the character of the area. Consequently the 
proposed development will therefore contravene the objectives of Boston Borough 
Local Plan 1999 Policies G1, H2 and H3, the National Planning Policy Framework 
(2018) and Policy 2 of the South East Lincolnshire Local Plan 2011-2036. 

 
Appeal Decision: Dismissed 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 64



 

 
 Location:  Land adjacent to Lloyds Farm, Old Main Road, Fosdyke, PE20 2DB 

 
Proposal:  Outline application for the erection of up to 10 residential dwellings, with 

all matters reserved 
 

Planning  Reference:  B/18/0228 
 
Planning Decision:  Committee 
 

Reason(s) for Refusal:  
 
The application site is located approximately 120m from the settlement boundary, 
outside the village envelope of Fosdyke as defined in the Local Plan and within an 
area defined as 'countryside'. This development will extend the built up area of the 
village to the south creating an awkward and alien encroachment within this flat, 
rural landscape. The development would also consolidate the surrounding urban 
environment and the resultant effect would substantially erode the character and 
appearance of the countryside and open rural landscape. This scheme will 
therefore promote an unsustainable pattern of development in this area and any 
benefits the development may provide relating to the supply of housing in the area 
would be significantly and demonstrably outweighed by its adverse effects. The 
application is therefore contrary to the objectives of Local Plan Policies C01, G1 
and G2 and the environmental dimension of sustainable development as contained 
within  the National Planning Policy Framework (2018). 

 
Appeal Decision: Dismissed 

 
 

 Location:  Rear of land adjacent to 89, Woodville Road, Boston, PE21 8BB 
 

Proposal:  Erection of detached two storey dwelling 
 
Planning  Reference:  B/18/0052 
 
Planning Decision:  Committee 
 
Reason(s) for Refusal:  
 
The proposed development, having regard to the size of the application site 
coupled with the modern design of the proposed house will appear out of character 
with the overall pattern of development in the area and will be out of keeping with 
the designs and forms of other properties in the vicinity of the site.  The proposed 
development will appear alien and visually intrusive, will lead to a car dominated 
environment and will cause substantial harm to the amenity of neighbouring 
residents. The development will therefore contravene the objectives of Local Plan 
policies G1, H2 and H3. 
 
Appeal Decision: Dismissed 

 
 
 
 

Page 65



 

 
 Location:  Bramley House, Wainfleet Road, Boston, PE21 9RW 

 
Proposal:  Erection of detached 1.5 storey annexe and garage, following 
demolition of existing outbuildings 
 
Planning  Reference:  B/18/0291 
 
Planning Decision:  Delegated 
 
Reason(s) for Refusal:  
 
Following demolition of the existing single storey building the proposed annex 
would see the introduction of a two storey building that would have a ridge height 
of 7 metres and a footprint of 14.8 metres by 5.6 metres. The accommodation 
includes a double garage, bin store and garden store at ground floor level and a 
fitted kitchen, a lounge/diner, bathroom and two double bedrooms (one with en-
suite) on the first floor. Other features such as a large first floor balcony area and 
chimney give the appearance of an independent dwelling and the submitted 
scheme appears to demonstrate that there is no obvious connection that would 
suggest that future occupiers of the annex would use some of the facilities within 
the main dwellinghouse to meet their everyday needs. 
 
The level of accommodation offered and the overall size of this two storey building, 
along with the total independence that users of the annex would have from the 
host property, concludes that the proposal is tantamount to an independent 
dwelling rather than annex accommodation and as such the level of impact to 
neighbour’s amenity, and the conflict between the amenity of future occupiers of 
the perceived dwelling and the host property cannot be properly assessed.   
 
The proposal would therefore be at conflict with Adopted Plan Policy G1, Policy 2 
(Development Management) of the emerging South East Lincolnshire Local Plan 
(SELLP) 2011-2036 and the intentions of the National Planning Policy Framework 
(2018). 
 
Appeal Decision: Dismissed 

 
 

 Location:  The Grange,114 Church Green Road, Fishtoft, Boston, PE21 0QY 
 

Proposal:  Outline Application with some matters (appearance, landscaping and 
scale) reserved for a proposed development of 6 no. dwellings including details of 
access and layout 
 
Planning  Reference:  B/18/0075 
 
Planning Decision:  Delegated 

 
Reason(s) for Refusal:  

 
The application site is within an unsustainable countryside location, outside the 
defined settlement limits of Fishtoft and Boston in an area where the NPPF (2012) 
indicates that, inter alia,  new isolated homes in the countryside should be avoided 

Page 66



 

unless there are special circumstances such as the essential need for a rural 
worker to live permanently at or near their place of work in the countryside. No 
such evidence has been submitted with this application. The special 
circumstances set out at paragraph 55 of the National Planning Policy Framework 
(2012) to justify new dwellings in the countryside have therefore not been met. The 
development would result in an alien and incongruous addition to three existing 
properties which were constructed to serve agriculture, giving the appearance of 
consolidating existing buildings along Church Green Road which would create a 
suburban appearance to the locality and will have a substantial adverse impact on 
the countryside and the surrounding environment. Furthermore the approval of this 
application would set a precedent for the submission of similar 'infill' countryside 
sites both along Church Green Road and elsewhere within the district which this 
Council would find difficult to resist; the resultant effect would undermine the 
character of the countryside and further erode countryside protection policies. The 
application is therefore contrary to the objectives of Local Plan policy G1 and the 
sustainability objectives of the National Planning Policy Framework (2012). 

 
Appeal Decision: Allowed 

 
 

 Location:  Old Leake Caravan Park, Shaw Lane, Old Leake, Boston, PE22 9LQ  
 

Proposal:  Remove condition 3 of B/16/0606/86 without complying with a 
condition attached to planning permission B/15/0017 
 
Planning  Reference:  B/18/0136 
 
Planning Decision:  Committee (recommended approval) 
 
Reason(s) for Refusal:  
 
The development substantially harms the amenities of the general character of 
the area because of the nature of the occupation of the caravans from tourists to 
agricultural workers.  The proposal is therefore contrary to Policy G1 of Boston 
Borough Local Plan 1999. 
 
Appeal Decision: Allowed 

 
    

 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The Committee are asked to note this report. 
 

 

 
REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION 
 
To address the Service Plan 2019/20. 
  

  

Page 67



 

1.0 INTRODUCTION 
 
1.1 It is established practice that all appeal decisions are reported to Planning Committee as 

part of performance monitoring and to consider if any particular decisions raise issues 
which might influence practice or future decision making.  
 

1.2 All applicants have a right of appeal against the decision of the planning authority, over a 
refusal, an approval with conditions (if the conditions are unacceptable to the applicant) 
and in cases of ‘non-determination’ where the authority has not issued a decision within 
the prescribed 8 or 13-week period without an agreed ‘extension of time’. The right of 
appeal applies to all categories and types of applications – including Enforcement and 
other Notices where there are defined categories or grounds of appeal which an 
appellant has to follow. 

 
2.0 APPEAL DECISIONS  
 
 6a Priory Road, Fishtoft, Boston, PE21 0RA 
 
2.1 The main consideration was whether the occupants of the proposed dwelling would have 

an acceptable standard of amenity, with particular regard to noise and disturbance from 
vehicles.   
 

2.2 The site is within a predominantly residential area and comprises land used for vehicular 
access, garaging and parking for some residents within Priory Road.  The Inspector’s 
consideration was therefore whether the manoeuvring, associated noise and 
disturbance, including headlights from vehicles using the retained garages, as well as 
the outlook to this area would be poor. 
 

2.3 In relation to outlook, the Inspector considered a reasonable amount of space would be 
provided around the dwelling and windows.  The main living, dining and kitchen area 
would have windows overlooking the sides and rear of the dwelling.  As such, it was not 
considered the outlook would be unacceptably harmful. 
 

2.4 In terms of noise and disturbance, the number and intensity of vehicle movements was 
considered unlikely to be high and for this reason, the amenity of future users was 
unlikely to be unacceptable.  The appeal was therefore allowed.   
 
Blue Bungalow, Pode Lane, Old Leake, Boston, PE22 9NB 
 

2.5 The Inspector considered the principle of housing on the site was acceptable.  The main 
consideration was therefore the effect of the proposal on the character and appearance 
of the area. 
 

2.6 The Inspector had concerns regarding whether the development could be 
accommodated on site.  The description was for up to 6 dwellings and if the appeal was 
allowed, this number of dwellings would be obliged to be permitted, if submitted at 
reserved matters stage.  On the basis of the evidence submitted with the application, it 
was considered the development would be at odds with the surrounding area, create an 
urbanising appearance in a village location.  Whilst the plans submitted were indicative, 
no further evidence had been presented to enable a different conclusion to be reached.  
It was therefore concluded the development would not respect its surroundings and 
would be harmful to the character and appearance of the area.   The appeal was 
therefore dismissed. 

Page 68



 

 
Land to rear of 29 Woodville Road, Boston, PE21 8AP 
 

2.7 Two main issues were considered, by the Inspector, to exist with this development – the 
effect of the proposal on the character and appearance of the area and the effect on the 
living conditions of occupants of the neighbouring property, with particular regard to 
outlook. 
 

2.8 Character and appearance of the area – the Inspector considered that whilst the area 
has no special designation, the traditional layout and pattern of built development is a 
strong characteristic and feature of the locality.  The position of the development would 
appear cramped and at odds with surrounding development because of the close 
proximity to the northern boundary.  The subdivision and reduction in length of gardens 
to numbers 27 and 29 Woodville Road would appear out of character when compared to 
other gardens in the vicinity. 
 

2.9 Living Conditions – The location of the dwelling would be close to the rear boundary of 
number 25.  The Inspector considered the proposed dwelling would appear an 
overbearing and overly dominant feature upon this garden and make its use less 
attractive.  As such, the development would have a detrimental effect on living conditions 
of occupiers of number 25.  The proposal was therefore dismissed. 
 
Land adjacent to Lloyds Farm, Old Main Road, Fosdyke, PE20 2DB 
 

2.10 The Inspector considered the main issues to be the effect of the proposal on the 
character and appearance of the countryside and whether the site is a suitable location 
for residential development.   
 

2.11 Whether an acceptable location for residential development – the site is outside of 
Fosdyke settlement boundary as defined within the South East Lincolnshire Local Plan 
2011-2036 (SELLP).  The Council has a 5 year supply of deliverable housing land and 
this together with the recent adoption of the plan went against the proposal.  Reference 
was made by the appellant to recent decisions, both by BBC and South Holland District 
Council.  However, the Inspector identified that this was prior to the adoption of the 
SELLP.  The proposal was viewed to be in conflict with Policy 1 and as such would not 
be a suitable location for housing. 
 

2.12 Character and Appearance – the site is an open field, separated from the adjoining land 
by a tree belt.  The proposal for up to 10 dwellings would, although indicative, provide 2 
storey dwellings with associated urbanising features such as hard surfaces, parking 
areas and domestic paraphernalia within gardens.  This would erode the openness and 
encroach into the countryside and would therefore be contrary to Policy 2 of the SELLP.   
The appeal was therefore dismissed. 
 
Rear of land adjacent to 89, Woodville Road, Boston, PE21 8BB 
 

2.13 The Inspector considered the main issues to be the effect of the development on the 
character and appearance of the area an on the living conditions of the occupiers of the 
neighbouring dwellings with particular regard to outlook. 
  

2.14 Character and Appearance – the Inspector reports the surrounding area has a mixture of 
housing in terms of height and therefore the height of the proposed dwelling (lower than 
those on the northern side of Ivy Close) was a determinative factor.  However, the need 

Page 69



 

to provide raised floor levels, the provision of dormer windows and low overall height of 
the dwelling results in a ‘squat’ building severely out of character with the prevailing 
development in the area.   
 

2.15 In relation to the provision of parking to the frontage, the Inspector considered this would 
not be harmful due to not having significant change compared to the existing situation. 
 

2.16 Living Conditions – the dwelling would be sited 7.59 metres from the rear elevation of 
no. 89, which contains habitable rooms.  Due to the raised floor levels, notwithstanding 
the fence to the boundary, flat 4 would be dominated by the side elevation of the 
proposed dwellings.  As such the outlook for existing occupiers would be poor.  Flat 3 
and other dwellings within the locality would not be adversely affected such that 
permission should be withheld.  The appeal was dismissed. 
 
Bramley House, Wainfleet Road, Boston, PE21 9RW 
 

2.17 The Inspector considered the main issues to be the effect of the development on the 
living conditions of existing and future occupiers having regard to the size, siting and 
design of the development. 
 

2.18 The building was proposed to be sited to the rear of the garden set away from the 
dwellinghouse with no physical link to the host dwelling.  All facilities required for the 
building to be occupied as an independent dwelling would be provided.  With features, 
such as balcony and chimney this would further give the proposal the appearance of an 
independent unit.  Additionally, with a second point of access between Jura and 
Romney, an independent access would give greater degree of separation from the host 
dwelling. 
 

2.19 As a consequence the accommodation would go beyond what could be considered as 
basic ancillary accommodation.  The imposition of a condition to limit the use of the 
annex to purposes ancillary to the occupation of the main dwelling would not control the 
ownership or the sharing of services. It would be difficult to monitor or enforce in the long 
term and thus the appeal was dismissed.   
 
The Grange, 114 Church Green Road, Fishtoft, Boston, PE21 0QY 
 

2.20 The Inspector considered the main issues to be whether the site is acceptable for new 
residential development together with its effect on the character and appearance of the 
area.  
 

2.21 New Residential Development – the Inspector considered the site would boost housing 
supply in accordance with paragraph 59 of the NPPF, notwithstanding the Council 
having a 5-year housing land supply and would provide wider benefits.  It was 
considered the development comprised sustainable development meeting the objectives 
of providing for social, environmental and economic matters in providing housing, 
creating employment and spending by future occupiers of spending in the locality.   
 

2.22 Character and Appearance - The proposed layout would reflect the agricultural/rural 
character of the area and reflect the principles of good design and be sited upon 
previously developed land.  Overall, the development of previously developed land, 
enhancement of the appearance of the area and provision of housing were considered 
sufficient to allow the appeal. 
 

Page 70



 

Old Leake Caravan Park, Shaw Lane, Old Leake, Boston, PE22 9LQ 
 

2.23 The Inspector considered there were two main issues with the appeal.  Firstly, the effect 
of the proposed development on the character and appearance of the area; and 
secondly, the effect of the proposed development on the living conditions of 
neighbouring occupiers with particular regard to noise and disturbance. 
 

2.24 Character and Appearance – The Inspector considered the vehicles associated with the 
use by agricultural workers were more likely to be vans, mini-buses or similar.  However, 
these would not have a substantial effect on the character and appearance of the area 
compared to family-type cars, trailers and caravans used by tourists.  The activity of 
agricultural workers would likely be different to tourists in terms of timing of occupation, 
with early pick-ups and late drop-offs.  However, there was little evidence to suggest the 
frequency to and from the site would be greater, to such an extent, that the character 
and appearance of the countryside would be adversely affected.   
 

2.25 Tourists could stay up to 3-months and may be likely to require similar domestic 
paraphernalia as seasonal worker.  Additionally, there was no evidence before the 
Inspector to support increased litter from agricultural workers compared to tourists.  As a 
result, the proposed development would not harm the character and appearance of the 
area and thus complied with Policy 2 of the South East Lincolnshire Local Plan 2011-
2036.   
 

2.26 Living Conditions – It was advanced the occupation of the caravans by agricultural 
workers would be in conflict with the aspirations of tourists, who would seek peace and 
tranquillity.  The Inspector concluded there was no evidence to support this argument, 
and given the amount of time spent away working, it would be unlikely that their activities 
by agricultural workers whilst on site would likely result in higher levels of noise and 
disturbance.  The living conditions of neighbouring properties would not be harmed by 
the development.  The appeal was therefore allowed.   
 

3.0 CONCLUSION  

3.1 The Council has received 9 decisions from 1st April 2019 to 1st July 2019, of which 4 
were allowed and 5 were dismissed.    

3.2 The Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government (MHCLG) monitors 
authorities in relation to the number of major and non-major applications overturned (i.e. 
allowed) at appeal.  The threshold is for fewer than 20% of all major applications 
determined overturned at appeal over a rolling two-year period (i.e. the total number of 
major decisions divided by the total number overturned).  For authorities who exceed 
this target, they will be classed as ‘poorly performing’ and applications for major 
developments may be made by developers directly to the Planning Inspectorate.  

3.3 MHCLG also monitor the threshold for quality of decisions for non-major 
applications, the threshold for which is 10%.  Like the major threshold this is the total 
number of non-major applications overturned at appeal compared to the total number of 
non-major decisions made.   

 

 

Page 71



 

3.3 The following tables set out the Councils position in relation to the rolling two year 
period. In this case between 1st July 2017 to 1st July 2019: 

 

2 year - Appeals performance - 
Majors 

  
2 year - Appeals performance -   
Non-Major 

Total number 
of decisions 

83   
Total number 
of decisions 

778 

Total number 
of Appeals 

4   
Total number 
of Appeals 

23 

Dismissed  2   Dismissed  12 

Allowed 2   Allowed 10 

Withdrawn 0   Withdrawn 1 

% indicator 
(majors 
allowed / 
total number 
of decisions) 

2.4%   

% indicator 
(non-majors 
allowed / total 
number of 
decisions) 

1.3% 

 

3.4 Given the aforementioned performance, the Council is therefore significantly within 
government’s target and not at risk of being classed as poorly performing. 

 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
None 
 

 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
None 
 

 

ANY OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
None 

 
CONSULTATION   None undertaken 
 

APPENDICES 
 
Inspectors decision notices for the Appeals identified  

 
  

Page 72



 

 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
Background papers used in the production of this report are listed below: - 

Document title 
 
Appeal file and application file –  
 
B/18/0267 – 
6a Priory Road, Fishtoft, Boston, PE21 ORA 
 
B/17/0533 -  
Blue Bungalow, Pode Lane, Old Leake, Boston, 
PE22 9NB 
 
B/18/0323 -  
Land to rear of 29 Woodville Road, Boston, 
PE21 8AP 
 
B/18/0228 – 
Land adjacent to Lloyds Farm, Old Main Road, 
Fosdyke, PE20 2DB 
 
B/18/0052 –  
Rear of land adjacent to 89 Woodville Road, 
Boston, PE21 8BB 
 
B/18/0291 – 
Bramley House, Wainfleet Road, Boston, PE21 
9RW 
 
B/18/0075 –  
The Grange, 114 Church Green Road, Fishtoft, 
Boston, PE21 0QY 
 
B/18/0136 – Old Leake Caravan Park, Shaw 
Lane, Old Leake, Boston, PE22 9LQ 
 

Where the document can be viewed 
 
 
All application documents are available 
via the Councils website using the 
relevant details. 

 

Page 73



This page is intentionally left blank



  

 
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate 

 
 

 

Appeal Decision 
Site visit made on 19 March 2019 

by Ian McHugh Dip TP MRTPI 

an Inspector appointed by the Secretary of State  

Decision date: 20 May 2019 

 

Appeal Ref: APP/Z2505/W/18/3216701 

6A Priory Road, Fishtoft, Boston, PE21 0RA 

• The appeal is made under section 78 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 
against a refusal to grant planning permission. 

• The appeal is made by Mr R Brewitt against the decision of Boston Borough Council. 

• The application Ref B/18/0267, dated 28 June 2018, was refused by notice dated         
5 September 2018. 

• The development proposed is the erection of 1 no. detached dwelling. 
 

Decision 

1. The appeal is allowed and planning permission is granted for the erection of     

1 no. detached dwelling at 6A Priory Road, Fishtoft, Boston, PE21 0RA, in 

accordance with the terms of the application Ref B/18/0267, dated                

28 June 2018, subject to the following conditions:  

1) The development hereby permitted shall begin no later than 3 years from 

the date of this decision. 

2) The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance 
with the Flood Risk Assessment Version 1, dated May 2018 and with the 

following approved plans: Drawing Nos: 01A; 02C; 03A; and 04A 

Procedural Matters 

2. I note that the description of the development on the appeal form and the 

Council’s decision notice differs from that given on the planning application 

form.  The convention is to use the description on the planning application form 

and I have used this in my decision. 

3. Since the appeal was lodged, the Council has adopted a new Local Plan.  

Consequently, I have considered this appeal having regard to the relevant 
policies of the South East Lincolnshire Local Plan 2011- 2036 (LP).  The Council 

also states that it has a five year supply of deliverable housing land.  Both 

parties have made reference to the emerging LP policies in their evidence and 
were invited to comment further on housing land supply.  I have considered 

any comments received in my decision.  

Main Issue 

4. The main issue is whether the occupants of the proposed dwelling would have 

an acceptable standard of amenity, with particular regard to noise and 

disturbance from vehicles.  

Page 75

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate


Appeal Decision APP/Z2505/W/18/3216701 
 

 
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate                          2 

Reasons 

5. The appeal site is an area of land that is enclosed by the rear gardens of 

properties on Priory Road, Camelot Gardens and Rochford Tower Lane.  It is 

situated within the built up area of Fishtoft.  The area around the site is 

primarily residential in character (with the exception of a retail shop on Priory 
Road, which backs onto the site).  Dwellings in the vicinity of the site are mixed 

in terms of their form and appearance and include single storey bungalows, 

‘chalet style’ dwellings and two storey houses.   

6. The appeal site includes an area of land that provides vehicular access, 

garaging and parking, plus manoeuvring space for some residents on Priory 
Road.   

7. The proposal is to erect a detached ‘chalet–style’ 3 bedroom dwelling, with 

dormer structures in the roof space.  The floor level of the dwelling would be 

raised by approximately 1m above the existing ground level, in order to 

mitigate against flood risk. Two parking spaces would be provided opposite the 
property and an existing garage and parking area for the existing users would 

be retained.  Vehicular access would be via the existing access onto Priory 

Road, between numbers 6 and 6A. 

8. The proposal is a revised submission following the refusal by the Council of an 

earlier planning application for 2 semi-detached dwellings on the site          
(ref: B/17/0284). 

9. I consider the site to be in a location where the principle of new residential 

development is acceptable.  The proposal also provides an opportunity to 

develop land that appears to be under-used and somewhat neglected at 

present.  Furthermore, the fact that the Council has a five year supply of 
housing land does not preclude additional development that is acceptable in 

planning terms.   

10. The Council contends that the proposal would be unacceptable because future 

occupants of the dwelling would suffer from noise and disturbance, including 

headlight glare from vehicles using the retained garaging and parking spaces.  
It also considers that the outlook onto this area would be poor. 

11. Policy 2 of the LP is an overarching policy that generally seeks (amongst other 

things) to ensure that new development is of high quality design and that it 

reflects the character and appearance of the area in which it is located.  It also 

requires an assessment of the impact of new development on amenity.      
Policy 3 of the LP also seeks (amongst other things) to secure residential 

amenity.  In my opinion, these policies accord with paragraph 127 of the 

National planning Policy Framework (the Framework), which (amongst other 

things) seeks to ensure that developments create places with a high standard 
of amenity for existing and future users. 

12. I acknowledge that some of the main habitable rooms of the proposed dwelling 

would face the third party parking and manoeuvring area.  However, the 

proposed dwelling would have a reasonable amount of space around it and, in 

addition, the main living room and dining/kitchen area would have windows at 
the rear and sides of the dwelling that would provide an outlook onto the 

garden space of the property.  Consequently, I am not persuaded that the 

Page 76

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate


Appeal Decision APP/Z2505/W/18/3216701 
 

 
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate                          3 

outlook from the dwelling would be unacceptably harmful to the living 

conditions of any future occupants. 

13. With regard to vehicle noise and disturbance, the appellant has submitted a 

diagram which, in his opinion, shows that any lighting from vehicles would 

shine below the main windows of the dwelling.  Notwithstanding this evidence, 
I consider that some vehicle noise and disturbance would be experienced by 

the occupants of the dwelling.  However, in my opinion, the number and 

intensity of vehicle movements are unlikely to be high because of the limited 
number of persons using the parking and garaging.  Consequently, I am not 

persuaded that any impact on the amenity of future residents would be wholly 

unacceptable.  Therefore, I consider that the proposal accords with the relevant 

policies of the LP and with the provisions of the Framework, as referred to 
above. 

Other Matter 

14. Representations have been submitted from existing users of the parking and 

garaging space on the site.  Concern is expressed about possible parking 

difficulties in the future and how the spaces will be controlled and secured.  

These are essentially private matters between the parties, but it is evident 

from the submitted details that the appellant intends to retain the spaces for 
the users.  

Conditions 

15. The Council has suggested two conditions in the event of the appeal being 

allowed.  These have been considered in the light of the advice contained 

within the Planning Practice Guidance.   

16. I have imposed the standard time condition relating to the commencement of 

development.  In addition, a condition requiring the development to be carried 

out in accordance with the approved plans and Flood Risk Assessment is 
necessary, for the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning. 

17. I note that the Council has not suggested a condition relating to external 

materials.  However, the appellant has provided detail on the plans and on the 

planning application form.  Therefore, I am satisfied that a condition is not 

necessary.  

Conclusion 

18. For the reasons given above, it is concluded that the appeal should be allowed. 

 

Ian McHugh 

INSPECTOR 

 

 

Page 77

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate


This page is intentionally left blank



  

 
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate 

 
 

 

Appeal Decision 
Site visit made on 19 March 2019 

by Ian McHugh Dip TP MRTPI 

an Inspector appointed by the Secretary of State  

Decision date: 16 May 2019 

 

Appeal Ref: APP/Z2505/W/18/3217623 

The Blue Bungalow, Pode Lane, Old Leake, Boston, Lincolnshire, PE21 9NB 

• The appeal is made under section 78 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 
against a refusal to grant outline planning permission. 

• The appeal is made by Mrs Margaret Dickens against the decision of Boston Borough 

Council. 
• The application Ref B/17/0533, dated 21 December 2017, was refused by notice dated 

19 September 2018. 
• The development proposed is an outline application for the construction of up to           

6 dwellings, with all matters reserved. 
 

Decisio 

1. The appeal is dismissed. 

 Procedural Matter 

2. Since the appeal was lodged, the Council has adopted a new Local Plan.  

Consequently, I have considered this appeal having regard to the relevant 

policies of the South East Lincolnshire Local Plan 2011- 2036 (LP).  The Council 
also states that it has a five year supply of deliverable housing land.  Both 

parties have made reference to the emerging LP policies in their evidence and 

were invited to comment further on housing land supply.  I have considered 
any comments received in my decision.  

Main Issue 

3. The main issue is the effect of the proposal on the character and appearance of 

the area.  

Reasons 

4. The appeal site comprises an existing residential bungalow and outbuildings.  It 

has a relatively large garden and is situated on the edge of the village, close to 
open countryside.  It occupies a prominent position on the corner of Pode Lane 

and Southfield Lane.  Residential properties are located on the opposite sides of 

both lanes.  These vary in terms of their age and design, but those on Pode 
Lane are generally detached properties, which give the area a relatively 

spacious character and appearance. 

5. The proposal is in outline for a development of up to 6 dwellings, with all 

matters reserved for later approval.  However, the appellant has submitted an 

indicative site layout plan and elevations which show a terrace of three and a 
pair of semi-detached dwellings, fronting Southfield Lane, plus a detached 

Page 79

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate


Appeal Decision APP/Z2505/W/18/3217623 
 

 
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate                          2 

dwelling on the site of the existing bungalow, facing Pode Lane.  The plan also 

shows parking spaces to the front, side and rear of the dwellings.  Although 

this plan is indicative, it forms part of the evidence before me. 

6. Policy 2 of the LP is an overarching policy that generally seeks (amongst other 

things) to ensure that new development is of high quality design and that it 
reflects the character and appearance of the area in which it is located.  This 

accords with paragraph 127 of the National planning Policy Framework (the 

Framework), which contains similar provisions. 

7. I consider that the principle of new housing on the site is acceptable, given its 

accessible location and relatively close proximity to local services, shops and 
community facilities.  Additional housing on the site would also make a positive 

contribution to housing stock in the Borough.  However, I have concerns as to 

whether the development, as described, can be accommodated on the land, 
whilst at the same time respecting and reflecting the character of the area.  

8. I accept that the submitted plan is indicative only and that all matters are 

reserved for further approval. I also note that both parties state that future 

numbers can be dealt with at the reserved matters stage.  However, I am not 

persuaded by this.  The description of the development is for up to 6 dwellings.  

On that basis, if the appeal was to be allowed and planning permission granted, 
the Council would be obliged to allow that number on the site, as the 

description is central to what may come forward at reserved matters stage.  It 

would not be possible to leave the number of homes to reserved matters as the 
principle would have already been determined.  

9. On the basis of the evidence submitted, I consider that the development would 

be at odds with its surroundings.  The closely spaced terraced and semi-

detached arrangement within relatively small plots, along the Southfield Lane 

frontage, would not be in keeping with the more spacious arrangement of 
nearby properties, particularly those opposite the site on Pode Lane.  The 

provision of hard surfacing and a row of car parking spaces abutting Southfield 

Lane would also have an urbanising appearance in a prominent position that 
would detract from the character of the edge of village location.  I acknowledge 

that an alternative layout may address these issues, but as I have no further 

evidence before me, I am unable to reach a different conclusion. 

10. Consequently, I consider that the appeal proposal would not respect its 

surroundings and that it would be unacceptably harmful to the character and 
appearance of the area. As such, it would conflict with the provisions of the 

Development Plan and with the Framework, as referred to above.  Whilst the 

provision of additional housing carries significant weight, this is outweighed by 

the unacceptable harm that I have identified. 

Other Matter 

11. In response to the appeal, an objection to the development has been submitted 

by a local resident expressing concern that the proposal would be detrimental 
to highway safety.  I acknowledge that the development would increase vehicle 

movements and vehicle manoeuvring close to the junction of Pode Lane and 

Southfield Lane.  However, no objections (subject to conditions) have been 
raised by the Highway Authority and in the absence of any substantive 

evidence to the contrary, I have no reason to take a different view. 

Page 80

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate


Appeal Decision APP/Z2505/W/18/3217623 
 

 
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate                          3 

  Conclusion 

12. For the reasons given above, it is concluded that the appeal should be 

dismissed. 

 

Ian McHugh 

INSPECTOR 

Page 81

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate


This page is intentionally left blank



  

 
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate 

 
 

 

Appeal Decision 
Site visit made on 19 March 2019 

by Ian McHugh Dip TP MRTPI 

an Inspector appointed by the Secretary of State  

Decision date: 17 May 2019 

 

Appeal Ref: APP/Z2505/W/18/3218739 

Land to Rear of 29 Woodville Road, Boston, PE21 8AP 

• The appeal is made under section 78 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 
against a refusal to grant planning permission. 

• The appeal is made by Habitat Residential Ltd against the decision of Boston Borough 

Council. 
• The application Ref B/18/0323, dated 30 July 2018, was refused by notice dated         

19 October 2018. 
• The development proposed is the erection of 1 no. two storey dwelling with rooms in 

the roof and extended vehicular access and a new vehicular access to number            
29 Woodville Road. 

 

Decision 

1. The appeal is dismissed. 

 Procedural Matters 

2. Since the appeal was lodged, the Council has adopted a new Local Plan.  

Consequently, I have considered this appeal having regard to the relevant 
policies of the South East Lincolnshire Local Plan 2011- 2036 (LP).  The Council 

also states that it has a five year supply of deliverable housing land.  Both 

parties have made reference to the emerging LP policies in their evidence and 
were invited to comment further on housing land supply.  I have considered 

any comments received in my decision.  

3. The description of the development differs on the planning application form, 

the Council’s decision notice and the appeal form.  The custom is to use the 

description contained on the planning application, which is as stated in the 
banner heading above.  However, I note that the proposed dwelling has three 

floors and its north facing elevation appears as a three storey property.  

Main Issue 

4. The main issue is the effect of the proposal on the character and appearance of 

the area; and the effect on the living conditions of the occupants of 

neighbouring property, with particular regard to outlook. 

Reasons 

Character and Appearance 

5. The appeal site is located on a residential street, within the built-up area of the 

town.  It is currently used for garaging and part of the rear garden space for 

numbers 27 and 29 Woodville Road (numbers 27 and 29).  Number 29 is a 

Page 83

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate


Appeal Decision APP/Z2505/W/18/3218739 
 

 
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate                          2 

corner plot with a frontage onto Cherry Walk.  Properties in the vicinity of the 

appeal site are laid out in a traditional manner, with front elevations facing the 

highways and private gardens at the rear of the dwellings.  The relatively long 
rear gardens of the properties situated on the corner of Woodville Road and 

Cherry Walk, provide a spacious and distinctive appearance to the streetscene.  

6. The proposal is a revised submission, following an earlier refusal of planning 

permission for two dwellings on the site (Council Reference: B/18/0082).  It 

proposes the erection of one detached dwelling fronting Cherry Walk.  Because 
of flood risk, the dwelling would comprise three floors, with garaging and 

utility/storage space on the ground floor.  Living space would be at first floor 

level with two bedrooms on the second floor.  A flat-roofed dormer would face 

onto Cherry Walk. 

7. The proposed dwelling would be set back from the footway on Cherry walk by 
approximately 5m and it would have a rear garden on its eastern side.  The 

rear wall (north elevation) would be positioned close to one side of the rear 

garden of number 25 Woodville Road (number 25).   

8. Policy 2 of the LP, which is an overarching policy, seeks (amongst other things) 

to ensure that new development reflects the character and appearance of the 

area.  The explanatory text emphasises that new development should be of 
high quality design.  Policy 3 also encourages high quality design, which would 

improve the character and quality of the area.  These policies accord with the 

provisions of paragraph 127 of the National Planning Policy Framework (the 
Framework). 

9. Although the area has no special designation, the traditional layout and pattern 

of built development is a strong characteristic and feature of the locality.  The 

position of the proposed dwelling would appear cramped and it would be at 

odds with the existing form of development, largely because of its close 
proximity to the northern boundary of the site.  Furthermore, the subdivision 

and reduction in length of the rear gardens of numbers 27 and 29 would 

appear out of character and distinctly different, when compared with the 
relatively generous garden spaces of properties in the vicinity of the site.  In 

my opinion, the proposal would appear contrived and at visually at odds with 

its immediate surroundings. 

10. Consequently, I consider that the proposal would conflict with the policies of 

the LP and with the Framework, as referred to above. 

Living Conditions 

11. The rear elevation of the proposed dwelling would be positioned close to the 

bottom section of the rear garden of number 25.  Although number 25 has a 

relatively long rear garden and the bottom section is unlikely to be used to the 
same extent as the area closer to the dwelling, I consider that the proposed 

dwelling would appear overbearing and an overly dominant feature, when 

viewed from the garden because of its positioning and its height.  In my 
opinion, this would make the garden of number 25 a less attractive place in 

which to be. 

12. Policy 3 of the LP requires all development proposals to demonstrate that it 

would ‘secure’ residential amenity.  In addition, paragraph 127 of the 

Page 84

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate


Appeal Decision APP/Z2505/W/18/3218739 
 

 
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate                          3 

Framework states that developments should create places with a high standard 

of amenity for existing and future users.  

13. On this issue, I consider that the proposal conflicts with the LP and with the 

Framework and the proposal would have an adverse effect on the living 

conditions of the occupants of number 25. 

Other Matter 

14. In reaching my decision, I have considered the fact that the Council states that 

it now has a five year supply of deliverable housing land.  That was not the 
case when it determined the planning application or when the appeal was 

lodged.  However, a five year supply is not a maximum and I accept that the 

development of small sites in urban areas, that are often attractive to smaller 

developers and can be built quickly, make a valuable contribution towards 
meeting local housing needs.  However, I consider that this is outweighed by 

the harm that I have identified above. 

Conclusion 

15. For the reasons given above, it is concluded that the appeal should be 

dismissed. 

 

Ian McHugh 

INSPECTOR 

 

Page 85

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate


This page is intentionally left blank



  

 
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate 

 
 

 

Appeal Decision 
Site visit made on 12 March 2019 

by M Heron  BA (Hons) MA MRTPI 

an Inspector appointed by the Secretary of State  

Decision date: 10 May 2019 

 

Appeal Ref: APP/Z2505/W/18/3210572 

Land adjacent to Lloyds Farm, Old Main Road, Fosdyke, Boston  PE20 2DB 

• The appeal is made under section 78 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 
against a refusal to grant outline planning permission. 

• The appeal is made by Mr and Mrs Adrian Butterfield against the decision of Boston 

Borough Council. 
• The application Ref B/18/0228, dated 3 June 2018, was refused by notice dated         

22 August 2018. 
• The development proposed is residential development – up to 10 dwellings. 
 

 

Decision 

1. The appeal is dismissed.  

Procedural Matters 

2. The application is in outline with all matters reserved for future consideration. A 
drawing showing an indicative layout of the development was submitted with 

the application, and I have considered it on this basis. 

3. During the determination of the appeal I was made aware that the South East 

Lincolnshire Local Plan (SELLP) was adopted on 8 March 2019. This forms the 

new development plan for both Boston Borough Council and South Holland 
District Council. I have been provided with Policy 1 and Policy 2 of the SELLP 

which replace saved Policies CO1, G1 and G2 of the Boston Borough Local Plan 

that are referred to in the Council’s decision notice. I am required to determine 

this appeal having regard to the development plan and national policy which 
are in place at the time of my decision and have done so on this basis.  

Main Issues 

4. The main issues are: 

• the effect of the proposal on the character and appearance of the 

countryside; and  

• whether or not the appeal site is a suitable location for residential 

development having regard to local and national planning policy for the 
delivery of housing.  

 

 

Page 87

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate


Appeal Decision APP/Z2505/W/18/3210572 
 

 
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate                          2 

Reasons 

Character and Appearance 

5. The appeal site comprises a large, broadly rectangular, field and a commercial 
yard which are separated from one-another by an established tree belt. The 

site is directly to the south of Lloyds Farm, which is within the ownership of the 

appellant, and it is bound to the west by the A17. Beyond this carriageway are 

open agricultural fields which are only interrupted by a small collection of linear 
residential and commercial properties accessed off Surfleet Bank. There are 

also large field systems beyond the southern and eastern site boundaries. This 

particular area is not subject to any national or local landscape designation. 
However, its flat topography allows for long distance views of the appeal site 

and of the surrounding open and undeveloped countryside. This gives the area 

a distinctly rural feel and the appeal site contributes strongly to this character. 

6. The proposal seeks permission for up to 10 dwellings on the site, each with an 

associated garage, which it is suggested would be served by a new private 
driveway. Although only indicative, it would appear that the dwellings would be 

two storey in height in order to minimise flood risk. The proposal would 

introduce urbanising features including dwellings, hard surfaces, parking areas 

and gardens with their associated domestic paraphernalia to the site. This 
would substantially erode its predominately open character and represent a 

conspicuous encroachment of built form into the countryside.  

7. The absence of residential development in the immediate vicinity of the site 

means that the proposal cannot be described as ‘infill’ development. On the 

contrary, it would represent and inappropriate linear extension to the 
settlement. Taking everything together, in my view the proposal would fail to 

integrate effectively with its surroundings. This harmful impact would be clearly 

visible when travelling in either direction along the adjacent A17.     

8. I am aware that two developments to the north of the appeal site along Old 

Main Road have been granted permission by the Council. The first, for up to 
five dwellings1, was considered to represent acceptable infilling. The second 

was for up to six dwellings2 on a site closer to the settlement boundary of 

Fosdyke, and on part of a parcel of land enclosed on all sides by roads. That 
site does not, therefore, contribute as strongly to the rural setting as the 

appeal site. Consequently, these developments would be less harmful to the 

countryside than the appeal proposal and do not alter my findings on this main 
issue.  

9. For the reasons given, I conclude that the proposal would significantly harm 

the character and appearance of the countryside. It would therefore conflict 

with Policy 2 of the SELLP which seeks to support proposals which meet 

sustainable development considerations in relation to, amongst other things, 
the character and appearance of the area, layout and quality of design. 

10. Turning to the National Planning Policy Framework (the Framework), this 

encourages the development of previously developed land and states that 

windfall developments, in the right location, can make a contribution to 

meeting housing requirements. However, this should not be at the expense of 
achieving high quality development which is sympathetic to local character, 

                                       
1 Ref B/17/0407 
2 Ref B/18/0227 

Page 88

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate


Appeal Decision APP/Z2505/W/18/3210572 
 

 
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate                          3 

including the surrounding landscape setting. I have found that the proposal 

would not achieve this. There is therefore conflict with the design objectives of 

the Framework.  

Suitable Location 

11. The appeal site is outside of the Fosdyke settlement boundary as defined within 

the SELLP. Consequently, for the purposes of planning policy the site is in the 

countryside. Policy 1 of the LP sets out the spatial strategy for the Council. It 
defines a hierarchy with settlements where development is to be directed, 

others where there are limited development opportunities and areas of 

development restraint. It also states that, within the countryside, development 
will be permitted that is necessary to such a location and/or where it can be 

demonstrated that it meets the sustainable development needs of the area in 

terms of economic, community or environmental benefits. 

12. A relatively recent study3 has outlined that Fosdyke has some services and 

facilities, including a village hall, a public house and a social club. These would 
meet some day to day needs of future residents. Nevertheless, there is no 

evidence to suggest the proposal is required to maintain the viability of these 

local services. In addition, I note that the site would offer some public travel 

options as well as opportunities to walk and cycle to facilities. However, larger 
settlements such as Sutterton are further away and are more likely to be 

accessed by car.  

13. Furthermore, the reasoned justification for Policy 1 of the SELLP illustrates the 

important role of settlement boundaries in stopping further incremental linear 

extensions to settlements. I have already found that this scheme would not 
achieve this. Taking this and all of the above into account, although the site 

cannot be described as truly isolated or remote, I am not persuaded that the 

proposal would meet the needs of the area in terms of economic, community or 
environmental benefits.   

14. Paragraph 74 of the Framework states that a 5 year supply of deliverable 

housing land (5YHLS), with the appropriate buffer, can be demonstrated where 

it has been established in a recently adopted plan. Given the recent adoption of 

the SELLP, I am therefore satisfied that the Council can demonstrate a 5YHLS 
at this time and have no other evidence to suggest that the proposal is 

necessary in this countryside location.  

15. My attention has been drawn to a number of appeal decisions4. In addition to 

the residential developments along Old Main Road referred to earlier in this 

decision, I also note that there are several other schemes5 that have been 
granted permission by either South Holland District Council or Boston Borough 

Council. However, most of these decisions appear to have been made in the 

absence of a 5YHLS. I find that none of these developments are directly 
comparable to the appeal scheme, which I have assessed on its own merits. 

16. For the reasons given, I conclude that the appeal site would not be a suitable 

site for housing as it would conflict with the settlement strategy of the Council 

set out in Policy 1 of the SELLP.  

                                       
3 South East Lincolnshire – An assessment of settlements and their sustainability credentials June 2015 
4 APP/Z2505/W/17/3189604, APP/Z2505/W/17/3189797, APP/A2525/W/17/3186996 and 
APP/A2525/W/17/3170487.  
5 H13-0073-16, H13-0013-18, H23-0980-17 and B/17/0402.  

Page 89

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate


Appeal Decision APP/Z2505/W/18/3210572 
 

 
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate                          4 

Planning Balance  

17. The Government is seeking to significantly boost the supply of housing. The 

proposal would provide up to 10 dwellings, which would make a small 

contribution to the Council’s housing stock. In addition, there would be 

economic benefits through construction and occupation. These social and 
economic benefits weigh in favour of the proposal.  

18. I accept that it is likely that a detailed design could be achieved to prevent 

harm to the living conditions of the occupants of surrounding properties, and 

that issues including biodiversity, flood risk and drainage could be addressed 

through the imposition of appropriate conditions. However, these are 
requirements of the development plan and are neutral factors in the overall 

balance.  

19. On the other hand, although the Parish Council may welcome some 

developments within the parish, I have found that the proposal would 

significantly harm the character and appearance of the countryside and would 
undermine the Council’s settlement strategy. The proposal would therefore be 

clearly contrary to the development plan.  

20. Consequently, the harm that I have identified would significantly and 

demonstrably outweigh the modest social and economic benefits associated 

with the provision of up to 10 dwellings. There are no material considerations, 
including the advice of the Framework, that justifies a decision other than in 

accordance with the development plan. 

Conclusion 

21. For the above reasons, and having regard to all other relevant matters raised, I 

conclude that the appeal should be dismissed. 

 

M Heron   

INSPECTOR 

 

Page 90

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate


  

 
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate 

 
 

 

Appeal Decision 
Site visit made on 21 May 2019 

by Chris Forrett  BSc(Hons) DipTP MRTPI 

an Inspector appointed by the Secretary of State 

Decision date: 10 May 2019 

 

Appeal Ref: APP/Z2505/W/18/3215639 

89 Woodville Road, Boston, Lincolnshire PE21 8BB 

• The appeal is made under section 78 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 
against a refusal to grant planning permission. 

• The appeal is made by Mr M Moore & Mr L Taylor against the decision of Boston 

Borough Council. 
• The application Ref B/18/0052, dated 7 February 2018, was refused by notice dated     

9 May 2018. 
• The development proposed is a dwelling at rear of land adjacent to 89 Woodville Road. 
 

Decision 

1. The appeal is dismissed. 

Procedural Matters 

2. The Council have described the proposal as the ‘erection of detached two 

storey dwelling at rear of land adjacent to 89 Woodville Road, Boston, 

Lincolnshire PE21 8BB’.  The Appellant has utilised a different description on 

their appeal form (Proposed Dwelling at the Rear of 89 Woodville Road, Boston, 
PE21 8BB). 

3. Given that the proposed dwelling would be located to the rear of 89 Woodville 

Road I find the Appellants description of the development on their appeal form 

the most accurate of all the descriptions of the development before me. 

4. Since the determination of the appeal application, the National Planning Policy 

Framework published in 2012 has been replaced, with the latest version being 

published in February 2019 (the 2019 Framework).  Paragraph 212 of the 2019 
Framework outlines that the policies contained within it are material 

considerations which should be taken into account in dealing with applications 

from the day of its publication 

5. In addition to the above, the Council has now adopted the South East 

Lincolnshire Local Plan 2011-2036 on the 8 March 2019 (the SELLP).  The 
SELLP has superseded all policies from the Boston Borough Local Plan (1999). 

6. I have therefore determined the appeal with all of the above in mind. 

Main Issues 

7. The main issues are the effect of the development on the character and 

appearance of the area and on the living conditions of the occupiers of the 
neighbouring dwellings with particular regard to outlook. 

Page 91

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate


Appeal Decision APP/Z2505/W/18/3215639 
 

 
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate                          2 

Reasons 

Character and appearance 

8. The appeal site is located on the corner of Woodville Road and Ivy Crescent 
and currently consists of a brick and tiled residential property containing four 

flats and a detached double garage to the side. The boundary treatment largely 

consists of open metal railings which give clear views of the land surrounding 

the existing buildings which is in the main covered in loose stones. To the rear 
of the existing building is an area of land which has been fenced off from the 

residential building and the appeal development is to erect a new dwelling on 

this part of the site. 

9. The dwelling itself would have a finished floor level one metre above the 

ground level with steps to all external doorways.  The dwelling itself would 
have a lounge and kitchen area at ground floor level with two bedrooms and a 

bathroom at first floor level, albeit that this would be within the roofspace.  

There would also be an aluminium framed box dormer window to the front 
elevation. 

10. From my site visit I saw that the majority of premises in the immediate area 

are two storey dwellings.  However, there are bungalows in the area including 

two properties on the south side of Ivy Crescent opposite the appeal proposal. 

11. The proposed dwelling would be lower in height than its neighbouring 

properties on the north side of Ivy Crescent.  Whilst this height differential is 

not to my mind a determinative factor on its own, the dwelling would have a 
squat appearance owing to its raised ground floor level and its low overall 

height. This is further compounded by the design and appearance of the front 

dormer which appears excessively bulky. It also gives out a strong  horizontal 
emphasis to the front elevation of the dwelling which highlights its low overall 

height. To my mind, the overall appearance of the dwelling would be 

significantly out of character with the prevailing development in the area which 

is generally well proportioned and of a post war and 1970s style. 

12. In coming to that view, I acknowledge that the design of the dwelling has been 
influenced by the need to ensure that adequate flood protection precautions 

have been undertaken and that its overall height has been designed to 

minimise the impact on the occupiers of adjoining properties. However, neither 

of these factors provide for a suitable justification to grant planning permission 
for what is an unsuitable development for the character of the area. 

13. The Council has also raised concerns over the visual impact of the parking 

areas associated with the existing and proposed development. At my site visit, 

I observed that the existing frontage to 89 Woodville Road was already laid out 

for the purposes of parking. The part of the appeal site where the proposed 
development would be was also covered in loose stones and readily available 

for parking purposes. Therefore, in my opinion, the proposed development 

would not result in any significant changes in respect of the visual implications 
of car parking and as such I find that no harm to the area would result in this 

respect. However, that does not outweigh the harm I have identified in relation 

to the other aspects of the development. 

14. For the above reasons the proposal would harm the character and appearance 

of the area contrary to Policies 2 and 3 of the SELLP which amongst other 

Page 92

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate


Appeal Decision APP/Z2505/W/18/3215639 
 

 
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate                          3 

matters seek to ensure that development has a high quality and inclusive 

design which is appropriate to the local area including its relationship to 

existing development. 

Living conditions 

15. The appeal development would be located around 7.59 metres away from the 

rear elevation of No 89 which from my site visit contains windows which serve 

habitable rooms. The Council have stated that the height of the dwelling would 
be around 6.6 metres from ground level when the raised floor level of the 

dwelling is taken into account. 

16. The appeal site is screened from the rear of No 89 by an existing timber fence 

which appears to be sited in the position of the fencing shown on the proposed 

plans. Notwithstanding this fence, the outlook from the ground floor window of 
flat 4 would be dominated by the side elevation of the proposed dwelling 

including the bulk and massing associated with the aluminium framed dormer 

window to the front elevation. To my mind the proximity of the side of the 
building, together with its overall height, would result in a poor outlook from 

this ground floor habitable room and from the small rear amenity area. 

17. I note that flat 3 also faces the appeal development. However, the rear of the 

proposed dwelling would not be directly in line with the rear window of flat 3 

and as such I find that the development would not adversely affect the 
occupiers of that flat to the extent that it would warrant the withholding of 

planning permission. 

18. Turning to the effect on outlook from other neighbouring dwellings, views of 

the appeal proposal would be from across Ivy Crescent or largely from the side 

elevations of Nos 1 and 3 Ivy Crescent. Given the juxtaposition of these 
properties, the new dwelling would not have any significant impact on outlook 

despite my conclusions on the overall design and appearance of the new 

building. 

19. For the above reasons the proposal would harm the living conditions of the 

occupiers of flat 4 at 89 Woodville Road contrary to Policies 2 and 3 of the 
SELLP which amongst other matters seek to ensure that new development does 

not impact on neighbouring land uses or residential amenity by reason of visual 

intrusion. 

Other matters 

20. The Appellant has drawn my attention to a number of other sites where 

planning permission has been granted since 20141, citing an inconsistent 

approach being taken by the Council. However, I have only been provided with 
very limited details of these developments and from the evidence before me 

none of these appear to be comparable with the appeal proposal. Moreover, 

each application must be considered on its individual merits. 

21. At the time of the determination of the application by the Council, it was 

acknowledged that there was not a deliverable five year supply of housing. 
However, following the adoption of the SELLP, the Council now state that they 

                                       
1 Including 132 Woodville Road, 146 Woodville Road, The Five Bells, 70-72 Granville Street, 51 The Graylings, The 

garages on Hilda Street, 70 Horncastle Road, 7 Muster Roll Lane, Nelsons Way, and land rear of 10 Skirbeck Road. 

Page 93

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate


Appeal Decision APP/Z2505/W/18/3215639 
 

 
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate                          4 

have a five year supply of housing. The Appellant has provided little evidence 

to suggest that this is not the case. 

22. Notwithstanding that, even if the Council cannot demonstrate a deliverable five 

year supply of housing, I have found that the proposal would harm the 

character and appearance of the area and the living conditions of the occupiers 
of flat 4 at 89 Woodville Road. These factors weigh heavily against allowing the 

proposed development. 

23. That said, the development would give rise to some minor social benefits (in 

that it would provide much needed additional housing) together with some 

minor economic benefits through the construction process and ongoing support 
for local facilities. These matters are in favour of the proposed development.   

24. It is clear that the provision of one additional dwelling would not have any 

significant effect in reducing the deficit to the housing land supply in Boston 

should there be such a deficit.   

25. Taking all of the above into account, I consider that the harm identified 

significantly and demonstrably outweighs the minor benefits when assessed 

against the policies in the 2019 Framework when taken as a whole. The 
proposal cannot therefore be considered to be sustainable development. 

Conclusion 

26. Taking all matters into consideration, I conclude that the appeal should be 
dismissed. 

 

Chris Forrett 

INSPECTOR 

Page 94

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate


  

 
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate 

 
 

 

Appeal Decision 
Site visit made on 2 April 2019 

by M Russell BA (Hons) DipTP MRTPI 

an Inspector appointed by the Secretary of State 

Decision date: 10 June 2019 

 

Appeal Ref: APP/Z2505/D/18/3216631 

Bramley House, Wainfleet Road, Boston PE21 9RW 

• The appeal is made under section 78 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 
against a refusal to grant planning permission. 

• The appeal is made by Mr Jonathan Padley against the decision of Boston Borough 

Council. 
• The application Ref B/18/0291, dated 11 August 2018, was refused by notice dated  

28 September 2018. 
• The development proposed is demolition of existing single storey garage/outbuilding 

and construction of 1 1/2 storey domestic garage/annexe. 
 

Decision 

1. The appeal is dismissed. 

Application for costs 

2. An application for costs was made by Mr Jonathan Padley against Boston 

Borough Council. This application is the subject of a separate Decision. 

Procedural Matters 

3. The Council’s decision notice included an amended description of the proposal. 

However, I have considered the appeal on the basis of the description on the 

planning application form which provides sufficient clarity. 

4. The evidence before me indicates the clear intention to erect the proposed 

building in the same position as the existing outbuilding.  Whilst the site plan 
provided states the existing outbuilding is to be demolished and replaced, a 

proposed block plan has not been provided.  This would assist in confirming 

that the proposed building sits within the parameters of the appeal site 
including additions beyond the existing footprint such as the proposed balcony.  

However, as I am dismissing the appeal on the substantive grounds indicated 

by the Council, I do not consider that this omission requires rectifying at this 

late stage. 

5. The Council’s decision notice referred to Saved Policy G1 of the Boston Borough 
Local Plan LP (1999) and Policy 2 of the emerging South East Lincolnshire Local 

Plan 2011 – 2036.  During consideration of this appeal the Council has provided 

an update to the appellant and I to confirm that Boston Borough Council and 

South Holland District Council adopted the South East Lincolnshire Local Plan 
2011-2036 (SELLP) (8 March 2019) and that consequently the saved Policies of 

the LP (1999) have been deleted.  The Council has confirmed that the relevant 

policy of the SELLP remains as Policy 2 as previously referred to in their 

Page 95

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate


Appeal Decision APP/Z2505/D/18/3216631 
 

 
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate                          2 

decision notice and I note there has been no change to the text of this 

particular policy since the Council’s decision.  I therefore consider that no party 

has been prejudiced and my assessment is therefore based on the updated 
position in terms of the development plan for the area.  The now deleted Policy 

G1 has therefore not been material in my considerations.   

6. The appellant has drawn my attention to an outline consent on adjoining land 

immediately to the east of the appeal site.  The Council has, in turn provided 

me with an indicative layout that accompanied the planning permission for that 
site.  In noting that the access to that development was fixed by the outline 

permission, there is a strong possibility that the development would comprise 

dwellings in relatively close proximity to the annexe.   

Main Issues 

7. The main issue in this appeal is, having regard to the size, siting and design of 

the development proposed, the effects on the living conditions of existing and 

future occupiers. 

Reasons  

8. The part of Wainfleet Road where the site is located is characterised by ribbon 

development comprising mainly detached dwellings of varying design.  The 

proposal would replace the existing single storey outbuilding with a 1.5 storey 
building.  The building would incorporate replacement garaging and storage at 

ground floor and would provide new living accommodation in the roofspace.   

9. As a detached building positioned at the far end of the garden, there would be 

no physical link to the host dwelling.  The level of accommodation proposed 

would contain all the facilities required to facilitate independent living with two 
bedrooms, an en-suite serving one of the bedrooms, a bathroom and open plan 

kitchen, lounge and dining space.  The design of the proposal with first floor 

accommodation and the incorporation of features including a first-floor balcony 
area and chimney would give the proposal the appearance of an independent 

unit.  There is an existing second point of access to the site from Wainfleet 

Road between Jura and Romney.  This could facilitate independent access 
which would give an even greater degree of separation from the host dwelling.   

10. Consequently, the facilities would go beyond what could be considered as basic 

ancillary accommodation and there would also be no obvious reliance on the 

main dwellinghouse.  Despite the appellant’s contention that the proposal is not 

for an independent unit, given the lack of physical link to the main dwelling, in 
my judgement the proposal would not appear subordinate nor has it been 

designed to function in an ancillary manner to the main dwelling.  Most 

commonly, an annexe would be in the form of an extension to an existing 

dwelling with limited facilities and a physical connection between the two 
elements.  When an annexe was no longer required, the accommodation would 

be incorporated within the main dwelling and the whole would be used as a 

single dwelling.  I therefore find that the Council’s concern that the proposal 
would be tantamount to an independent dwelling is not unfounded. 

11. The imposition of a condition to limit the use of the annex to purposes ancillary 

to the occupation of the main dwelling would not control the ownership or the 

sharing of services.  It would be difficult to monitor or enforce in the long term 

Page 96

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate


Appeal Decision APP/Z2505/D/18/3216631 
 

 
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate                          3 

and would not be appropriate in this instance having regard to the level of 

accommodation proposed and the juxtaposition of the two elements.   

12. The proposal includes bedroom windows at first floor level and these would 

have a particularly close relationship with the host dwelling and its associated 

garden.  Being mindful of the likely difficulties that might present themselves in 
the longer term should the proposed annex be no longer required in connection 

with the host dwelling, it is likely that privacy between the two would be 

significantly compromised if the proposal were to be occupied by unrelated 
persons. 

13. Moreover, as set out in my preliminary paragraph above, the balcony at first 

floor of the annexe together with other first floor windows would sit close to the 

future development site immediately to the east.  This would be likely to have 

an unacceptable effect on future occupiers in terms of overlooking of rear 
gardens and windows in the rear elevations of the nearest dwellings.  

14. The continued use of the second point of access off Wainfleet Road to access 

the proposed garden store would be infrequent and no different to the existing 

situation.  However, having recognised that it would be difficult to control 

independent use of the building, there may be a desire for occupants to use the 

unmade track for independent access.  Any intensification of use of this track 
could give rise to noise and disturbance beyond the established situation and 

the unmade nature of the track would be likely to increase such impacts.  Such 

an increase in activity would be appreciable particularly from the rear gardens 
serving Jura and Romney which border this access.  Whilst I acknowledge any 

increase in activity would be limited, this would only compound the undesirable 

relationship between the proposal and existing occupiers. 

15. Taking account of the considerations above regarding the physical detachment, 

size and free-standing, self-contained nature of the development, the proposal 
would be likely to give rise to a harmful effect on the living conditions for 

existing and future occupiers with particular regard to privacy for occupiers of 

the host dwelling and those residing in the proposed building, particularly given 
my concerns as to the potential long term implications as described above.  In 

addition, the proposal would give rise to unacceptable effects on the living 

conditions of the existing occupiers of Jura and Romney in terms of noise and 

disturbance. Furthermore, there would be unacceptable impacts arising on the 
future occupiers of the adjoining new development to the east in terms of loss 

of privacy. The proposal would therefore be contrary to Policy 2 of the SELLP 

(2019) which includes amongst other things that developments meet the 
principles of sustainable development in terms of size, scale and layout and 

impact on amenity as well as potential impacts on neighbouring land uses.  The 

proposal also conflicts with Paragraph 127 of the National Planning Policy 
Framework which includes that decisions should ensure a high standard of 

amenity for existing and future users. 

Other Matters 

16. The appeal submissions draw attention to several appeals allowing proposals 

for annexes elsewhere and a previous decision by the Council granting planning 

permission for an annexe on a different site.  From the information provided, 

none appear to reflect the particular circumstances of this case.  I have not 
therefore attached significant weight to these decisions either for or against the 

appeal scheme and I have considered the appeal proposal on its own merits. 

Page 97

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate


Appeal Decision APP/Z2505/D/18/3216631 
 

 
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate                          4 

17. The evidence indicates that the proposed annex would initially be for the 

appellant’s visiting children and in the next few years would provide 

accommodation to support an elderly relative.  Dismissing the appeal would 
mean that the appellant would be likely to have to consider other options for 

meeting their accommodation needs. There is no evidence before me to 

demonstrate that the appeal proposal would be the only means by which such 

needs may be reasonably met. Accordingly, dismissing the appeal would be a 
proportionate response given the identified harm. 

18. The appellant’s preference is to retain existing garage and storage facilities at 

ground level and I am advised this has influenced the design with upper floor 

accommodation.  However, I do not consider this as being sufficient 

justification for the design of the proposal, its lack of reliance on the host 
dwelling or the effects on living conditions identified above. 

19. The appellant refers to Policies 1 and 3 of the SELLP in their submission 

although I have not been provided with a copy of these policies nor has my 

attention been drawn to any specific elements within these policies which would 

justify the harm identified. 

Conclusion 

20. For the reasons given above, I conclude that the appeal should be dismissed. 

Martin Russell 

INSPECTOR  

 

Page 98

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate


  

 
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate 

 
 

 

Appeal Decision 
Site visit made on 19 March 2019  

by Ian McHugh Dip TP MRTPI 

an Inspector appointed by the Secretary of State  

Decision date: 21 June 2019 

 

Appeal Ref: APP/Z2505/W/18/3211205 

The Grange, 114 Church Green Road, Fishtoft, Boston, PE21 0QY 

• The appeal is made under section 78 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 
against a refusal to grant outline planning permission. 

• The appeal is made by Ms J Hill against the decision of Boston Borough Council. 

• The application Ref B/18/0075, dated 21 February 2018, was refused by notice dated 
24 May 2018.  

• The development proposed is an outline application with some matters (appearance, 
landscaping and scale) reserved for a proposed development of 6 no. dwellings, 
including details of access and layout. 

 

Decision 

1. The appeal is allowed and outline planning permission with some matters 
reserved (appearance, landscaping and scale) is granted for 6 no. dwellings, 

including details of access and layout at The Grange, 114 Church Green Road, 

Fishtoft, Boston, PE21 0QY, in accordance with the terms of the application   

Ref: B/18/0075, dated 21 February 2018, subject to the 8 conditions set out in 
Schedule A.   

Procedural Matters 

2. The description of the development contained in the planning appeal form and 
in the Council’s decision notice differs from that given by the appellant on the 

planning application form.  I am satisfied that wording used on the appeal form 

and the Council’s decision notice is a more precise description and, therefore, I 

have used this in my decision above. 

3. Since the appeal was lodged, the Council has adopted a new Local Plan.  
Consequently, I have considered this appeal having regard to the relevant 

policies of the South East Lincolnshire Local Plan 2011- 2036 (LP).  The Council 

also states that it has a five year supply of deliverable housing land.  Both 

parties have made reference to the emerging LP policies in their evidence and 
were invited to comment further on housing land supply.  I have considered 

any comments received in my decision.  

4. The submitted evidence contains reference to the National Planning Policy 

Framework 2012 (the Framework).  However, this has been superseded by the 

Framework 2019, which I am required to take into account.  Whilst paragraph 
numbers and the arrangement of the Framework have changed, I consider that 

the revised version does not alter the relevant appeal considerations.    

Page 99

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate


Appeal Decision APP/Z2505/W/18/3211205 
 

 
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate                          2 

Main Issues 

5. These are whether the appeal site is an acceptable location for new residential 

development together with its effect on the character and appearance of the 

area. 

Reasons 

6. The appeal site is a currently an unused touring caravan site, which is situated 

in the countryside between Fishtoft and the outskirts of Boston.  It is 

substantially enclosed by trees and other vegetation.  Within the site, the land 
is laid out with stone-surfaced bays and internal roadways.  A relatively large, 

former storage building is situated at the rear of the site.  The appellant’s 

property, The Grange, adjoins the site to the north and there are two dwellings 

on the opposite side of Church Green Road.   

7. The site has a relatively lengthy planning history, which has been summarised 
in the Council Officer’s report.  The evidence points to the site being originally 

part of an agricultural holding, with other uses being a haulage and warehouse 

business and, most recently, the touring caravan site.  I also note that a 

proposal to redevelop the site in 1993 for residential use was refused by the 
Council and subsequently dismissed at appeal (APP/Z2505/A/93/218646/P5).  

That refusal was based on similar reasons to those given by the Council in 

relation the current appeal proposal. However, I can only give the             
1993 decision limited weight, because of its age and due to the Government’s 

current objective of significantly boosting the supply of homes, as stated in 

paragraph 59 of the Framework.    

8. The proposal, which is in outline with access and layout to be considered at this 

stage, is to redevelop the site for 6 no. dwellings.  The development would be 
laid out in a form that would reflect an agricultural holding, with a detached 

dwelling towards the front of the site and the other buildings (dwellings) 

grouped around a central parking and manoeuvring area.  The plans indicate 

that the majority of trees and hedging around the perimeter of the site would 
be retained.  Vehicular access would be directly off Church Green Road at the 

northern end of the site.  The existing access at the opposite end would be 

closed. 

9. Policy 1 of the LP establishes the settlement hierarchy for the District.  This is 

complemented by Policy 11.  These policies seek to direct new development to 
the more sustainable locations in the Borough, where there are a range of 

services and community facilities.  In that regard, the appeal site is not within 

one of the defined settlements.  Policy 1 goes on to state that development in 
the countryside will be permitted if it is necessary to be in a countryside 

location and/or if it will meet the needs of the area in terms of economic, 

community or environmental benefits.  The explanatory text to the policy 
states that recreation and tourism uses can meet the broad sustainable 

objectives of the Local Plan.   

10. The Council also refers to the proposal being in conflict with paragraph 79 of 

the Framework (previously paragraph 55), which states that the development 

of isolated homes in the countryside should be resisted unless it meets with 
certain criteria.  However, because of the close proximity of the other 

dwellings, I am not persuaded that the appeal site is isolated, and in this 

regard, I consider that paragraph 79 is not, in itself, wholly relevant. 

Page 100

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate


Appeal Decision APP/Z2505/W/18/3211205 
 

 
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate                          3 

11. Although I have no evidence to show that the proposed development is 

necessary in the countryside, or that it would provide facilities to support 

recreation and tourism (as suggested in Policy 1), I consider that there are 
other wider benefits that weigh in favour of the proposal. 

12. The Council maintains that it now has a five year supply of deliverable housing 

land.  I have no evidence before me that indicates otherwise.  Nevertheless, 

this does not place an upper limit on the numbers of dwellings that can be 

permitted, provided proposals are considered to be a sustainable form of 
development. 

13. Having regard to the three objectives of sustainable development, as contained 

in paragraph 8 of the Framework, I consider that the appeal proposal would 

meet with both the economic and social objectives by providing additional 

homes and by providing local employment in the construction of the new 
dwellings.  In addition, there would be some local spending in the area by the 

occupants of the properties.  

14. Furthermore, paragraph 68 of the Framework stresses the importance of small 

and medium sized sites in meeting the housing requirement of an area.  In that 

regard, I consider that the appeal proposal accords with the provisions of the 

Framework. 

15. Turning to the environmental aspects of the proposal and its effect on the 
character and appearance of the area, I consider that the development offers 

an opportunity for enhancement.  I note that Policy 2 of the LP seeks (amongst 

other things) to reflect the principles of good design and to ensure that flood 

risk is managed.  These are a fundamental part of sustainable development 
and accord with the provisions of the Framework.  No objections have been 

raised by the Environment Agency or the Council in respect of flooding.   

16. The proposed layout and arrangement of the dwellings would sit in relatively 

spacious surroundings, complemented by the retention of some of the existing 

trees and other vegetation.  In my opinion, the proposal would reflect the 
rural/agricultural character of the area and it would reflect the principles of 

good design.  Consequently, I am not persuaded that the proposal would be 

unduly harmful to the character or appearance of the area.  It would also result 
in the redevelopment of previously developed land, which is an under-used 

resource and is something that is generally encouraged by the Framework.   

17. With regard to accessibility, I agree with the Council that the majority of trips 

generated by the development would be by motor vehicle, because of the 

limited access to public transport and the absence of footways and street 
lighting along Church Green Road.  However, that is often the case in rural 

areas and in some respects sites within, but on the edges of settlements, can 

be some distance from services, with comparable walking distances to bus 
routes.   In addition, paragraph 102 of the Framework refers to the fact that 

sustainable transport solutions will vary between urban and rural areas, and 

this should be taken into account in decision-making. 

Other Matter 

18. The Council has expressed concern that approval of the proposal would create 

a precedent for other developments along Church Green Road and in the 

countryside.  It contends that further developments would be harmful to the 

Page 101

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate


Appeal Decision APP/Z2505/W/18/3211205 
 

 
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate                          4 

character and appearance of the rural area.  However, each case must be 

considered on its merits, and as the appeal proposal would constitute the 

redevelopment of previously developed land and would also enhance the 
appearance of this largely unused site, this leads me to conclude that a 

precedent would not be created by allowing the appeal.  

Conditions 

19. The Council has suggested conditions in the event of the appeal being allowed.  

These have been considered in the light of the advice contained within the 

Planning Practice Guidance.  I note that the appellant has no objections to the 

suggested conditions. 

20. The standard conditions relating to the submission of the reserved matters and 

the timing of commencement are necessary and imposed.  A condition 
requiring the development to be carried out in accordance with the approved 

plans is necessary, for the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper 

planning. 

21. Conditions specifying the geometry and requiring details of the construction of 

the approved access are necessary, in order to ensure a safe means of access 
and egress to and from the site.  For the same reason, a condition is also 

imposed requiring the closure of the existing access at the site.  

22. To mitigate against the risk of flooding, a condition is also imposed requiring 

that the development is carried out in accordance with the submitted Flood 

Risk Assessment dated October 2017.  The Council has suggested that the 
dwellings must be at least 2 storeys in height.  I also note that the appellant 

has submitted Drawing Number: B/3153 – 03, which shows 2 storey dwellings.  

However, as the height of the properties is a matter of scale, I consider that 
this can be dealt with as part of the reserved matters submission and there is 

no need for it to be conditioned at this stage. 

Conclusion 

23. Although there is some conflict with the general thrust of Policy 1 of the LP, in 

terms of the location of the development within the countryside, I consider that 

this is outweighed by the material considerations I have detailed above.  

Therefore, it is concluded that the appeal should be allowed. 

 

Ian McHugh 

INSPECTOR 

 

Schedule A – conditions 

 

1) Details of the appearance, landscaping, and scale of development, 

(hereinafter called "the reserved matters") shall be submitted to and 

approved in writing by the local planning authority before any development 

begins and the development shall be carried out as approved. 

Page 102

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate


Appeal Decision APP/Z2505/W/18/3211205 
 

 
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate                          5 

2) Application for approval of the reserved matters shall be made to the local 

planning authority not later than three years from the date of this 

permission. 

3) The development hereby permitted shall begin no later than two years from 

the date of approval of the last of the reserved matters to be approved. 

4) The layout and access (subject to conditions 5 and 6 below) to the 

development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the 
following approved plans: 1:1250 scale Location Plan; Drawing No. B/3153 

02 - Revision A; Drawing Number 3249. Fishtoft. ND. AIP (Arboricultural 

Implications Plan); and Drawing Number 3249. Fishtoft. ND. AIP (Tree 
Protection Plan). 

5) Notwithstanding the detail shown on Drawing No. B/3153 02 - Revision A, 

the proposed vehicular access shall incorporate 6.0 metres radii tangential to 
the nearside edge of the carriageway of Church Green Road and the 

minimum width of the access shall be 5.0 metres. 

6) Before development commences on site further details relating to the 

vehicular access to the public highway, including materials, specification of 
works and construction method shall be submitted to the Local Planning 

Authority for approval. The approved details shall be implemented on site 

before the development is first brought into use and thereafter retained at 
all times. 

7) Within seven days of the new access being brought into use, the existing 

access onto Church Green Road shall be permanently closed in accordance 

with a scheme to be agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

8) The development permitted by this planning permission shall be carried out 

in accordance with the approved Flood Risk Assessment (FRA) by Neil 

Dowlman Architecture, ref B3153, October 2017.  The flood proofing shall 
include flood-proof doors or demountable defences to a height of 600mm 

above finished floor level and it shall also including the following mitigation 

measures specified in the FRA: 

• Finished floor levels shall be set no lower than 1m above lowest 

ground level where each dwelling will be located.  

• Flood proofing and flood resilience measures shall be used to at least 

300mm above expected flood level. 

  

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

Page 103

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate


This page is intentionally left blank



  

 
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate 

 
 

 

Appeal Decision 
Site visit made on 8 May 2019 

by R Sabu BA(Hons) MA BArch PgDip ARB RIBA 

an Inspector appointed by the Secretary of State 

Decision date: 20 June 2019 

 
 

Appeal Ref: APP/Z2505/W/18/3211660 

Old Leake Caravan Park, Shaw Lane, Old Leake, Boston PE22 9LQ     

• The appeal is made under section 78 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 
against a refusal to grant planning permission under section 73 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 for the development of land without complying with 

conditions subject to which a previous planning permission was granted. 
• The appeal is made by M and A White against Boston Borough Council. 
• The application Ref B/18/0136 is dated 03 April 2018.  
• The application sought planning permission to remove condition 3 of B16/0606/86 at 

The White Cat Camping and Caravan Park, Shaws Lane, Old Leake, Boston, Lincolnshire 
PE22 9LQ without complying with a condition attached to planning permission 
Ref B/15/0017, dated 20 April 2015. 

• The condition in dispute is No 2 which states that: No person shall occupy the caravans 
or tents for more than two months in any three month period and the caravans and 
tents shall be used for holiday accommodation only and for no other purpose. No 
caravan or tent shall form the main residence of any individual. 

• The reason given for the condition is: The site is in the open countryside in an area 
where permanent residential accommodation would be contrary to national and local 
policy. Occupation restricted to holiday accommodation is in accordance with the 

objectives of Local Plan Policies G1, R12 and C01. 
 

Decision 

1. The appeal is allowed and planning permission is granted to remove condition 3 

of B16/0606/86 at The White Cat Camping and Caravan Park, Shaws Lane, 

Old Leake, Boston, Lincolnshire PE22 9LQ without complying with a condition 
attached to planning permission Ref B/15/0017, dated 20 April 2015 at Old 

Leake Caravan Park, Shaw Lane, Old Leake, Boston PE22 9LQ in accordance 

with the application Ref B/18/0136 dated 03 April 2018, without compliance 

with condition number 2 previously imposed on planning permission 
Ref B/15/0017 dated 20 April 2015 and subject to the attached Schedule of 

Conditions. 

Application for costs 

2. An application for costs was made by M and A White against Boston Borough 

Council. This application is the subject of a separate Decision. 

Procedural Matter 

3. I note that the South East Lincolnshire Local Plan 2011-2036 Adopted 

March 2019 (LP) has been adopted since the Council’s decision notice was 

issued. I have therefore made my determination having regard to the LP rather 

than the former development plan policy cited in the Council’s reason for 

Page 105

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate


Appeal Decision APP/ Z2505/W/18/3211660 
 

 
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate                          2 

refusal of planning permission. Both main parties have had the opportunity to 

comment on the implications for the appeal and I am satisfied that no 

interested party has been prejudiced by my approach. 

4. I note a revised Caravan Numbers and bed spaces drawing (Ref: OL1 dated 

10/08/18). The main parties have confirmed that this drawing was part of the  
material considered by the Council in the determination of the planning 

application and I have therefore assessed the appeal on this basis.  

5. From the evidence before me, the proposal relates to an area within the green 

line outlined on drawing OL1 dated 10/08/18 within which the caravans 

relevant to this appeal are sited. This green line occupies part of the area 
indicated by the red line on the location plan which benefits from planning 

permission for up to 60 caravans and tent pitches. I have therefore determined 

the appeal on this basis. 

6. While the previous applications have related to The White Cat Camping and 

Caravan Park rather than Old Leake Caravan Park, from the evidence before 
me I am satisfied that the proposal relates to the same site. 

Main Issues 

7. While the decision notice states one reason for refusal, from the evidence 

before me, the main issues are: 

• the effect of the proposed development on the character and appearance of 
the area and 

• the effect of the proposed development on the living conditions of 

neighbouring occupiers with particular regard to noise and disturbance. 

Reasons 

Character and appearance 

8. The site is currently a leisure and tourist caravan and camping site and consists 

of a grassed area with caravans sited along the perimeter. There is a dwelling 
to one side of the site and an outbuilding which act to service the site. The 

appeal site is surrounded by open countryside. 

9. The appeal proposal seeks permission to enable a maximum of 25 caravans to 

be occupied by agricultural workers with a maximum continuous length of stay 

of any individual worker being limited to 10 months and would be for a 
temporary period of up to three years. 

10. The principle of development, the need for the development, flood risk, viability 

of tourism, and highway matters are not areas of dispute between the main 

parties. The 25 caravans for which approval is sought for agricultural workers 

accommodation are existing on the site and are being used for tourist 
accommodation. I have therefore focussed my assessment on the effect of the 

change of use of the caravans from tourism purposes to accommodation for 

agricultural workers on the character and appearance of the area. 

11. While the type of vehicular traffic associated with agricultural workers may be 

more likely to be vans, mini-buses or similar used to transport workers, these 
vehicles would be unlikely to have a substantial effect on the character and 

appearance of the area compared with family-type cars, trailers and caravans 

Page 106

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate


Appeal Decision APP/ Z2505/W/18/3211660 
 

 
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate                          3 

associated with holiday-makers as these are also likely to be fairly large 

vehicles.  

12. I acknowledge that the activities of agricultural workers may be different to 

holiday-makers in terms of the timing of occupation around employment hours, 

as well as the length of overall stay being longer and that the working hours, 
shift patterns, early pick ups and late drop offs may result in the coming and 

going of vehicles to the site being different to that of holiday makers. However, 

there is little evidence before me to suggest that the frequency of trips to and 
from the site would be greater to such an extent that the character and 

appearance of the countryside would be adversely affected compared with the 

use for tourism. 

13. While it may be the case that holiday-makers seek peace and tranquillity, they 

may include families and people staying for up to three months who may be 
likely to require similar domestic paraphernalia to seasonal workers staying for 

up to ten months. I acknowledge a local concern regarding litter, however 

there is little evidence before me to demonstrate that the levels of litter caused 

by agricultural workers would be substantially different than that caused by 
holiday makers. Given that agricultural workers would be likely to spend 

substantial portions of the day away from the appeal site during employment 

hours, there is little evidence before me to indicate that the activities of 
agricultural workers while on the site would be substantially different to 

holiday-makers such that the character and appearance of the area would be 

adversely affected.  

14. Consequently, the proposed development would not harm character and 

appearance of the area and would not conflict with LP Policy 2 which seeks, 
amongst other things, development that does not have a detrimental effect on 

the character and appearance of the area. It would also not conflict with the 

National Planning Policy Framework (Framework) in this regard. 

Living conditions 

15. While the Council has stated that the nature, type and level of activity 

associated with the occupation of the caravans by agricultural workers would 

be in conflict with the aspirations of the holiday-makers who may desire peace 
and tranquillity during their holiday, no further analysis has been provided to 

substantiate this statement. 

16. There is no evidence before me to demonstrate that the activities of 

agricultural workers would cause undue noise and disturbance to other 

occupiers of the site or to neighbouring occupiers. Given that agricultural 
workers are likely to spend substantial amounts of time away from the site for 

employment purposes, it would be unlikely that their activities while on the site 

result in substantially higher levels of noise and disturbance compared with 
holiday makers. 

17. Therefore, the proposed development would not harm the living conditions of 

neighbouring occupiers with particular regard to noise and disturbance and 

would not conflict with LP Policy 2 which seeks development that does not have 

an adverse impact in terms of noise and disturbance among other things. 
  

Page 107

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate


Appeal Decision APP/ Z2505/W/18/3211660 
 

 
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate                          4 

Other Matters 

18. I note local concerns including vehicular access and parking and the services 

and facilities of Old Leake. However, the Council has not objected on this basis 

and from the evidence before me I see no reason to disagree.  

19. I note the evidence regarding the fall-back position, however this has not 

altered my overall decision. 

20. None of the other matters raised outweigh or alter my conclusions on the main 

issues. 

Conditions 

21. I have considered the conditions suggested by the Council.  I have made some 

minor changes to these having regard to the tests set out in paragraph 55 of 

the National Planning Policy Framework and the guidance contained in the 
Planning Practice Guidance. I have amended some of the wording of the 

conditions in the interests of precision and clarity. 

22. I have included conditions requiring that the development is carried out in 

accordance with the approved plans and setting out the approved use of the 

area outside the green line but within the red line indicated on the plan, as well 
as the approved use within the green line. This is in the interest of certainty. 

23. I have not attached the condition restricting use to the appellants as it would 

not be reasonable or necessary and the Council has not provided sufficient 

justification for the imposition of the condition.  

24. Conditions relating to the period and use of the caravans for the 

accommodation of agricultural workers and setting out the use after the period 

of temporary consent is necessary in the interests of certainty. I have omitted 
the reference to the Borough of Boston as it would unreasonable to restrict the 

employment of workers to the district only. 

25. A condition requiring a register of names and home addresses of occupiers is 

necessary to safeguard the living conditions of future occupiers. In order to 

safeguard the character and appearance of the area a condition requiring 
details of refuse storage and collection arrangements is necessary.  

26. A condition relating to flooding is necessary to reduce the risk and impact of 

flooding since the site lies within Flood Risk Zone 3. 

Conclusion 

27. For the reasons given above, the appeal is allowed subject to conditions. 

 

R Sabu 

INSPECTOR 

 

  

Page 108

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate


Appeal Decision APP/ Z2505/W/18/3211660 
 

 
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate                          5 

Schedule of Conditions 

1) The land outlined in red on the submitted Site/layout plan at 1:1000 but 

excluding the area edged in green shall be occupied as follows: 

No person shall occupy the caravans or tents for more than two months in 

any three month period and the caravans and tents shall be used for holiday 

accommodation only and for no other purpose. No caravan or tent shall form 

the main residence of any individual. 

2) The development hereby approved shall be carried out and retained in 
accordance with the application form and the following approved plans: 

• Location Plan 1/1250 (1/4) 

• Caravan Pitch Numbers OL1 dated 10.7.18 

3) The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with 

the submitted plans and details, with no more than 25 static caravans as 
defined within the Caravan Sites and Control of Development Act 1960 and 

the Caravan Sites Act 1968 sited at any one time in the positions shown on 

the approved drawing on the land edged in green and used to provide 

agricultural worker accommodation. 

4) No person shall occupy any of the caravans indicated on the approved 

drawings for more than ten months in any rolling twelve month period and 
the caravans shall be used for the accommodation of seasonal workers 

employed solely in agriculture and for no other purpose. No caravan shall be 

the main residence of any individual. 

5) The owners of the development hereby approved shall maintain an up-to-

date register of the names and their home addresses of all occupiers relating 
to each of the numbered caravans shown on drawing OL1 dated 10/07/18 

along with: 

i. The caravan number responding to the submitted plan, 

ii. The date of arrival of each occupier on the site, 

iii. The location and business of their employment, 

iv. Their periods of employment and of their home addresses, and 

 Shall make this information available within 5 workings days of written 

request by the Local Planning Authority to the LPA. 

6) Details of secure refuse storage facilities and collection arrangements shall 

be submitted within 2 months of the date of this permission to the LPA for 
approval in writing. The approved details shall be implemented within 1 

month of approval and shall be retained and maintained in clean working 

order in accordance with the approved details. 

7) At the expiry of period of temporary consent hereby granted the permitted 

occupancy for the entire site shall be restricted as follows: 

No person shall occupy the caravans or tents for more than two months in 
any three month period and the caravans or tents shall be used for holiday 

Page 109

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate


Appeal Decision APP/ Z2505/W/18/3211660 
 

 
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate                          6 

accommodation only and for no other purpose. No caravan or tent shall form 

the main residence of any individual. 

8) The development hereby approved shall be carried out in accordance with 

the approved Flood Evacuation Plan dated October 2014. 

 

END OF SCHEDULE 

 

Page 110

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate


BOSTON BOROUGH COUNCIL
Municipal Buildings, West Street, Boston, PE21 8QR
Tel; 01205 314305  E-mail; planning@boston.gov.uk

Appeals Received

All Planning Application details can be viewed online at www.mybostonuk.com

Location Start DateDelegated or
Committee

Method of
Appeal

Development 
Description

Application 
Number

B/18/0320 Written 26/06/2019Delegated to
Officer

Land fronting Sharpe's
Paddock, Morley Lane, Bicker,
Boston, PE20 3DP

Outline application for
residential development (up to 2
dwellings) with all matters
reserved

APP/Z2505/W/19/3225714 Five Village

Page 1 Of 1 08/07/2019Development Manager - Lisa Hughes

P
age 111

A
genda Item

 9

https://www.mybostonuk.com/planning-application-search/
https://www.mybostonuk.com/planning-application-search/?ref=B/18/0320


T
his page is intentionally left blank



BOSTON BOROUGH COUNCIL
Municipal Buildings, West Street, Boston, Lincs, PE21 8QR

Tel: 01205 314305  Email: planning@boston.gov.uk

DELEGATED DECISION LIST

Full details of Planning Applications and Decisions can be viewed online at www.mybostonuk.com

Location DecisionApplicant 
Name

Decision
Date

Case 
Officer

Application 
Number

Development 
Description

B/19/0017 15/04/2019John Taylor Single storey steel portal
frame building for storage

Favourable with
conditions

Land off Cowbroads Lane,
Old Leake Commonside,
Boston, PE22 9QZ

Wilkinson
Property
[Boston] Ltd.

Old Leake Parish
Council

B/19/0031 15/04/2019Greggs plc Favourable with
conditions

Trevor
Thompson

Plot A , The Quadrant, Land
adjacent to A16, Wyberton,
Boston, PE21 7HW

Advertisement Consent for
two fascia signs, one
projecting sign and two
internal posters

Wyberton Parish Council

B/19/0073 15/04/2019Fountain Favourable with
conditions

Trevor
Thompson

Leyland, 322A Willington
Road, Kirton End, Boston,
PE20 1NR

Approval of reserved
matters following outline
approval B/18/0226, for the
construction of one dwelling
plus single storey
outbuilding, including

Page 1 Of 37 08/07/2019Development Manager - Lisa Hughes

P
age 113

A
genda Item

 10

https://www.mybostonuk.com/planning-application-search/
https://www.mybostonuk.com/planning-application-search/?ref=B/19/0017
https://www.mybostonuk.com/planning-application-search/?ref=B/19/0031
https://www.mybostonuk.com/planning-application-search/?ref=B/19/0073


Location DecisionApplicant 
Name

Decision
Date

Case 
Officer

Application 
Number

Development 
Description

appearance, landscaping,
layout and scale

Kirton Parish Council

B/19/0071 15/04/2019Single storey rear extension Pollard-KingAndrew
Watson

Favourable with
conditions

Church View, Low Road,
Wyberton, Boston, PE21
7AS

Wyberton Parish Council

B/19/0091 16/04/2019Lidl UK GmbH Favourable with
conditions

Stuart
Thomsett

Former Boston Bedworld
Site, Tawney Street,
Boston, PE21 6PA

Advertisement consent for 5
wall mounted illuminated
billboards, 2 wall mounted
billboards, 1 small mounted
sign, 1 poster display unit, 1
canopy sign, 1 directional
sign and 1 flagpole sign

Boston Town Area
Committee

B/19/0128 16/04/2019No objectionsAndrew
Watson

Lincolnshire
County
Council

Sam Newsom Centre,
South Street, Boston,
Lincolnshire, PE21 6HT

County Matters
Consultation for the
replacement of existing
streetlight attached to
building

Boston Town Area
Committee

Page 2 Of 37 08/07/2019Development Manager - Lisa Hughes

P
age 114

https://www.mybostonuk.com/planning-application-search/?ref=B/19/0071
https://www.mybostonuk.com/planning-application-search/?ref=B/19/0091
https://www.mybostonuk.com/planning-application-search/?ref=B/19/0128


Location DecisionApplicant 
Name

Decision
Date

Case 
Officer

Application 
Number

Development 
Description

B/19/0043 17/04/2019John Taylor Graves Favourable with
conditions

116A Sleaford Road,
Boston, PE21 7PE

Single storey rear and infill
extensions to dwelling

Boston Town Area
Committee

B/19/0053 17/04/2019John Taylor E.I.Group PLC Favourable with
conditions

The Stump & Candle,
Market Place, Boston, PE21
6NF

Listed Building Consent for
internal alterations and
re-furbishment of existing
trade areas and erection of
smoking shelter

Boston Town Area
Committee

B/18/0499 18/04/2019John Taylor Favourable with
conditions

Smart Move
(Boston) Ltd.

Land adjacent to Waterfall
Plaza, Fountain Lane,
Boston, PE21 6DY

Proposed change of use to
provide timber shop unit
and external sales area
under use Class A1

Boston Town Area
Committee

B/19/0028 18/04/2019John Taylor Favourable with
conditions

T S Dixon &
Sons

Mobs Eye Farm, Sutterton
Drove, Amber Hill, Boston,
PE20 3RS

Continued siting of a
temporary Mobile Home to
use as accommodation for
agricultural worker

Amber Hill Parish
Council

Page 3 Of 37 08/07/2019Development Manager - Lisa Hughes

P
age 115

https://www.mybostonuk.com/planning-application-search/?ref=B/19/0043
https://www.mybostonuk.com/planning-application-search/?ref=B/19/0053
https://www.mybostonuk.com/planning-application-search/?ref=B/18/0499
https://www.mybostonuk.com/planning-application-search/?ref=B/19/0028


Location DecisionApplicant 
Name

Decision
Date

Case 
Officer

Application 
Number

Development 
Description

B/19/0082 18/04/2019Mason Favourable with
conditions

Rosegarth House, Tower
Street, Boston,  PE21 8RX

Andrew
Watson

Installation of gas fire
central heating

Boston Town Area
Committee

B/18/0086/CD1 23/04/2019Lidl UK GmbH Condition
Discharge

Trevor
Thompson

Former Boston Bedworld,
Tawney Street, Boston,
PE21 6PA

Application to have details
approved relating to
conditions 5 (Pedestrian
Thoroughfare), 6 (External
Plant/Equipment) and 7
(External Treatment) of
planning permission
B/18/0086

Boston Town Area
Committee

B/19/0086 23/04/2019Read Favourable with
conditions

Andrew
Watson

The Cottage, Church End,
Frampton, Boston PE20
1AX

Change or use  from
agricultural to residential.
Erection of a single storey
rear extensions with
alterations

Frampton Parish Council

B/18/0086/CD2 23/04/2019Lidl Great
Britain Limited

Condition
Discharge

Bed World, Tawney Street,
Boston, PE21 6PA

Trevor
Thompson

Application to have details
approved relating to
conditions 9 (boundary
treatments) of planning
permission B/18/0086

Page 4 Of 37 08/07/2019Development Manager - Lisa Hughes

P
age 116

https://www.mybostonuk.com/planning-application-search/?ref=B/19/0082
https://www.mybostonuk.com/planning-application-search/?ref=B/18/0086/CD1
https://www.mybostonuk.com/planning-application-search/?ref=B/19/0086
https://www.mybostonuk.com/planning-application-search/?ref=B/18/0086/CD2


Location DecisionApplicant 
Name

Decision
Date

Case 
Officer

Application 
Number

Development 
Description

B/18/0520/CD1 23/04/2019Condition
Discharge

Trevor
Thompson

Terra Firma
Estates Ltd

Land adjacent to railway
line at Tattershall Road,
Boston, PE21 9LF

Application to have details
approved relating to
condition 6 (land
contamination) and 7
(remediation method
statement) of planning
permission B/18/0520
(Erection of detached two
storey dwelling, with
detached single garage)

Boston Town Area
Committee

B/19/0111 24/04/2019Grant Favourable with
conditions

123, Sleaford Road, Boston
PE21 8EY

Andrew
Watson

Single storey double garage
extension to existing garage

Boston Town Area
Committee

B/18/0512 25/04/2019HPV (Lister
Way)

Favourable with
conditions

Land off Lister Way,
Boston, PE21 8NU

Trevor
Thompson

2 commercial units (Class
B2 and B8), together with
ancillary trade counters and
MOT testing facility

Boston Town Area
Committee

PRE/19/0003 25/04/2019Boston AEFAndrew

Page 5 Of 37 08/07/2019Development Manager - Lisa Hughes

P
age 117

https://www.mybostonuk.com/planning-application-search/?ref=B/18/0520/CD1
https://www.mybostonuk.com/planning-application-search/?ref=B/19/0111
https://www.mybostonuk.com/planning-application-search/?ref=B/18/0512
https://www.mybostonuk.com/planning-application-search/?ref=PRE/19/0003


Location DecisionApplicant 
Name

Decision
Date

Case 
Officer

Application 
Number

Development 
Description

Watson
BBC
Consultation
Response

Riverside Industrial Estate
(adj to the River Witham),
Marsh Lane, Boston PE21
7SJ

Revised Statement of
Community Consultation
(SoCC) for the proposed
Boston Alternative Energy
Facility

Boston Town Area
Committee

PRE/19/0003 25/04/2019Boston AEFAndrew
Watson

BBC
Consultation
Response

Riverside Industrial Estate
(adj to the River Witham),
Marsh Lane, Boston PE21
7SJ

Revised Statement of
Community Consultation
(SoCC) for the proposed
Boston Alternative Energy
Facility

Fishtoft Parish Council

PRE/19/0003 25/04/2019Boston AEFAndrew
Watson

BBC
Consultation
Response

Riverside Industrial Estate
(adj to the River Witham),
Marsh Lane, Boston PE21
7SJ

Revised Statement of
Community Consultation
(SoCC) for the proposed
Boston Alternative Energy
Facility

Wyberton Parish Council

B/19/0050 29/04/2019Favourable with
conditions

Trevor
Thompson

Burney
Estates Ltd

Plots C and D, The
Quadrant, Land adjacent to
A16, Wyberton, Boston

Application for approval of
reserved matters
(appearance, layout and
scale) for the construction
of hotel (Class C1), public
house/restaurant (Class A4)

Page 6 Of 37 08/07/2019Development Manager - Lisa Hughes

P
age 118

https://www.mybostonuk.com/planning-application-search/?ref=PRE/19/0003
https://www.mybostonuk.com/planning-application-search/?ref=PRE/19/0003
https://www.mybostonuk.com/planning-application-search/?ref=B/19/0050


Location DecisionApplicant 
Name

Decision
Date

Case 
Officer

Application 
Number

Development 
Description

and drive-thru restaurant
(Mixed use of Class A1 and
A3) plus associated car
parks and internal roadway

Wyberton Parish Council

B/19/0110 29/04/2019Favourable with
conditions

Andrew
Watson

Fosdyke Yacht
Haven Ltd

Land opposite Fosdyke
Yacht Haven, Moulton
Washway, Fosdyke Bridge,
Boston, PE20 2DB

Approval of reserved
matters (part existing
access, appearance,
landscaping, layout and
scale) following outline
approval B/18/0142, for the
erection of single storey
steel framed storage
building

Fosdyke Parish Council

B/19/0096 01/05/2019Booth Favourable with
conditions

22, Glen Drive, Boston
PE21 7QB

Andrew
Watson

Part single/part two storey
rear extension

Boston Town Area
Committee

B/19/0103 01/05/2019John Taylor Leggate Favourable with
conditions

The Farmhouse, Mastins
Bridge, Willoughby Hills,
Fishtoft, PE22 0RQ

Demolition of single storey
rear extension and erection
of two storey rear extension
with single storey element
with vaulted ceiling

Fishtoft Parish Council

Page 7 Of 37 08/07/2019Development Manager - Lisa Hughes

P
age 119

https://www.mybostonuk.com/planning-application-search/?ref=B/19/0110
https://www.mybostonuk.com/planning-application-search/?ref=B/19/0096
https://www.mybostonuk.com/planning-application-search/?ref=B/19/0103


Location DecisionApplicant 
Name

Decision
Date

Case 
Officer

Application 
Number

Development 
Description

B/19/0151 01/05/2019Unfavourable
decision

Simon
Eldred

Vauxhall Court Care Home,
Freiston Road, Boston,
PE21 0JW

Serving All Ltd
T/A vauxhall
Court Care
Home

Application for works to
trees subject to TPO
(Boston No. 7) to include:

T1 - Monterey Cypress
(Cupressus macrocarpa) -
fell

Boston Town Area
Committee

B/19/0025 07/05/2019Reece Favourable with
conditions

Andrew
Watson

St Nicholas Church Hall,
Fishtoft Road, Boston,
PE21 0AA

Single storey storeroom at
rear of hall with a
connecting door to hall

Boston Town Area
Committee

B/19/0087 08/05/2019Ben Gardner Favourable with
conditions

Andrew
Watson

14, Spice Avenue,
Wyberton, Boston, PE21
7BQ

Convert existing garage to
dining room and first floor
extension

Wyberton Parish Council

B/19/0092 08/05/2019Two storey rear extension Duffy Favourable with
conditions

54, Willington Road, Kirton,
Boston, PE20 1EW

Andrew
Watson

Kirton Parish Council

B/19/0094 08/05/2019Staples
Brothers Ltd

Favourable with
conditions

Marsh Farm, Sea Lane,
Wrangle, Boston PE22 9HE

Trevor
Thompson

Proposed vehicle
hardstanding and

Page 8 Of 37 08/07/2019Development Manager - Lisa Hughes

P
age 120

https://www.mybostonuk.com/planning-application-search/?ref=B/19/0151
https://www.mybostonuk.com/planning-application-search/?ref=B/19/0025
https://www.mybostonuk.com/planning-application-search/?ref=B/19/0087
https://www.mybostonuk.com/planning-application-search/?ref=B/19/0092
https://www.mybostonuk.com/planning-application-search/?ref=B/19/0094


Location DecisionApplicant 
Name

Decision
Date

Case 
Officer

Application 
Number

Development 
Description

HGV/Farm Vehicle Brake
Test Facility

Wrangle Parish Council

B/17/0450/NMA 08/05/2019TamasAndrew
Watson

Approved
Non-material
Amendment

Mereside, Station Road,
Hubberts Bridge, Boston,,
PE20 3QR

Application under s96A for
a non-material amendment
to approval B/17/0450 for a
reduction in width of the
extension and addition of an
external door

Frampton Parish Council

B/19/0001 09/05/2019C/O agent Favourable with
conditions

Trevor
Thompson

Land East of 5, 6 & 7
Hessle Court, Boston, PE21
8AJ

Application for approval of
reserved matters
(appearance, landscaping,
layout and scale) for the
construction of a two storey
dwelling with detached
garage following the grant
of outline planning
permission (Ref: B/17/0031)
including submission of
details to discharge
conditions 5 and 6 (land
contamination) and
condition 11 (biodiversity)

Boston Town Area
Committee

Page 9 Of 37 08/07/2019Development Manager - Lisa Hughes

P
age 121

https://www.mybostonuk.com/planning-application-search/?ref=B/17/0450/NMA
https://www.mybostonuk.com/planning-application-search/?ref=B/19/0001


Location DecisionApplicant 
Name

Decision
Date

Case 
Officer

Application 
Number

Development 
Description

B/19/0016 09/05/2019Office building with
workshop

Trevor
Thompson

Favourable with
conditions

Electrical
Contractors
Ltd

Murlec Electrical
Contractors Ltd, Eden
Business Park, Avalon
Road, Kirton, Boston, PE20
1QR

Kirton Parish Council

B/19/0056 09/05/2019Favourable with
conditions

Trevor
Thompson

Sithamparanat
har

Vauxhall Court Nursing
Home, Freiston Road,
Boston, PE21 0JW

Portakabin with glazed
connection addition to
nursing home to form new
laundry room

Boston Town Area
Committee

B/19/0067 09/05/2019Gardner Favourable with
conditions

Andrew
Watson

12 Spice Avenue,
Wyberton, Boston, PE21
7BQ

Single storey extension to
front and two storey rear
extension

Wyberton Parish Council

B/19/0077 10/05/2019Favourable with
conditions

7-11 Bridge Street, Boston
PE21 8QF

Trevor
Thompson

Trustilink
Building
Solutions

Listed Building Consent for
the installation of six roof
lights, installation of two
new doorways, construction
of one dormer window,
alterations to existing mono
pitched roofs,  erection of
wrought iron raised external
rear access walkway plus
internal works

Page 10 Of 37 08/07/2019Development Manager - Lisa Hughes

P
age 122

https://www.mybostonuk.com/planning-application-search/?ref=B/19/0016
https://www.mybostonuk.com/planning-application-search/?ref=B/19/0056
https://www.mybostonuk.com/planning-application-search/?ref=B/19/0067
https://www.mybostonuk.com/planning-application-search/?ref=B/19/0077


Location DecisionApplicant 
Name

Decision
Date

Case 
Officer

Application 
Number

Development 
Description

Boston Town Area
Committee

B/18/0530 13/05/2019Unfavourable
decision

Trevor
Thompson

Reed Point, Spalding Road,
Sutterton, Boston, PE20
2EP

Erection of 9 industrial
units, construction of new
vehicular access, and
associated parking areas

Fossit &
Thorne
Pension
Scheme

Sutterton Parish Council

B/19/0081 13/05/2019Erection of cattle shed FordAndrew
Watson

Favourable with
conditions

The Meadows, Kirton
Drove, Holland Fen,
Boston,  PE20 3SZ

Brothertoft Parish
Council

B/19/0098 13/05/2019St John
Sutcliffe

Unfavourable
decision

Focus House, Resolution
Close, Boston  PE21 7TT

Andrew
Watson

Proposed change of use
From Class B1 (Office) to
Class D1 (Non-residential
institutions)

Wyberton Parish Council

B/17/0317/CD1 15/05/2019Chestnut
Homes Ltd

Condition
Discharge

Heron Park, Wyberton Low
Road, Boston, PE21 7RZ

Trevor
Thompson

Application to have details
approved relating to
conditions C 4 (flood risk), 
C8 (footpath), C 11 (estate
road and footpaths), C 12
(surface water drainage
scheme), C 13 (foul water

Page 11 Of 37 08/07/2019Development Manager - Lisa Hughes

P
age 123

https://www.mybostonuk.com/planning-application-search/?ref=B/18/0530
https://www.mybostonuk.com/planning-application-search/?ref=B/19/0081
https://www.mybostonuk.com/planning-application-search/?ref=B/19/0098
https://www.mybostonuk.com/planning-application-search/?ref=B/17/0317/CD1


Location DecisionApplicant 
Name

Decision
Date

Case 
Officer

Application 
Number

Development 
Description

strategy), C 14 (slab level),
C 15 (hard and soft
landscaping), C 16 (hard
and soft landscaping
works), C 17 (public open
space), C 18 (Landscape
Management Plan), C 19
(external parking areas), C
20 (Construction
Management Plan) C 21 
(flood prevention) of
planning permission
B/17/0317 (Hybrid outline
application for residential
development (up to 200
dwellings) including Phase
1

Boston Town Area
Committee

B/17/0317/CD1 15/05/2019Chestnut
Homes Ltd

Condition
Discharge

Heron Park, Wyberton Low
Road, Boston, PE21 7RZ

Trevor
Thompson

Application to have details
approved relating to
conditions C 4 (flood risk), 
C8 (footpath), C 11 (estate
road and footpaths), C 12
(surface water drainage
scheme), C 13 (foul water
strategy), C 14 (slab level),
C 15 (hard and soft
landscaping), C 16 (hard
and soft landscaping

Page 12 Of 37 08/07/2019Development Manager - Lisa Hughes

P
age 124

https://www.mybostonuk.com/planning-application-search/?ref=B/17/0317/CD1


Location DecisionApplicant 
Name

Decision
Date

Case 
Officer

Application 
Number

Development 
Description

works), C 17 (public open
space), C 18 (Landscape
Management Plan), C 19
(external parking areas), C
20 (Construction
Management Plan) C 21 
(flood prevention) of
planning permission
B/17/0317 (Hybrid outline
application for residential
development (up to 200
dwellings) including Phase
1

Wyberton Parish Council

B/19/0032 17/05/2019Greggs plc Favourable with
conditions

Trevor
Thompson

Plot A , The Quadrant, Land
adjacent to A16, Wyberton,
Boston, PE21 7HW

Installation of two air
conditioning condenser
units and one extract grille

Wyberton Parish Council

B/19/0051 20/05/2019Kathryn Kelly Favourable with
conditions

Trevor
Thompson

Barn next to Jasmine
Cottage, Mill Lane, Bicker,
Boston, PE20 3AD

Conversion and extension
of existing agricultural barn
into a single storey dwelling
with lean to open storage
area following demolition of 
existing lean to storage
area

Bicker Parish Council

Page 13 Of 37 08/07/2019Development Manager - Lisa Hughes

P
age 125

https://www.mybostonuk.com/planning-application-search/?ref=B/19/0032
https://www.mybostonuk.com/planning-application-search/?ref=B/19/0051


Location DecisionApplicant 
Name

Decision
Date

Case 
Officer

Application 
Number

Development 
Description

B/19/0063 20/05/2019Vickers Favourable with
conditions

Andrew
Watson

Restore Church,
Liquorpond Street, Boston,
PE21 8UJ

Retention of change of use
to D1 (place of worship) and
siting of a mobile catering
van in car park

Boston Town Area
Committee

B/19/0115 20/05/2019C/O Agent Withdrawn by
applicant/agent

Heron Park, Wyberton Low
Road, Boston, PE21 7SQ

Trevor
Thompson

Erection of a GRP
substation in association
with residential
development approved
under B/17/0317 and
B/18/0489

Wyberton Parish Council

B/19/0120 20/05/2019HydeMiddlecote, 63, Spilsby
Road, Boston, PE21 9NX

Simon
Eldred

Favourable
Planning
decision

Application under s211 for
works to trees in a
conservation area to
include:

TA. (Ash) - Fell
TB. (Eucalyptus) -
Reduction in height
TC. (Evergreen) - Fell

Boston Town Area
Committee

B/17/0316/CD1 20/05/2019John Taylor Condition
Discharge

Geda
Construction

Site A, Land off Girls School
Lane, Butterwick,

Page 14 Of 37 08/07/2019Development Manager - Lisa Hughes

P
age 126

https://www.mybostonuk.com/planning-application-search/?ref=B/19/0063
https://www.mybostonuk.com/planning-application-search/?ref=B/19/0115
https://www.mybostonuk.com/planning-application-search/?ref=B/19/0120
https://www.mybostonuk.com/planning-application-search/?ref=B/17/0316/CD1


Location DecisionApplicant 
Name

Decision
Date

Case 
Officer

Application 
Number

Development 
Description

Lincolnshire
Application to approve
condition 8 (Construction
Management Plan) on
approval B/17/0316 (
Outline application for 7no.
affordable dwellings and
2no. market dwellings with
matters relating to layout,
scale, appearance,
landscaping and access
reserved for later
consideration)

Butterwick Parish
Council

B/17/0315/CD1 20/05/2019John Taylor Condition
Discharge

Geda
Construction

Site B, Land off Girls School
Lane, Butterwick,
Lincolnshire

Application to approve
condition 8 (Construction
Management Plan) on
approval B/17/0315 (Outline
application for 7no.
affordable dwellings with
matters relating to layout,
scale, appearance,
landscaping and access
reserved for later
consideration)

Butterwick Parish
Council

Page 15 Of 37 08/07/2019Development Manager - Lisa Hughes

P
age 127

https://www.mybostonuk.com/planning-application-search/?ref=B/17/0315/CD1


Location DecisionApplicant 
Name

Decision
Date

Case 
Officer

Application 
Number

Development 
Description

B/19/0152 20/05/2019Robinson Favourable with
conditions

3, Skirbeck Gardens,
Boston,  PE21 0DH

Simon
Eldred

Application for works to
trees subject to TPO
(Skirbeck No.1) to include:

1.  Horse chestnut - Fell
2.  Ash - Fell
3.  Ash - reduce height by
6m, reduce lateral spread
by 2m

Boston Town Area
Committee

B/19/0121 22/05/2019Withdrawn by
applicant/agent

Andrew
Watson

SPC
Developments
Ltd

Land to the rear of 84,
Boston Road, Kirton,
Boston PE20 1ER

Approval of reserved
matters (Access,
Appearance, Landscaping,
Layout and Scale) for the
erection of 4 dwellings
approved under application
B/17/0491

Kirton Parish Council

B/19/0105 23/05/2019French Favourable with
conditions

Field View, Church Road,
Freiston, Boston, PE22 0LA

Andrew
Watson

Single storey rear extension
following demolition of
existing conservatory

Freiston Parish Council

B/18/0170/NMA2 23/05/2019Ajala23, Haven Bank, Boston,
PE21 8SB

Andrew
Watson

Approved
Non-material
Amendment

Application under s96A for
a non material amendment
to approval B/18/0170/NMA

Page 16 Of 37 08/07/2019Development Manager - Lisa Hughes

P
age 128

https://www.mybostonuk.com/planning-application-search/?ref=B/19/0152
https://www.mybostonuk.com/planning-application-search/?ref=B/19/0121
https://www.mybostonuk.com/planning-application-search/?ref=B/19/0105
https://www.mybostonuk.com/planning-application-search/?ref=B/18/0170/NMA2


Location DecisionApplicant 
Name

Decision
Date

Case 
Officer

Application 
Number

Development 
Description

 to amend layout of self
contained flats

Boston Town Area
Committee

B/19/0088 24/05/2019Boston Barrier, BostonJohn Taylor Environment
Agency

Condition
Discharge

Application to have details
approved relating to
condition 3 (landscaping)
relating to deemed planning
permission under Section
90 (2A) of the Town and
Country Planning Act
relating to The Boston
Barrier Order 2017 No.
1329

Boston Town Area
Committee

B/19/0112 24/05/2019Rogers Favourable with
conditions

7, Mentmore Gardens,
Boston, PE21 7TH

Andrew
Watson

Single storey rear extension
following demolition of
existing conservatory

Boston Town Area
Committee

B/18/0319/CD1 24/05/2019Claydon Favourable with
conditions

Andrew
Watson

Dial House, Timms Drove,
Low Grounds, Boston,
PE20 3PG

Application to have details
approved relating to
condition 3 (land
contamination), conditions 4
and 5 (remediation strategy)

Page 17 Of 37 08/07/2019Development Manager - Lisa Hughes

P
age 129

https://www.mybostonuk.com/planning-application-search/?ref=B/19/0088
https://www.mybostonuk.com/planning-application-search/?ref=B/19/0112
https://www.mybostonuk.com/planning-application-search/?ref=B/18/0319/CD1


Location DecisionApplicant 
Name

Decision
Date

Case 
Officer

Application 
Number

Development 
Description

and condition 6 (closure
report) of planning
permission B/18/0319

Swineshead Parish
Council

B/19/0132 28/05/2019John Taylor Sands Favourable with
conditions

Land at The Cottage, Brick
Lane, Wrangle, Boston,
PE22 9ES

Approval of all matters
(Access, Appearance,
Landscaping, Layout and
Scale) reserved following
outline approval of
B/17/0285 of a 1.5 storey
dwelling

Wrangle Parish Council

B/19/0126 28/05/2019John Taylor Traynor Favourable with
conditions

23, Kings Avenue, Boston,
PE21 0AW

Single storey side & rear
extension following
demolition of existing
garage and erection of new
detached double garage

Boston Town Area
Committee

B/19/0126 28/05/2019John Taylor Traynor Favourable with
conditions

23, Kings Avenue, Boston,
PE21 0AW

Single storey side & rear
extension following
demolition of existing
garage and erection of new
detached double garage

Page 18 Of 37 08/07/2019Development Manager - Lisa Hughes

P
age 130

https://www.mybostonuk.com/planning-application-search/?ref=B/19/0132
https://www.mybostonuk.com/planning-application-search/?ref=B/19/0126
https://www.mybostonuk.com/planning-application-search/?ref=B/19/0126


Location DecisionApplicant 
Name

Decision
Date

Case 
Officer

Application 
Number

Development 
Description

Fishtoft Parish Council

B/19/0024 30/05/2019Wong Favourable with
conditions

Andrew
Watson

Kirton Cafe, 20-22, High
Street, Kirton, Boston, 
PE20 1EG

Retention of change of use
from cafe (Class A3 use)  to
cafe and takeaway (mixed
Class A3 and A5 use)

Kirton Parish Council

B/18/0262 31/05/2019Mistry Favourable with
conditions

23-25 Pen Street, Boston,
PE21 6TJ

Trevor
Thompson

Outline application for
residential development of
up to 3 no. dwellings
including appearance,
scale, layout and access
with landscaping reserved
for later approval

Boston Town Area
Committee

B/19/0127 31/05/2019Searson Favourable with
conditions

Andrew
Watson

Pippenhall Cottage,
Blackjack Road,
Swineshead, Boston,  PE20
3HH

Change of use of
agricultural land to
equestrian use and erection
of stable block comprising
hay store, tack room & 3
loose boxes

Swineshead Parish
Council

B/19/0141 31/05/2019HangerTwo storey front extension

Page 19 Of 37 08/07/2019Development Manager - Lisa Hughes

P
age 131

https://www.mybostonuk.com/planning-application-search/?ref=B/19/0024
https://www.mybostonuk.com/planning-application-search/?ref=B/18/0262
https://www.mybostonuk.com/planning-application-search/?ref=B/19/0127
https://www.mybostonuk.com/planning-application-search/?ref=B/19/0141


Location DecisionApplicant 
Name

Decision
Date

Case 
Officer

Application 
Number

Development 
Description

and front porch
Andrew
Watson

Favourable with
conditions

87, West End Road,
Wyberton, Boston,
Lincolnshire, PE21 7LP

Wyberton Parish Council

B/19/0150 31/05/2019Single storey rear extension Bartholemew Favourable with
conditions

33, White House Lane,
Boston, PE21 0BH

Andrew
Watson

Fishtoft Parish Council

B/18/0336/NMA 31/05/2019Bateman67, Park Avenue, Sutterton,
Boston,  PE20 2JP

Andrew
Watson

Approved
Non-material
Amendment

Application under s96A for
a non material amendment
to approval B/18/0366 to
change one large central
window to two smaller
windows on front elevation
and move door at side
elevation to rear elevation

Sutterton Parish Council

B/19/0035 04/06/2019Bramall Favourable with
conditions

Andrew
Watson

The Barn, Creaseyplot
Lane, Swineshead, Boston,
PE20 3ND

Change of use of
agricultural barn to storage
building (Class B8)

Swineshead Parish
Council

B/19/0156 04/06/2019Hayes Favourable with

Page 20 Of 37 08/07/2019Development Manager - Lisa Hughes

P
age 132

https://www.mybostonuk.com/planning-application-search/?ref=B/19/0150
https://www.mybostonuk.com/planning-application-search/?ref=B/18/0336/NMA
https://www.mybostonuk.com/planning-application-search/?ref=B/19/0035
https://www.mybostonuk.com/planning-application-search/?ref=B/19/0156


Location DecisionApplicant 
Name

Decision
Date

Case 
Officer

Application 
Number

Development 
Description

conditions
Andrew
Watson

1, Coronation Cottages, Cut
End Road, Fishtoft, Boston,
PE21 0SN

Erection of single storey
rear and two storey side
extension

Fishtoft Parish Council

B/18/0311/NMA 04/06/2019BudgeAndrew
Watson

Approved
Non-material
Amendment

170, Wyberton Low Road,
Boston, Lincolnshire, PE21
7SE

Application under s96A for
a non-material amendment
to approval B/18/0311 to
install french doors for
access to garden

Boston Town Area
Committee

B/19/0113 05/06/2019Activ Property
Management

Favourable with
conditions

Axe & Cleaver,16  West
Street, Boston, PE21 8QH

Andrew
Watson

Change of use from a
Public House to a mixed
use of  Class A1 (Retail),
Class A2 (Financial and
Profession Services), Class
A3 (Restaurants and Cafes,
Class A4 (Drinking
Establishments and Class
A5 (Hot Food Takeaways)

Boston Town Area
Committee

B/19/0148 05/06/2019A Rate Favourable with
conditions

Emoclew, Spittal Hill Road,
Freiston, Boston, PE22 0PA

Andrew
Watson

Side and rear extension
following demolition of
lean-to and replacement

Page 21 Of 37 08/07/2019Development Manager - Lisa Hughes

P
age 133

https://www.mybostonuk.com/planning-application-search/?ref=B/18/0311/NMA
https://www.mybostonuk.com/planning-application-search/?ref=B/19/0113
https://www.mybostonuk.com/planning-application-search/?ref=B/19/0148


Location DecisionApplicant 
Name

Decision
Date

Case 
Officer

Application 
Number

Development 
Description

garage following demolition
of existing

Freiston Parish Council

B/19/0188 06/06/2019WoodsPrior notification for an
agricultural storage building

Andrew
Watson

Favourable
Planning
decision

Wombwell House, Fishtoft
Road, Fishtoft, Boston,
PE21 0QR

Fishtoft Parish Council

B/18/0224/CD2 12/06/2019Withdrawn by
applicant/agent

Trevor
Thompson

Robert
Woodhead Ltd

Boston College Rochford
Campus, Skirbeck Road,
Boston, Lincolnshire, PE21
6JF

Application to have details
approved relating to
condition 3 (Flood Risk) of
planning approval
B/18/0224 (Erection of two
storey Engineering,
Manufacturing and Training
(EMAT) Centre, and
associated landscaping
works)

Boston Town Area
Committee

B/18/0398/NMA 13/06/2019John Taylor Withdrawn by
applicant/agent

Ashwood
Homes

Land off London Road,
Kirton, Boston

Application under s96A for
a non material amendment
to approval B/18/0398
(Approval of reserved
matters (scale, layout,
landscaping and
appearance) following

Page 22 Of 37 08/07/2019Development Manager - Lisa Hughes

P
age 134

https://www.mybostonuk.com/planning-application-search/?ref=B/19/0188
https://www.mybostonuk.com/planning-application-search/?ref=B/18/0224/CD2
https://www.mybostonuk.com/planning-application-search/?ref=B/18/0398/NMA


Location DecisionApplicant 
Name

Decision
Date

Case 
Officer

Application 
Number

Development 
Description

outline approval B/15/0391
(Outline planning
permission for residential
development (105
dwellings) including layout
and access with all other
matters reserved for later
approval) to remove plot 1
and 2 from the layout and
re-numbering of plots and
parking spaces

Kirton Parish Council

B/19/0074 13/06/2019John Taylor Favourable with
conditions

South Linc's
Property

Land to the Rear of 7-15
Station Road, Kirton,
Boston  PE20 1EF

Erection of 5 dwellings
following demolition of
existing outbuildings

Kirton Parish Council

B/17/0113/CD1 13/06/2019Condition
Discharge

76, Spilsby Road, Boston, 
PE21 9NS

Andrew
Watson

NiCAD
Consultancy
Services Ltd

Application to have details
approved relating to
condition 2 (Privacy
Screening) of planning
permission B/17/0113
(Erection of balcony and
door entrance)

Boston Town Area
Committee

B/17/0114/CD1 13/06/2019Condition

Page 23 Of 37 08/07/2019Development Manager - Lisa Hughes

P
age 135

https://www.mybostonuk.com/planning-application-search/?ref=B/19/0074
https://www.mybostonuk.com/planning-application-search/?ref=B/17/0113/CD1
https://www.mybostonuk.com/planning-application-search/?ref=B/17/0114/CD1


Location DecisionApplicant 
Name

Decision
Date

Case 
Officer

Application 
Number

Development 
Description

Discharge
76, Spilsby Road, Boston, 
PE21 9NS

Andrew
Watson

NiCAD
Consultancy
Services Ltd

Application to have details
approved relating to
condition 2 (Privacy
Screening) of planning
permission B/17/0114
(Erection of balcony and
door entrance)

Boston Town Area
Committee

B/19/0100 13/06/2019John Taylor Withdrawn by
applicant/agent

Ashwood
Homes

Land off London Road,
Kirton, Boston

Approval of reserved
matters (Access,
Appearance, Landscaping,
Layout and Scale) following
outline approval B/15/0391
for residential development
of 103 dwellings

Kirton Parish Council

B/19/0044 17/06/2019Moody Favourable with
conditions

100, Tattershall Road,
Boston, PE21 9LP

Andrew
Watson

Erection of a single storey
timber granny annexe for
ancillary use to the main
dwelling

Boston Town Area
Committee

B/19/0078 17/06/2019Favourable with
conditions

7-11 Bridge Street, Boston
PE21 8QF

Trevor
Thompson

Trustilink
Building

Page 24 Of 37 08/07/2019Development Manager - Lisa Hughes

P
age 136

https://www.mybostonuk.com/planning-application-search/?ref=B/19/0100
https://www.mybostonuk.com/planning-application-search/?ref=B/19/0044
https://www.mybostonuk.com/planning-application-search/?ref=B/19/0078


Location DecisionApplicant 
Name

Decision
Date

Case 
Officer

Application 
Number

Development 
Description

Solutions
Conversion of 2 residential
units above shops into 4
flats

Boston Town Area
Committee

B/19/0123 17/06/2019John Taylor Favourable with
conditions

Asda Stores
Ltd.

Asda Superstore, Sleaford
Road, Boston, PE21 8EH

Advertisement consent for 2
post mounted
non-illuminated marketing
signs, 1 refurbished existing
illuminated  totem, 1 vinyl
illuminated graphics to
petrol filling canopy, 1
replacement illuminated
totem and 1 new illuminated
totem

Boston Town Area
Committee

B/19/0117 17/06/2019John Taylor Favourable with
conditions

Asda Stores
Ltd

ASDA Superstore, Sleaford
Road, Boston, PE21 8EH

Proposed additional egress
(exit) road

Boston Town Area
Committee

B/17/0215/CD1 17/06/2019John Taylor Condition
Discharge

Heritage
Lincolnshire

28, High Street, Kirton,
Boston, Lincolnshire, PE20
1EG

Approval of condition C5
(Archaeological Watch
Brief) following approval
under B/17/0215 for a

Page 25 Of 37 08/07/2019Development Manager - Lisa Hughes

P
age 137

https://www.mybostonuk.com/planning-application-search/?ref=B/19/0123
https://www.mybostonuk.com/planning-application-search/?ref=B/19/0117
https://www.mybostonuk.com/planning-application-search/?ref=B/17/0215/CD1


Location DecisionApplicant 
Name

Decision
Date

Case 
Officer

Application 
Number

Development 
Description

change of use of
dwellinghouse (C3) and
outbuildings to a mixed use
of retail (A1),
restaurant/cafe (A3), offices
(B1), hotel (C1) and
residential (C3) and minor
demolition and extension
work to Grade II listed
building, and creation of
new vehicular access off
King Street with associated
parking area

Kirton Parish Council

B/17/0216/CD1 17/06/2019John Taylor Condition
Discharge

Heritage
Lincolnshire

The Old King's Head, 28 ,
High Street, Kirton, Boston,
PE20 1EG

Approval of Condition C4
(Archaeological Watch
Brief) following approval of
Listed Building Consent for
a change of use of
dwellinghouse (C3) and
outbuildings to a mixed use
of retail (A1),
restaurant/cafe (A3), offices
(B1), hotel (C1) and
residential (C3) and minor
demolition and extension
work to Grade II listed
building, and creation of
new vehicular access off
King Street with associated

Page 26 Of 37 08/07/2019Development Manager - Lisa Hughes

P
age 138

https://www.mybostonuk.com/planning-application-search/?ref=B/17/0216/CD1


Location DecisionApplicant 
Name

Decision
Date

Case 
Officer

Application 
Number

Development 
Description

parking area

Kirton Parish Council

B/19/0185 17/06/2019TaylorSimon
Eldred

Favourable
Planning
decision

Boston Nursery School,
Church Road, Boston,
Lincolnshire, PE21 0LJ

Application for works to
trees subject to TPO
(Boston 12) to include:

T1-Horse chestnut -
Reduce crown by 20-25%
(reducing stems and
branches by approx. 4-5 m
in length)

Boston Town Area
Committee

B/19/0130 18/06/2019Favourable with
conditions

Trevor
Thompson

Baddow
Properties Ltd

Walnut Tree Cottage, North
End, Swineshead, Boston, 
PE20 3NA

Construction of new
vehicular access/egress
(exit) to the dwelling

Swineshead Parish
Council

B/19/0182 18/06/2019Hyland Prior Approval
Refused

62, Willington Road, Kirton,
Boston, PE20 1EW

Megan
Epton

Prior approval for a
proposed single storey rear
extension tied in with
existing part retained
extension following partial
removal of existing single
storey extension

Page 27 Of 37 08/07/2019Development Manager - Lisa Hughes

P
age 139

https://www.mybostonuk.com/planning-application-search/?ref=B/19/0185
https://www.mybostonuk.com/planning-application-search/?ref=B/19/0130
https://www.mybostonuk.com/planning-application-search/?ref=B/19/0182


Location DecisionApplicant 
Name

Decision
Date

Case 
Officer

Application 
Number

Development 
Description

Kirton Parish Council

B/19/0182 18/06/2019Hyland Prior Approval
Refused

62, Willington Road, Kirton,
Boston, PE20 1EW

Megan
Epton

Prior approval for a
proposed single storey rear
extension tied in with
existing part retained
extension following partial
removal of existing single
storey extension

Wyberton Parish Council

B/19/0109 19/06/2019John Taylor Michie Favourable with
conditions

1, Barley Sheaf Court,
Holland Fen, Lincoln, LN4
4QH

Single storey rear extension
following demolition of
existing conservatory

Brothertoft Parish
Council

B/19/0019 19/06/2019John Taylor Cuppiccioti Favourable with
conditions

Pilgrim Hospital, Sibsey
Road, Boston, PE21 9QS

New access lobby and
revolving doors

Fishtoft Parish Council

B/16/0197/CD1 19/06/2019John Taylor Skinner Condition
Discharge

Land west of 38, Brand End
Road, Butterwick, Boston

Application to have details
approved relating to
condition 3 (brick and roof
tiled) of planning permission
B/16/0197

Butterwick Parish

Page 28 Of 37 08/07/2019Development Manager - Lisa Hughes

P
age 140

https://www.mybostonuk.com/planning-application-search/?ref=B/19/0182
https://www.mybostonuk.com/planning-application-search/?ref=B/19/0109
https://www.mybostonuk.com/planning-application-search/?ref=B/19/0019
https://www.mybostonuk.com/planning-application-search/?ref=B/16/0197/CD1


Location DecisionApplicant 
Name

Decision
Date

Case 
Officer

Application 
Number

Development 
Description

Council

B/18/0433/CD1 19/06/2019Condition
Discharge

Andrew
Watson

MyLockup.co
m

MyLockup.com,
Boardsides, Wyberton Fen,
Boston, PE21 7NY

Application to have details
approved relating to
condition 4 (Surface water
drainage) of planning
permission B/18/0433

Wyberton Parish Council

B/18/0395/CD2 19/06/2019Condition
Discharge

Land off Puritan Way,
Boston, PE21 8NW

Trevor
Thompson

on behalf of
Waterloo
Housing

Application to have details
approved relating to
Condition 7 (External
parking) of planning
approval B/18/0395
(Construction of 79
dwellings plus roads, public
open space and associated
works

Boston Town Area
Committee

B/18/0420/NMA 19/06/2019John Taylor Guhlke Approved
Non-material
Amendment

Penfold, Station Road,
Hubberts Bridge, Boston,
PE20 3QR

Application under s96A for
a non material amendment
to approval B/18/0420

Frampton Parish Council

B/18/0420/NMA 19/06/2019John Taylor Guhlke Approved
Non-material

Page 29 Of 37 08/07/2019Development Manager - Lisa Hughes

P
age 141

https://www.mybostonuk.com/planning-application-search/?ref=B/18/0433/CD1
https://www.mybostonuk.com/planning-application-search/?ref=B/18/0395/CD2
https://www.mybostonuk.com/planning-application-search/?ref=B/18/0420/NMA
https://www.mybostonuk.com/planning-application-search/?ref=B/18/0420/NMA


Location DecisionApplicant 
Name

Decision
Date

Case 
Officer

Application 
Number

Development 
Description

Amendment
Penfold, Station Road,
Hubberts Bridge, Boston,
PE20 3QR

Application under s96A for
a non material amendment
to approval B/18/0420

Kirton Parish Council

B/19/0184 20/06/2019ClarkErection of detached
garage

Andrew
Watson

Favourable with
conditions

Rochford House, Rochford
Tower Lane, Fishtoft,
Boston, Lincolnshire, PE21
9RH

Fishtoft Parish Council

B/18/0512/CD1 20/06/2019HPV (Lister
Way)

Condition
Discharge

Land off  Lister Way,
Boston, PE21 8NU

Trevor
Thompson

Application to have details
approved relating to
condition 6 (Operational
Hours) of planning approval
B/18/0512 (2 commercial
units with ancillary trade
counters and MOT testing
facility)

B/19/0050/NMA 20/06/2019Trevor
Thompson

Burney
Estates Ltd

Approved
Non-material
Amendment

Plots C and D, The
Quadrant, Land adjacent to
A16, Wyberton, Boston

Non-material amendment to
application B/19/0050 to
include electric vehicle
charging ports

Wyberton Parish Council

Page 30 Of 37 08/07/2019Development Manager - Lisa Hughes

P
age 142

https://www.mybostonuk.com/planning-application-search/?ref=B/19/0184
https://www.mybostonuk.com/planning-application-search/?ref=B/18/0512/CD1
https://www.mybostonuk.com/planning-application-search/?ref=B/19/0050/NMA


Location DecisionApplicant 
Name

Decision
Date

Case 
Officer

Application 
Number

Development 
Description

PRE/19/0004 24/06/2019RandsAndrew
Watson

BBC
Consultation
Response

Land to the west of Rosper
Road,, South Killingholme,
Immingham, DN40 3DZ

Application for notification in
accordance with Section 56
notice for VPI Immingham
OCGT Project - proposal for
a new gas-fired power
station and associated
development

B/18/0436 25/06/2019John Taylor Whitehead Favourable with
conditions

Hallweir Cottage, Skeldyke
Road, Kirton, Boston, PE20
1LR

Rebuild and convert
existing barn to residential
annexe to be used in
association with the
dwelling known as Hall Weir
Cottage

Kirton Parish Council

B/19/0076 25/06/2019Lindsay Favourable with
conditions

Andrew
Watson

Plot at The Cottage, Oak
House Lane, Freiston,
Boston, PE22 0PJ

Outline application with all
matters reserved for the
erection of a residential
dwelling

Freiston Parish Council

B/19/0106 25/06/2019John Taylor Hobson Favourable with
conditions

Tall Trees, Waste Green
Lane, Algarkirk, Boston,
PE20 2AP

Two storey front extension
with porch and
reconfiguration of the roof

Algarkirk Parish Council

Page 31 Of 37 08/07/2019Development Manager - Lisa Hughes

P
age 143

https://www.mybostonuk.com/planning-application-search/?ref=PRE/19/0004
https://www.mybostonuk.com/planning-application-search/?ref=B/18/0436
https://www.mybostonuk.com/planning-application-search/?ref=B/19/0076
https://www.mybostonuk.com/planning-application-search/?ref=B/19/0106


Location DecisionApplicant 
Name

Decision
Date

Case 
Officer

Application 
Number

Development 
Description

B/19/0122 25/06/2019 Asda Stores
Ltd

Favourable with
conditions

Asda, Sleaford Road,
Boston, PE21 8EH

Trevor
Thompson

Extension to existing home
shopping building,
extension to existing
loading canopy, car park
reconfiguration and
relocation of existing click
and collect canopy

Boston Town Area
Committee

B/19/0161 25/06/2019JonesErection of two storey rear
extension

Andrew
Watson

Favourable with
conditions

Cannons Cottage,
Punchbowl Lane,
Brothertoft, Boston

Brothertoft Parish
Council

B/19/0162 25/06/2019Beard Favourable with
conditions

Andrew
Watson

Boston Rugby Club, Great
Fen Road, Boston, PE21
7PB

Installation of 8 x 15 metre
galv lighting columns and
new LED fixtures to light
rugby training areas

Wyberton Parish Council

B/19/0173 25/06/2019Favourable with
conditions

Andrew
Watson

SPC
Developments
Ltd.

Land between Bungley
Lane and West End Road,
Frampton, Boston, PE20
1BT

Application for variation of
condition 1 (Floor Plans and
Elevations plot 7 drwg no
189-SPE-P-07 rev A) of
planning permission
B/17/0242

Page 32 Of 37 08/07/2019Development Manager - Lisa Hughes

P
age 144

https://www.mybostonuk.com/planning-application-search/?ref=B/19/0122
https://www.mybostonuk.com/planning-application-search/?ref=B/19/0161
https://www.mybostonuk.com/planning-application-search/?ref=B/19/0162
https://www.mybostonuk.com/planning-application-search/?ref=B/19/0173


Location DecisionApplicant 
Name

Decision
Date

Case 
Officer

Application 
Number

Development 
Description

Frampton Parish Council

B/19/0173 25/06/2019Favourable with
conditions

Andrew
Watson

SPC
Developments
Ltd.

Land between Bungley
Lane and West End Road,
Frampton, Boston, PE20
1BT

Application for variation of
condition 1 (Floor Plans and
Elevations plot 7 drwg no
189-SPE-P-07 rev A) of
planning permission
B/17/0242

Kirton Parish Council

B/19/0176 25/06/2019First floor side extension Holland Favourable with
conditions

52, Glen Drive, Boston, 
PE21 7QB

Andrew
Watson

Boston Town Area
Committee

B/19/0179 25/06/2019Hallgate Favourable with
conditions

90 Wide Bargate, Boston, 
PE21 6SE

Trevor
Thompson

Change of use from
Hairdressing salon (Class
A1 ) to Dog Grooming  (Sui
Generis)

Boston Town Area
Committee

B/19/0075 01/07/2019John Taylor Adcock Unfavourable
decision

16, York Street, Boston
PE21 6JN

Demolition of existing
property and outbuilding
and proposed residential
development comprising of
5 dwellings and associated
works

Page 33 Of 37 08/07/2019Development Manager - Lisa Hughes

P
age 145

https://www.mybostonuk.com/planning-application-search/?ref=B/19/0173
https://www.mybostonuk.com/planning-application-search/?ref=B/19/0176
https://www.mybostonuk.com/planning-application-search/?ref=B/19/0179
https://www.mybostonuk.com/planning-application-search/?ref=B/19/0075


Location DecisionApplicant 
Name

Decision
Date

Case 
Officer

Application 
Number

Development 
Description

Boston Town Area
Committee

B/19/0143 01/07/2019Karimazondo Favourable with
conditions

47, Punchbowl Lane,
Boston PE21 8HU

Andrew
Watson

Change of use from a
residential dwelling (Class
C3) to a Children's home
(Class C2)

Boston Town Area
Committee

B/19/0142 01/07/2019Favourable with
conditions

Trevor
Thompson

Jerry Green
Dog Rescue

Jerry Green Dog Rescue,
Marsh Lane, Algarkirk,
PE20 2BB

Replacement kennel
building following demolition
of existing

Algarkirk Parish Council

B/19/0170 01/07/2019Adewuyi Favourable with
conditions

11, Wells Place, Wyberton,
Boston, PE21 7NJ

Trevor
Thompson

Conservatory and veranda
to rear

Wyberton Parish Council

B/19/0174 01/07/2019Holmes Favourable with
conditions

Trevor
Thompson

Burger King Drive Thru
located at Plot  A, The
Quadrant, Land off  A16,
Wyberton, Boston, PE21
7TD

Advertisement consent for 6
freestanding
internally-illuminated signs,
1 non-illuminated height
restrictor, 3 wall mounted
non-illuminated signs, 2
internally illuminated
Projecting Signs, 3 High
Wall Mounted internally

Page 34 Of 37 08/07/2019Development Manager - Lisa Hughes

P
age 146

https://www.mybostonuk.com/planning-application-search/?ref=B/19/0143
https://www.mybostonuk.com/planning-application-search/?ref=B/19/0142
https://www.mybostonuk.com/planning-application-search/?ref=B/19/0170
https://www.mybostonuk.com/planning-application-search/?ref=B/19/0174


Location DecisionApplicant 
Name

Decision
Date

Case 
Officer

Application 
Number

Development 
Description

illuminated Logo Signs, one
 wall-mounted sign
consisting of
internally-illuminated letters
and 1 freestanding
internally-illuminated Totem
Sign

Wyberton Parish Council

B/19/0124 03/07/2019Tyrrell Favourable with
conditions

20, Pilleys Lane, Boston,
PE21 9RB

Trevor
Thompson

Demolition of existing
garage and extensions to
front and sides of bungalow,
change of external
materials from brick to white
render and timber cladding
plus erection of detached
car port

Fishtoft Parish Council

B/19/0118 03/07/2019John Taylor Favourable with
conditions

Horizon
Properties

52, Station Road, Kirton,
Boston, PE20 1LD

Erection of 2 detached
dwellings (1 two storey with
integral garage and 1
bungalow) and new
vehicular access

Kirton Parish Council

B/19/0157 03/07/2019Morrison Favourable with
conditions

7, Pilleys Lane, Boston,
Lincolnshire, PE21 9RA

Trevor
Thompson

Installation of 2 dormer
windows in existing garage

Page 35 Of 37 08/07/2019Development Manager - Lisa Hughes

P
age 147

https://www.mybostonuk.com/planning-application-search/?ref=B/19/0124
https://www.mybostonuk.com/planning-application-search/?ref=B/19/0118
https://www.mybostonuk.com/planning-application-search/?ref=B/19/0157


Location DecisionApplicant 
Name

Decision
Date

Case 
Officer

Application 
Number

Development 
Description

Fishtoft Parish Council

B/19/0159 03/07/2019Favourable with
conditions

Trevor
Thompson

LNT Care
Developments

Land to the south of Pilgrim
Way, The Quadrant,
Boston, PE21 7HW

Erection of a three storey
66 no. bed care home for
the elderly with associated
car parking and landscaping

Wyberton Parish Council

B/18/0246 05/07/2019Trevor
Thompson

Favourable
Planning
decision

Freiston
Playing Field
Association

Freiston Sports Club, Park
Lane, Freiston, Boston,
PE22 0NR

Erection of two storey
dormer style residential
dwelling following
demolition of existing
pavilion building

Freiston Parish Council

B/19/0167 05/07/2019John Taylor Erection of free-standing
canopy

Favourable with
conditions

Haven High Academy,
Marian Road, Boston, PE21
9HB

The Boston
Witham
Academies
Federation
Trust

Boston Town Area
Committee

B/18/0103/NMA 05/07/2019John Taylor Fishing Quay, London
Road, Boston, PE21 7RB

Application for a
non-material amendment to
change the fencing style

Approved
Non-material
Amendment

Boston
Fosdyke
Fishing
Society

Page 36 Of 37 08/07/2019Development Manager - Lisa Hughes

P
age 148

https://www.mybostonuk.com/planning-application-search/?ref=B/19/0159
https://www.mybostonuk.com/planning-application-search/?ref=B/18/0246
https://www.mybostonuk.com/planning-application-search/?ref=B/19/0167
https://www.mybostonuk.com/planning-application-search/?ref=B/18/0103/NMA


Location DecisionApplicant 
Name

Decision
Date

Case 
Officer

Application 
Number

Development 
Description

Boston Town Area
Committee

B/18/0233/CD1 05/07/2019John Taylor Frankish Condition
Discharge

The Spinney, (land south of
Cherry Holt Farm), Ralphs
Lane, Boston, Frampton
West, PE20 1RJ

Application to approve
details relating to condition
6 (landscaping) of planning
permission B/18/0233,
erection of residential
dwelling

Frampton Parish Council

Page 37 Of 37 08/07/2019Development Manager - Lisa Hughes

P
age 149

https://www.mybostonuk.com/planning-application-search/?ref=B/18/0233/CD1


T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	B MINUTES
	1 PLANNING APPLICATION B/19/0242
	2 PLANNING APPLICATION B/19/0243
	3 PLANNING APPLICATION B/19/0244
	4 PLANNING APPLICATION B/19/0245
	5 PLANNING APPLICATION B/19/0246
	6 PLANNING APPLICATION B/19/0168
	7 S106 PLANNING OBLIGATION LEGISLATION UPDATE
	8 RECEIPT OF APPEAL DECISIONS
	Appeal Decision re B/18/0267
	Appeal Decision re B/17/0533
	Appeal Decision re B/18/0323
	Appeal Decision re B/18/0228
	Appeal Decision re B/18/0052
	Appeal Decision re B/18/0291
	Appeal Decision re B/18/0075
	Appeal Decision re B/18/0136

	9 RECEIPT OF APPEALS 15.04.19 TO 05.07.19
	10 DELEGATED DECISION LIST 15.04.19 TO 05.07.19

